
CITY OF CORAL GABLES, FLORIDA 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-167 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDA­
TION OF THE CHIEF PROCUREMENT OFFICER 
TO APPROVE A CONTRACT WITH R S & H, INC., 
TO DEVELOP A SUSTAINABILITY MASTER PLAN 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 287.055, 
KNOWN AS THE "CONSULTANTS COMPETITIVE 
NEGOTIATION ACT" AND REQUEST FOR 
QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) 2013.10.15. 

WHEREAS, on April 8, 2014, the City Commission authorized negotiations with 
RS & H, Inc. (fonnerly known as Reynolds, Smith & Hills, Inc.), an architecture and 
engineering consulting finn selected as a result of an RFQ process, to detennine the 
terms and conditions of a contract for consulting services necessary for the development 
of a Sustainability Master Plan for the City of Coral Gables; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this contract is to hire a qualified consulting firm to 
assist the City of Coral Gables in the creation of a Sustainability Master Plan, including 
conducting an operations assessment, developing a greenhouse gas emission inventory, 
providing technical expertise, facilitating goal and strategy development, data collection 
and management, providing a marketing and communications plan, and the development 
of the final plan document; and 

WHEREAS, the Procurement Division and the Public Works Department have 
completed their negotiations with R S & H, Inc., resulting in the attached contract; and 

WHEREAS, the Chief Procurement Officer in consultation with the Public 
Works Director recommends that a contract with R S & H, Inc., be approved; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2-650 of the Procurement Code authorizes the City 
Manager to delegate authority to the Chief Procurement Officer to administer and make 
recommendations on City contracts; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF 
THE CITY OF CORAL GABLES: 

SECTION 1. The foregoing "Whereas" clauses are hereby ratified and 
confinned as being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution 
upon adoption hereof. 

Page 1 of2 - Resolution No. 2014-167 



SECTION 2. That the City Commission accepts the recommendation of the 
Chief Procurement Officer to approve a contract with R S & H, Inc., to develop a 
Sustainability Master Plan pursuant to Florida Statute 287.055, known as the 
"Consultants Competitive Negotiation Act" and Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 
2013.10.15 . 

SECTION 3. That this Resolution shall become effective upon the date of its 
adoption herein. 

2014. 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS TWENTY-SIXTH DAY OF AUGUST, A.D., 

(Moved: Quesada / Seconded: Lago) 
(Yeas: Lago, Quesada, Keon, Kerdyk, Cason) 
(Unanimous: 5-0 Vote) 
(Agenda Item: C-I0) 

APPROVED: 

~
~ 

. CASON u--

OR 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 

CRAIG E. LEEN 
CITY ATTORNEY 
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PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT is made as of this __ day of . 2014, 
between the City of Coral Gables (hereinafter called the City"), and RS & H, Inc. (hereinafter called the 
"Professional "). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into an agreement with the Professional to develop a 
Sustainability Master Plan (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the City having investigated the qualifications of the Professional to perform the 
services herein contemplated and found those qualifications satisfactory; and 

WHEREAS, the Professional having examined the scope of the services required hereunder and 
having expressed desire and willingness to provide such services and having presented qualifications to the 
City in support of those expressed desires; and 

WHEREAS, the Professional agrees to accept this Agreement upon the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set forth; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants herein 
contained, the City agrees to retain the Professional for the development of a Sustainability Master Plan. 

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

This Agreement incorporates and supersedes all previous agreements, written and oral, and all 
prior and contemporaneous communications between the parties, regarding this subject. The City reserves 
the right to initiate change to any provision of this Agreement. All such changes shall be accomplished 
only by mutually signed Amendments. 

The Professional shall perform the services as specifically stated in the Request For Qualifications 
(RFQ), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit "A" and further defmed in the Coral 
Gables Master Plan Scope of Work, Cost Estimate and Schedule attached hereto and incorporated herein 
as Exhibited "B", and as may be specifically designated and authorized by the City. 

1.1 Engagement. The City agrees to engage the Professional for a period specified in 
paragraph 1.2, and the Professional agrees to accept such engagement and to perform such services for the 
City upon the terms, and subject to the conditions set forth herein. 

1.2 Agreement Period. The terms of the Agreement (the "Professional Period") shall 
commence within ten (10) days of the execution date of the agreement and shall continue thereafter 
pursuant to the Project Tirneline provided in Attachment" 1" of Exhibit "B" or until terminated by the City 
upon thirty (30) days written notice to the Professional, in accordance with the notice requirements 
contained in Section XnL This period may be extended upon mutual agreement between the City and the 
Professional, for an additional one (1) year period or until terminated by the City upon 30 days written 
notice to the Professional, in accordance with the notice requirements contained in Section XIII. 

1.3 Duties and Responsibilities/Priority of Interpretation. The Code and any City resolutions 
take precedence over this agreement and its exhibits. This document without exhibits is referred to as the 
"Base Agreement." In the event of any conflict or inconsistency in the definition or interpretation of any 
word, responsibility, schedule, or the contents or description of any task, deliverable, service, or other 
work, or otherwise, between the Base Agreement and the exhibits, or between exhibits, such conflict or 
inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence first to the body of this Base Agreement, and then to 
the exhibits according to the following priority: 
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a) City Resolution and applicable Code provisions; 
b) City Request for Qualifications (RFQ) (Exhibit "A"); 
c) Sustainability Master Plan Scope of Work, Cost Estimate, Schedule (Exhibit "B"); 
d) Professional's Response to RFQ (Exhibit "C"); 
e) Insurance Certificates; and 
f) Professional's Exceptions to Terms and Conditions 

During the Agreement Period, the Professional will serve as a Consultant to the City and will assist 
the City in the creation of a Sustainability Master Plan, including conducting a greenhouse gas emission 
inventory, providing technical expertise, facilitating goal and strategy development, data collection, creating 
any necessary technical documentation, and the development of the final Sustainability Master Plan 
document in accordance with the terms, conditions and specifications contained in this Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ). The Sustainability Master Plan will be a policy document for the City of Coral Gables 
and will serve as a blueprint for sustainability decision making for the next 10 years, focusing on increments 
of 5 years. Request for Qualifications 2013.11.27 (Attached hereto). 

1.4 Background Investigation. The Professional agrees that all employees including the 
Professional may be subject to an annual background investigation. 

1.5 Driver's License. At City's option, the Professional must provide a valid Florida Driver's 
License or appropriate commercial driver's license for each employee, agent or sub consultant and be 
willing and able to operate any required vehicles as authorized by the City. Evidence of compliance with 
the Defensive Driving Course must be submitted to the City prior to operating a City vehicle or any vehicle 
where patrons or children are passengers. Individuals must be approved by the Risk Management Division 
of the City prior to the operation of a City owned vehicle and/or privately owned vehicles while conducting 
City business. The City reserves the right to request the employee/agent's driving record from the State of 
Florida, at Professional's expense. 

1.6 Confidential Information. The Professional agrees it shall treat the information received 
by the Professional for the City and in providing services in accordance with this Agreement, in 
confidential manner, except to the extent necessary in cOlmection with the performance of its obligations 
under this agreement. Professional shall not disclose the same to anyone other than its employees on a 
need to know basis and who agree to be bound by the terms of this section, without the written consent of 
the City. Information will not be deemed confidential if it (i) becomes publicly available other than 
through the actions of the Professional; (ii) independently developed by the Professional; or (iii) becomes 
available to the Professional without restriction from a third party. If the Professional is required by a 
governmental or judicial law, order or regulations to disclose confidential information, it must give prompt 
written notice to the City in order to allow the City to take appropriate action. 

II. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2.1 Basic Services. The duties and responsibilities are outlined in the RFQ, which is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit "A" and further defined in the Coral Gables Master Plan Scope of 
Work, Cost Estimate and Schedule attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit "B". 

2.2 Reporting. The Professional shall comply with the necessary reporting requirements as 
outlined by the Director or designee for review. In addition, the Professional shall submit a monthly report 
to the Director or designee, which shall include detailed information regarding the activities of the 
Professional during the previous month. 

2.3 Availability of Professional. The Professional shall make all documents available 24 
hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year, in order to satisfy the City's emergency demands for 
continued, non-interrupted service. 
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III. COMPENSATION 

3.1 Basic Compensation. In full consideration of the services of the Professional hereunder, 
the Professional shall be paid an amount not to exceed $200,250 to be billed monthly based on a percentage 
of the tasks completed and accepted by the City as provided in Exhibit "B", the Coral Gables Master Plan 
Scope of Work, Cost Estimate and Schedule (August 19,2014 Supplement). The City reserves the right 
to contract with the Professional for additional services. Any increase in the agreed upon amount shall be 
approved by the Public Works Director with the agreement of the Procurement Division, and shall be in 
accordance with applicable City and State regulations. 

3.2 Expenses. As part of, and in addition to the basic compensation described in this 
Agreement, the City shall provide the Professional with no additional compensation for any services 
performed in fulfilling the requirements of this Agreement. All additional requested expenses must be pre­
approved through the Director or designee. 

IV. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND PROFESSIONAL 
HOLD HARMLESS PROVISIONS 

4.1 Independent Contractor and Professional. The Professional acknowledges entering into 
this Agreement as an independent Contractor and Professional, and that the Professional shall therefore be 
responsible for the deposit and payment of any Federal Income Taxes, FICA, Unemployment Taxes or any 
similar fees or taxes that become due, and shall be responsible for the collection and payment of all 
withholdings, contributions and payroll taxes relating to Professional's services, or those of employees of 
the Professional. The City shall not withhold from sums payable to the Professional , any amount 
whatsoever for Federal Income Taxes, FICA, Unemployment Insurance Taxes or any similar fees or taxes. 
The Professional, their employees or agents, will not be considered an employee of the City or entitled to 
participate in plans, distributions, arrangements or other benefits extended to City employees. 

4.2 Agency. Nothing herein shall imply or shall be deemed to imply an agency relationship 
between the City and Professional. 

4.2.1 Professional warrants that it fully complies with applicable Federal statutes and 
regulations regarding the employment of undocumented workers and others and that all employees 
performing work under this Agreement meet the citizenship or immigration status requirements set forth in 
Federal statutes and regulations. Professional shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless City, its officers 
and employees from and against any sanctions and any other liability which may be assessed against 
Professional or City in connection with any alleged violation of any Federal statutes or regulations 
pertaining to the eligibility for employment of any persons performing work hereunder. 

4.2.2 The employees and agents of each party, shall while on the premises of the other party, 
comply with all rules and regulations of the premises, including, but not limited to, security requirements. 

4.2.3 Indemnification and Hold Harmless. To the fullest extent permitted by laws and 
regulations, the Professional shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its commissioners, 
attorneys, administrators, consultants, and employees from and against claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses direct, indirect, or consequential (including but not limited to reasonable fees and charges of 
attorneys and other Professional's and court and arbitration costs) to the extent caused by any willful, 
intentional, reckless, or negligent act or omission of Professional, it's sub consultant, or any person or 
organization employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the work or anyone for whose acts any 
of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder 
and regardless of the negligence of any such indemnified party. Any failure of Professional to comply 
with the terms of this provision shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement and may subject 
Professional to debarment from consideration for future award of city contracts pursuant to Section 2-
952(4) of the City of Coral Gables Code of Ordinances. 
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4.2.4 In any and all claims against the City or any of its consultants, agents, or employees by 
any employee of Professional, any sub consultant, any person or organization directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the work or anyone for whose acts any of them may 
be liable, the indemnification obligation under the above paragraph shall not be limited in any way by any 
limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Professional or 
any such sub consultant or other person or organization under workers' or workman's compensation acts, 
disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts. Moreover, nothing in this Indemnification and Hold 
Harmless provision shall be considered to increase or otherwise waive any limits of liability, or to waive 
any immunity, established by Florida Statutes, case law, or any other source oflaw. 

v. INSURANCE 

5.1 Without limiting Professional's indemnification of the City, and during the term of this 
Agreement, Professional shall provide and maintain at its own expense the below described programs of 
insurance. Such programs and evidence of insurance shall be satisfactory to the City and shall be primary 
to and not contributing with any other insurance or self-insurance program maintained by the City. 
Certificates or other evidence of coverage shall be delivered to: 

City of Coral Gables 
Insurance Compliance 
PO Box 12010 -CE 
Hemet, CA 92546-8010 

Such certificates or other evidence of coverage shall be delivered prior to commencing performance under 
this Agreement, and shall specifically identity this Agreement, and shall contain the express condition that 
the City is to be given advance written notice by receipted delivery at least thirty (30) days in advance of 
any cancellation, non-renewal or material change of the insurance policy. 

5.2 The Professional shall maintain during the terms, except as noted, of this Agreement the 
following insurance: 

a. Professional Liability and/or Error and Omissions Insurance with a limit of liability 
no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence with a deductible per claim, if any, not to exceed 5% of the limit of 
liability providing for all sums which the Respondent shall become legally obligated to pay as damages for 
claims arising out of the services performed by the Respondent or any person employed, contracted and/or 
subcontracted in connection with this Agreement. This insurance shall be maintained for three (3) years 
after any WORK covered by this Agreement. 

b. Comprehensive general liability insurance with broad form endorsement or equivalent, 
including automobile liability, completed operations and products liability, contractual liability, severability 
of interests with cross liability provision, and personal injury and property damage liability with limits no 
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage, and $2,000,000 in the 
aggregate. Said policy or policies shall name City as additional insured on a primary and non-contributory 
basis and shall reflect the hold harmless provision contained herein. 

c. Worker's Compensation Insurance for all employees of Professional as required by 
Florida Statutes Section 440, and employer's liability insurance with limits not less than, $1,000,000 

d. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles used 
in connection with the performance of the work in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single 
limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. 

e. Other (or increased amounts of) insurance which City shall from time to time deem 
advisable or appropriate. Such new or additional insurance to be effective as of the sooner of ninety (90) 
days after notice thereof or the next annual renewal of any policy being increased (as applicable). 
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f. All policies shall contain waiver of subrogation against City where applicable, and shall 
expressly provide that such policy or policies are primary over any other collective insurance the City may 
have. 

g. All of the above insurance is to be placed with insurance companies with an A.M. Best or 
equivalent rating of "A-", "VI" or better, qualified to do business under laws of the State of Florida. 

h. The City shall be named as an additional insured on a primary and non-contributory basis 
under such policies. Said policies shall contain a "severability of interest or "cross liability" clause without 
obligation for premium payment of the City. The City reserves the right to request a copy of required 
policies for review. 

i. All insurance policies shall provide for thirty (30) days [ten (to) days for non-payment of 
premium] advance written notice to City prior to cancellation, non-renewal or material change. 

j. The Professional shall furnish Certificates of Insurance to the Risk Management Division 
of the Human Resources Department prior to the commencement of operations or policy termination, 
which certificates shall clearly indicate that the City is named as and additional insured on a primary and 
non-contributory basis and that the Professional has obtained insurance in the type, amount and 
classification required for strict compliance with this Section and that no material change, cancellation or 
non-renewal of this insurance shall be effective without thirty (30) [ten (to) days for non-payment of 
premium] days advance written notice to the City. 

5.3 Failure on the part of the Professional to obtain and maintain all required insurance 
coverage is a material breach upon which the City may, in its sole discretion, immediately suspend 
Professional's performance or terminate this Agreement. 

VI. SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY 

6.1 The Professional acknowledges that the Florida Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity bars all 
claims by Professional against the City other than claims arising out of this Agreement. Specifically, the 
Professional acknowledges that it cannot and will not assert any claims against the City, unless the claim is 
based upon a breach by the City of this Agreement. The Professional acknowledges that it has no right and 
will not make a claim based upon any ofthe following: 

a. Claims based upon an alleged breach by the City of implied warranties or representations 
not specifically set forth in this Agreement, as the Parties stipulate that there are no such implied 
waITanties or representations of the City. All obligations of the City are only as set forth in this 
Agreement. 

b. Claims based upon negligence or any tort arising out of this Agreement. 

c. Claims based upon alleged acts or inaction by any City employee or agent of the City. 

d. Claims based upon an alleged waiver of any of the terms of this Agreement unless such 
waiver is in writing and signed by an authorized representative for the City and the Professional. 

VII. FLORIDA PUBLIC RECORDS LAW 
FLORIDA STATUTES CHAPTER 119, et seq. 

7.1 Records subject to the provisions of Public Record Law, Florida Statutes Chapter 119, 
shall be kept and maintained in accordance with such Statute. Supplier acknowledges that records and 
books, not subject to exemption under Chapter 119, may be disclosed and/or produced to third parties by 
the City in accordance with requests submitted under Chapter 119 or court orders without penalty or 
reprisal to the City for such disclosure and/or production. Supplier also agrees to assert, in good faith, any 
relevant exemptions provided for under Chapter 119 for records in its possession on behalf of the City. 
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Furthermore, Supplier agrees to comply with the provisions outlined in Section 119.0701 of the Florida 
Statutes, the requirements of which are incorporated herein. 

VIII. STANDARD OF CARE 

8.1 The Professional shall exercise the same degree of care, skill, and diligence in the 
performance of the services as is ordinarily provided by a comparable Professional under similar 
circumstances and the Professional shall, at no additional cost to the City, re-perform services which fail to 
satisfy the foregoing standard of care. 

IX. NON-DISCRIMINATION 

9.1 EEO and ADA: The Professional must be and remain in compliance with all applicable 
local, state and federal Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) and American Disabilities Act (ADA) 
requirements. 

9.2 It is understood that the Professional shall not discriminate against any employee in the 
performance of the contract with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges of employment, or 
any other matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of age, marital status, race, color, 
religion, national origin, sex, or disability. 

9.3 City Policy Regarding Conduct. All Professionals, their employees, agents and sub 
consultants must abide by the City's policies regarding conduct. Discrimination, harassment, and/or 
violations of City policies will not be tolerated and are grounds for termination of the Agreement without 
harm to the City or its employees. 

X. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

10.1 The Professional represents that any potential or actual conflict between private interests 
and responsibilities under this Agreement shall be immediately disclosed to the City. 

XI. CONFIDENTIALITY 

11.1 Subject to the requirements of Chapter 119 of the Florida Statutes, no reports, 
information, computer programs, documentation, and/or data given to or prepared or assembled by the 
Professional exclusively under this Agreement shall be made available to any individual or organization by 
the Professional without prior written approval of the City. 

XII. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

12.1 Any and all documents, records, disks, or other information prepared exclusively under 
this agreement ("the deliverables"), shall become the property of the City for its use and/or distribution as 
may be deemed appropriate by the City. Any modification of the Deliverables hereunder or their reuse on 
another project by the City without the approval of the Professional shall be at the City's sole risk and 
without liability to the Professional. 

XIII. TRUTH-IN-NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE 

13.1 Execution of this Agreement by the Professional shall act as the execution of a truth-in-
negotiation certificate certifying that the wage rates and costs used to determine the compensation provided 
for in this Agreement are accurate, complete, and current as of the date of the Agreement. 

13.2 The said rates and costs shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums should the City 
determine that the rates and costs were increased due to inaccurate, incomplete, or noncurrent wage rates or 
due to inaccurate representations of fees paid to outside consultants. The City shall exercise its rights under 
this "Certificate" within one (1) year following payment. 
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XIV. NOTICE 

14.1 Any notice, request, instruction or other document required or permitted to be given 
hereunder by either party hereto to the other shall be in writing, and delivered personally, or sent by 
certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the address set forth for such party 
at the bottom of this Agreement. Any notice so given shall be deemed received when personally delivered 
or three (3) business days after mailing. Any party may change the address to which notices are to be sent 
by giving notice of such change of address to the other party in the manner herein provided for giving 
notice. Notice as to the City of Coral Gables shall be to: 

City Manager 
City of Coral Gables 
405 Biltmore Way 
Coral Gables, FL 33134 

cc: City Attorney 

Notice as to the Professional shall be to: 

Mike McCarthy, MBA, PG 
RS &H, Inc. 
Sustainability Group Leader 
10748 Deerwood Park Boulevard South 
Jacksonville, FL 32256 

XV. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 

15.1 The City may terminate this Agreement for convenience at any time by providing five (5) 
days written notice to the Professional. In the event of a termination for cause, due to the Professional's 
failure to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or the Professional's repudiation of this 
Agreement by word or conduct, The City may immediately terminate the Agreement and the Professional 
shall be paid any sums otherwise due and owing under this Agreement only after City has completed the 
work called for by this Agreement with other forces, and has deducted the cost of such work, and any other 
damages payable to City, from any contract balance otherwise due and owing to the Professional under 
this Agreement. In the event of a termination for convenience, the Professional shall be paid for all 
services performed through the date of termination, based on the percentage of services completed (subject 
to applicable setoff rights) and the Professional shall not be entitled to any other compensation or damages 
from the City. If, after notice of termination for cause, it is determined for any reason that Professional was 
not in default, the rights and obligations of the City and the Professional shall be the same as though the 
termination had been a termination for convenience. In no event shall the City be liable to Professional for 
lost profits on any work not performed, overhead, or any other type of consequential, special or indirect 
damages, and Professional hereby waives the same. Professional may terminate this Agreement due to the 
City's failure to comply with the material terms of this Agreement after giving City thirty (30) days written 
notice of its purported default and a reasonable opportunity to cure. Upon termination of this Agreement, 
all schematics, designs, plans, specifications, documents, records, disks, or other information (including 
electronic copies) produced or developed by Professional or sub consultants, whether finished or not, shall 
become City property. Failure to timely deliver the documentation shall be cause to withhold any payments 
due, without recourse by the Professional, until all documentation is delivered to the City. 

XVI. UNCONTROLLABLE FORCES 

16.1 Neither the City nor Professional shall be considered to be in default of this Agreement if 
delays in or failure of performance shall be due to Uncontrollable Forces, the effect of which, by the 
exercise of reasonable diligence, the nonperforming party could not avoid. The term "Uncontrollable 
Forces" shall mean any event which results in the prevention or delay of performance by a party of its 
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obligations under this Agreement and which is beyond the reasonable control of the nonperforming party. 
It includes, but is not limited to, fire, flood, earthquake, storm, lighting, epidemic, war, riot, civil 
disturbance, sabotage, and governmental action. 

16.2 Neither party shall, however, be excused from performance if nonperformance is due to 
forces which are preventable, removable, or remediable, and which the nonperforming party could have, 
with the exercise of reasonable diligence, prevented, removed, or remedied with reasonable dispatch. The 
nonperforming party shall, within a reasonable time of being prevented or delayed from performance by an 
uncontrollable force, give written notice to the other party describing the circumstances and uncontrollable 
forces preventing continued performance of the obligations of this Agreement. 

XVII. MODIFICATION 

17.1 This Agreement may not be amended or modified unless in writing and signed by both 
parties. 

XVIII. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING 

18.1 This Agreement and the rights of the Professional and obligations hereunder may not be 
assigned, delegated or subcontracted by the Professional without the express prior written consent of the 
City. Any assignment, delegation or subcontract without such express prior written consent shall be null 
and void and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement, upon which the City may immediately 
terminate the Agreement in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 13.1 (Termination by Default). 
The City may assign its rights, together with its obligations hereunder. 

XIX. AUDITS 

19.1 The Professional shall maintain accurate and complete fmancial records of its activities 
and operations relating to this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
Professional shall maintain adequate records to justify all charges and costs incurred in performing the 
services for at least three (3) years after completion of this Agreement. Professional shall also maintain 
accurate and complete employment and other records relating to its performance of this Agreement. 
Professional agrees that City, or its authorized representatives, shall have access to and the right to 
examine, audit, excerpt, copy or transcribe any pertinent transaction, activity, or records relating to this 
Agreement. All financial records, timecards and other employment records, and proprietary data and 
information shall be kept and maintained by Professional and made available to the City during the terms of 
this Agreement and for a period of three (3) years thereafter unless City's written permission is given to 
dispose of any such material prior to such time. All such materials shall be maintained by Professional at a 
location in Miami-Dade County, Florida, provided that if any such material is located outside Miami-Dade 
County, then, at City's option Professional shall pay City for travel, per diem, and other costs incurred by 
City to examine, audit, excerpt, copy or transcribe such material at such other location. The City shall 
have access to such books, records, and documents as required in this section for the purpose of inspection 
or audit during normal working business hours at the Professional's place of business. 

In the event that an audit is conducted by Professional specifically regarding this Agreement by 
any Federal or State auditor, or by any auditor or accountant employed by Professional, then Professional 
shall fIle a copy of the audit report with the City's Auditor within thirty (30) days of Professional's receipt 
thereof, unless otherwise provided by applicable Federal or State law. City shall make a reasonable effort 
to maintain the confidentiality of such audit report(s). 

Failure on the pali of Professional to comply with the provisions of this Paragraph 17.1 shall 
constitute a material breach upon which the City may terminate or suspend this Agreement. 

19.2 City Audit Settlements. If, at any time during or after the term of this Agreement, 
representatives of the City conduct an audit of Professional regarding the work performed under this 
Agreement, and if such audit fmds that City's dollar liability for any such work is less than payments made 
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by City to Professional, then the difference shall be either repaid by Professional to City by cash payment 
upon demand or, at the sole option of City, deducted from any amounts due to Professional from City. If 
such audit fmds that City's dollar liability for such work is more than the payments made by City to 
Professional, then the difference shall be paid to Professional by cash payment. 

xx. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

20.1 The obligations of the City under this Agreement are subject to the availability of funds 
lawfully appropriated for its purpose by the City Commission. 

XXI. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

21.1 In performance of the services, the Professional will comply with applicable regulatory 
requirements, including federal, state, special district, and local laws, rules, regulations, orders, codes, 
criteria, and standards. It shall be the responsibility of the Professional to obtain and maintain, at no cost to 
the City, any and all license and permits required to complete the services provided pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

21.2 Conflict of Interest. Professional covenants that no person employed by the Professional 
which exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with this Agreement has any personal 
financial interests direct or indirect with the City. Professional further covenants that, in the performance 
of this Agreement, no person having a conflicting interest shall be employed. Any such interests on the 
part of Professional or its employees must be disclosed in writing to City. 

21.3 Professional is aware of the conflict of interest code of the City of Coral Gables, the 
Conflict of Interest and Code of Ethics of Miami-Dade County, Florida, Section 2-11.1 et seq., and the 
Ethics Laws of the State of Florida, and agrees that it shall fully comply in all respects with the terms of 
said laws. 

XXII. FEDERAL AND STATE TAXES 

22.1 The City is exempt from Federal Tax and State Sales and Use Taxes. Upon request, the 
City will provide an exemption certificate to the Professional. The Professional shall not be exempted from 
paying sales tax to its suppliers for materials to fulfill the contractual obligations with the City, nor shall the 
Professional be authorized to use the City's Tax Exemption Number in securing such materials. 

XXIII. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

23.1 The City and the Professional each binds itself and its partners, successors, assigns, and 
legal representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to its partners, successors, executors, 
administrators, assigns, and legal representatives. The Professional shall not assign this Agreement without 
the express written approval of the City via executed amendment. 

XXIV. CONTINGENT FEES 

24.1 The Professional warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, 
other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Professional, to solicit or secure this Agreement and 
that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a 
bona fide employee working solely for the Professional, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other 
consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. 

XXV. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT 

25.1 The City and the Professional agree that this Agreement sets forth the entire agreement 
between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other than those stated herein. This 
Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, contracts, proposals, representations, negotiations, letters, or 
other communications between the City and the Professional pertaining to the services, whether written or 

City of Coral Gables, FL Professional Services Agreement 
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oral. None of the provisions, terms, and conditions contained in this Agreement may be added to, 
modified, superseded, or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties hereto. 

XXVI. COUNTERP ARTS 

26.1 This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in several counterparts, each of which 
will be an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument. 

XXVII. WAIVER 

27.1 A waiver by either the City or the Professional of any breach of this Agreement shall not 
be binding upon the waiving party unless such waiver is in writing. In the event of a written waiver, such a 
waiver shall not affect the waiving party's rights with respect to any other or further breach. The making or 
acceptance of a payment by either party with knowledge of the existence of a default or breach shall not 
operate or be construed to operate as a waiver of any subsequent default or breach. 

XXVIII. SEVERABILITY, SURVIVAL 

28.1 If any provision of this Agreement is found to be void and unenforceable by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless be binding upon the 
parties with the same effect as though the void or unenforceable provision had been severed and deleted. 

XXIX. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 

29.1 The laws of the State of Florida shall govern this Agreement. Any and all legal action 
necessary to enforce the Agreement will be held in Miami-Dade County, and the Agreement will be 
interpreted according to the laws of Florida. 

29.2 The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement, or the 
occurrence of any event rendering any portion or provision of this Agreement void, shall in no way effect 
the validity or enforceability of any other portion or provision of the Agreement. Any void provision shall 
be deemed severed from the Agreement, and the balance of the Agreement shall be construed and enforced 
as if the Agreement did not contain the particular portion or provision held to be void. The parties further 
agree to reform the Agreement to replace any stricken provision with a valid provision that comes as close 
as possible to the intent of the stricken provision. 

29.3 The provisions of this section shall not prevent the entire Agreement from being void 
should a provision, which is of the essence of the Agreement, be determined to be void. 

XXX. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE 

30.1 Time is of the Essence. If any anticipated or actual delays arise, Professional shall 
immediately so notify the City. Regardless of notice if services or deliveries are not made at the time 
agreed upon, the City may, at its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement and proceed pursuant to 
Paragraph 13.1 (Termination by Default). 

XXXI. WAIVER OF TRIAL BY JURY 

31.1 THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT HEREBY AGREE TO EXHAUST ALL 
ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES BEFORE FILING A LAWSUIT IN CIVIL COURT TO RESOLVE 
THE DISPUTE. CITY AND CONTRACTOR HEREBY KNOWINGL Y, IRREVOCABL Y, 
VOLUNTARILY AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT EITHER MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL 
BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM BASED UPON 
THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, OR ARISING OUT OF, UNDER, OR IN CONNECTION WITH, 
THE CONSTURCTION OF THE WORK, OR ANY COURSE OF CONDUCT, COURSE OF DEALING, 
STATEMENTS (WHETHER VERBAL OR WRITTEN), OR ACTIONS OF ANY PARTY. 
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XXXI[. HEADINGS 

32.1 The headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect 
the meaning or interpretation of the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WfffiREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first 
above written. 

Approved as to Insurance: 

David J. Ruiz 
Risk Management Division 
of Human Resources 

Approved by Department Head 
or head of negotiations team as to 
the negotiated business telms: 

Ernesto Pino 
Interim Director, Public Works 

Approved as to compliance with 
Applicable Procurement Requirements: 

Michael P. Pounds 
Chief Procurement Officer 

Approved as to Funds Appropriation: 

Diana M. Gomez, 
Finance Director 

(SE.L\.L) 

(OR) 
WITNESSES (2); 

City of Coral Gables, FL 

AS TO CITY: 

Carmen Olazabal 
Interim City Manager 

ATTEST: 

Walter J. Foeman 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 

Craig E. Leen 
City Attorney 

AS TO PROFESSIONAL 
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Print Name: -------------------

Cily oreoml Gables, fL 

Print Name: --------------------
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Michael Pounds 
Office of the Chief Procurement Officer 
City of Coral Gables 
2800 SW 72nd Avenue 
Miami, FL 33155 

January 15, 201 4 

RE: City of Coral Gables Sustainability Master Plan, RFQ 2013.11.27 

Dear Mr. Pounds: 

It is our pleasure to present this proposal for development of the City of Coral Gables Sustainability Master Plan. The 
capability, capacity and experience of our multi-discipline Team ensures the delivery of a comprehensive, world-class 
Sustainability Master Plan with measurable results . RS&H recognizes the City of Coral Gables as a forward thinking regional 
leader focused on efficient government that prioritizes the quality of life of its residents and its businesses. As such, we are 
eager to work with the City to further your initiatives. 

The RS&H Team's sustainability management experience incorporates proven technical solutions for generating economic 
benefits - with returns on investment often exceeding 100% - while considering the unique needs o'f the communities we 
serve. Our technical areas of expertise include: energy and fuel efficiency, resource conservation, land use development, 
natural area preservation, recycling and waste reduction and education and outreach, among other capabilities detailed 
in our proposal. While these technical capabilities are indispensable to the pursuit of suslainability, there are a full range of 
benefits that lie beyond them (e.g . resilient communities, innovation, productivity, etc) Achieving these benefits requires 
adaptive solutions realized through a common vision, stakeholder engagement and motivation, measurement and continual 
improvement. The RS&H Team delivers both the technical and adaptive solutions essential to the short and long-term 
success of the City of Coral Gables Sustainability Master Plan. 

For this project, RS&H's experience will be supplemented by Zyscovich, Inc and Erin Deady, PA. Zyscovich, Inc. is an 
integrated practice of urban planners, architects and landscape architects attuned to the unique qualities of Coral Gables. 
Their awareness of the City's green initiatives and associated organizational insights on sustainable opportunities will ensure 
the project's success. Erin Deady, PA has significant project management experience on complex sustainability projects 
throughout Florida. The firm has secured and managed more than $6 million in grant funding for sustainability related 
projects ranging from energy efficiency to natural resource protection . 

The team has extensive experience helping local governments in Florida seize opportunities to maximize resource efficiency, 
while improving the health and resilience of the communities they serve. Within the past 5 years, RS&H has assisted more 
than 30 Federal, County or local government clients across the State of Florida with more than 50 sustainability projects 
Our proposal features several RS&H Team projects that are similar to the services sought by the City of Coral Gables. Each 
project demonstrates the RS&H Team's years of experience assisting clients with sustainability planning projects, as well as 
the Team's unique understanding of the challenges and opportunities in a local government context. 

BStH. 
RS&H Cover Leller lor Cily 01 Coral Gables I Suslainabilily Master Plan I RFO 2013 11 27. Page 1 of 2 IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 



RS&H Cover Letter for Cily of Coral Gables I Sustainability Master Plan I RFO 2013.11 27. Page 2 of 2 

In the following proposal, we demonstrate that the RS&H Team has unmatched expertise and experience assisting local 
governments in Florida with sustainability planning We have developed an approach that has been proven to yield 
substantial performance improvement, while empowering organizational resiliency. As a full service sustainability solutions 
team, the RS&H Team is ready and able to help the City manage all aspects of its Sustainability Master Plan. As always, our 
core services will meet or exceed the expectations of the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) , delivered on schedule and at a 
competitive price. 

10748 Deerwood Park Boulevard South 
Jacksonville, FL 32256 
(904) 256-2000 

10748 Deerwood Park Boulevard South 
Jacksonville, FL 32256 
mike.mccarthy@rsandh.com 
(904) 256-2263 

As per the RFQ requirements the company name, address, and telephone number of RS&H are provided below along with 
the name, title, address and telephone number for the person to contact who is authorized to represent the firm and to whom 
correspondence should be directed. 

We are hopeful that the City will view the RS&H team as the firm of choice and look forward to working with you on this 
exciting project. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Lisa M. Robert, PE 
Senior Vice President 
RS&H 
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2-1. COMPANY HISTORY 
RS&H, whose tradition began in 1941, is an infrastructure and facilities consulting firm 
with a client-centered program structure that provides value-added solutions to clients 
around the world . RS&H has been in business for more than 71 years and employs 863 
associates in 37 offices nationwide. 

RS&H is organized into six, client-focused programs, each with its own staff of engineers, 
planners, architects, environmental scientists, and technical support personnel. Clients 
are served by teams of specialists selected for the expertise and experience they can 
provide in specific areas of interest. These practices are: 

" Transportation 
" Public Infrastructure 
" Aerospace and Defense 
» Aviation 
» Corporate and Commercial 
» Education, Health and Science 

RS&H remains on the leading edge of design and delivery technology. Each office is 
equipped with the latest telecommunication and computer-aided equipment and is linked 
to other offices through local- and wide-area networks. By continually investing in the 
technical and professional development of the firm's staff and equipment, RS&H assures 
clients that they will be working with trained and informed professionals using the most 
advanced technology available 

ENR 

Southeast 
_'\I ,_",~" "~"" ,. '-"'I_ ........ n.. __ ... ", ... ~ ,,,. 

RS&H was named as 
the 2013 Southeast 
Design Firm of the 

Year by ENR. 

RS&H has developed a reputation for client-focused success by providing quality professional service and design excellence. 
The RS&H mission statement commits to satisfy our clients' facilities and infrastructure needs based upon core values of: 

» Integrity 
» Quality Service 
» Business Success 
» Valuing Associates 

Please see the following tabbed section for the RS&H Team's Organizational Chart and Standard Form 330 

RS&H CREDENTIALS AND LICENSURE 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
I;l E:t'l.A n.~'f P-l f OF IJilS1Nti.:o !t /I NO N t tlF€!'HifQNAI.. Rf.GUbJil ION 

E1QMD tw I,A~jP~I:AI'E Afllj:'1lnecTUAt: 

REYNOLDS SMITH AND HillS INC 
10748 OF.ERV\QOD PARK BlVD SOUTH 
JACKSONVILl.E fl J225&09D1 

RICK SCOTT 
GOVERNOR 

BStH. 
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DISPLAY AS REQUIRED BY LAW 

~~~ 
~<\S 
5!Wl 

KEN LAWSON 
SECRETARY 

State ():f Florida 
Board ot Profe~sional Engineers 

.' Auesrs thor 
Reynolds,Smith And Hills, Inc. 

H3PI:: 
''.l~~ 

is outhoriud under the pl'uyhions or Scit,on f.Q~.!' , f1or,jdO StotUt~. to offer engineering service! 
to the public through a Profe.uioHal Engineer. dilly Ilcc;,rt~ "n,1ot o,opter 471. Florida Statutes. 
£Xpirolion:1l28l2015 '.\"~ii\ ~ .. ~Uc;.No: 
Audit No, 218201S021R~ Certificate or Au,horrmflon )620 
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STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION 

BOARD OF ARCHITECTURE & INTE RIOR DESIGN 

REYNOLDS SMITH &. HILLS INC 
10748 DEERWOOD PARK (lLVO S_ 
JACKSONVILLE. FL 32256 

Riel< SCOTT 
GOV[:RNOR 

IssueD OLI12:201:. SEor LI1021:.:1l000nl 

DrSPLA'( AS RI:OUIf"!ED BY LA'N 
KEN L.AWSO~ 
SECRETARV 

State of Florida 

'~"" ',om ,,~::::~:~::,~~c~t:~:, AND ,j lJO'lll !Hiti ClO:t.'lB 

ACfI 6177795 STATE OF FLORIDA 

d j .. :;:?IIJ1,'''lt!'''·'':'· ''SI.':olilptlU .. ~A )4 .m", ....... g .. ,./f .... ;. 
DEPARTHf!NT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION 

~OARD OF PROFESSIONAL GEOLOGISTS SEan L12062e0091& , 

r.:rcr.H!l1! mHl 

INC. is a corporation organized under the laws orthc State of Florida .• filed on 
Deccmber 2X, 1989, cJTcclive December J I, 1989, 

The document number of this corpomlioll is L3S717. 

r further L:crlify that said tOlvoration has paiJ llll fees dllc this office through 
December 31. 2013. lh:.H ils most I teent <llHJlntl fl!POLiilll1ifonn bU5ines~ report 
was filt.:d on Jaml;]!) 29, 20IJ, and its status is active 

( rurth~r <.:erliry lhat suit! cllrpon.llion has not filed Articles ofDissolulion. 

RS&8 
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Gi\'rtl lil/der till' baud and 'ht! 
Gn:tJl Seal o/tiu! Stille 0/ F!u,.ida 
of TallaltlJ.,·.'·I~r., thl: Capital, Ihis i.'i 
I"~ TWt!II~I' uilldll duy '}/ Jamwr); 
UII] 

~ 
Secretary of State 

,\u lilu llg,IIOIlIDl CC7=.~""12:;;"':;;,"'''''--------' 

To BUlht'u.icOIh.' Ihi~ ccrliOcall'.' hill]u,: r(.lInll in\:: ~ih',l"II(cr tilili 

l
ID, lIeo lhl'n folio'" tht instructions displltyrd 

hnllS:!I ... nlr.$llnbil.fJI~!rl'r':lIlI/"1\'CI".hfllll 

'1'f1e OJ;QI.QCY nOBD1EOG 
ltaQCd . 1)olaw In CBRJ';IFI.BD 
t!nd.u.c t..L" ~~ovio.lD"a r:U. Chapter 04jg2 r~. 
Ibcp.l.r.ar::l~Jl da!:tu .lIrr. ll. :2014 • 

.REYNOLDS, SMITH AND }lILLS, .INC. 
l07U DEER~100D P.f.R.K BLVD sourH 
JACICSONVILLE FL J2256 

RICIt SCOTT 
GOVERNOR DISPlAY.PoS REOUIRED BY LAW 

STATE OF flORIDA 

KEN LAWSON 
SECRETARY 

DEPARTMENT Of BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION 
BOARD OF ARCHJTEClURE & ItlTERJOR DESIGN 

,,'3)JOI!!II'lli. 
~A I 

'h.,r.TEnlOfl OI!$lG~1 CORPORATIQN 
II,...., below IS CeRTlI'IED 
Under tho Qnw~ Qt Cli:l)p~(:.f 41 \ FS 
e...,..-rtl lK)fl 0.:..1::1. f:1'::1l2U, 2015 

ReYNOLDS SMiTH &·HILLS INC 
10748 OEER\NOOD PARK BLVD: S. 
JACKSONVILLE: Fl32256 

RICK SCOTT 
GOVERNOR 

ISSUED". 0:Z:12i201:3 S£Q .... Ll;!OZI~COO('II~J 

DISPLAY AS REQUIRED BY LAW 
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2-2. OFFICE LOCATIONS 
The work will be performed in our company headquarters, located in Jacksonville, Florida, with support from our seven other 
Florida offices. The majority of RS&H's projects are supported by multiple offices and our associates are able to work in any 
office or the field based on project requirements. Our subconsultant, Erin L Deady, PA, has an office located in Lantana, 
Florida, and Zyscovich, Inc., headquartered in Miami, has three other offices in South Florida to support project efforts. 
Figure 1 shows the RS&H Team's convenient office locations. 

RS&H RS&HMiami RS&HTampa 
Jacksonville 6161 Blue Lagoon 1715 North 
10748 Deerwood Drive, Westshore 
Park Boulevard S Suite 200 Boulevard, 
Jacksonville, FL Miami, FL Suite 500 

Tampa, FL 

RS&H Merritt Erin L. Deady, Zyscovich, Inc. 
Island PA 100 N. Biscayne, 
115 Alma 1111 Hypoluxo 27th Floor 
Boulevard, Road, Suite 207 Miami, FL 
Suite 101 Lantana, FL 
Merritt Island, FL 

IlStH. 
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RS&H 

Zyscovitch, Inc. 

Erin Deady, PA 

RS&H Fort RS&H Ft Myers RS&H Orlando 
Lauderdale 8211 College 1000 Legion 
3125 West Parkway, Place, 
Commercial Suite 143 Suite 800 
Boulevard, Fort Myers, FL Orlando, FL 
Suite 130 
Ft Lauderdale, FL 

Zyscovich, Inc. Zyscovich, Inc. Zyscovich, Inc. 
500 Australian The Edison Center 100 S. Court 
Avenue, 2709 Swamp Avenue, 
Suite 634 Cabbage Court, 3rd Floor 
West Palm Beach, Suite 100 Orlando, FL 
FL 
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2-3. FAMILIARITY WITH PERMITTING 
RS&H and its team of sub-consultants, Zyscovich, Inc. and Erin L. Deady, PA, have extensive experience working with 
permitting agencies and procedures in Miami-Dade County. 

RS&H has worked closely with the Miami-Dade County Office of Sustainability (OOS) in the past, working to integrate 
sustainability and accessibility policies and procedures into the County's capital improvement processes. As part of this 
project, RS&H conducted surveys and interviews with department heads and project managers from 14 units of County 
government, including the Office of Capital Improvements (OCI), Miami-Dade Transit, Water and Sewer Department (WASD), 
General Services Administration (GSA), Solid Waste Management (SWM) , Public Housing, Public Works, Libraries, etc. RS&H 
thoroughly researched the County's policies and procedures relating to the sustainability of its building and infrastructure 
projects and compared them to best practices from across the country. The resulting Sustainable Capital Improvement 
Process Guidelines and Recommendations directs planning, design, and construction of high-performance buildings and 
infrastructure in the County 

The RS&H Project Manager, Ben Moore, and Miami-Dade County's Sustainability Program Manager, Patricia Gomez­
Acevedo, have gone on to author two journal articles on the project (Moore, B. and Gomez, P (2013). Policy to Process: 
Miami-Dade's Sustainable Buildings Program , Proceedings of the World Energy Engineering Conference, Chapter 138; 
Gomez, P and Moore, B. (2014). Miami-Dade Moving Forward, Sustainable Buildings Program. Strategic Planning for 
Energy and the Environment, 33(3)). 

As part of the development of a government and community-wide greenhouse gas inventory for the Village of Pinecrest, 
RS&H worked with OOS, Miami-Dade Transit, and WASD to obtain data on emissions from the Village's share of County 
transportation and water/wastewater treatment services. The information was incorporated into Pinecrest's community-wide 
inventory. 

RS&H envisions leveraging its existing relationships with principal staff at Miami-Dade County to efficiently develop the city­
wide inventory for Coral Gables. 

In addition to direct sustainability project experience, RS&H and its sub-consultants have conducted numerous engineering, 
architecture, planning, and environmental science projects in Miami-Dade County throughout their respective histories. The 
team has become well acquainted with the various permitting agencies and processes in the county related to municipal 
buildings and infrastructure, including but not limited to the following permitting agencies and permits: 

RSwH 
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" Class I Permit (Construction Activities in, on, over or upon Tidal Waters or Coastal Wetlands) 
" Class II Permit (Stormwater Discharges to Surrace Waters) 
» Class III Permit (Construction Activities within Non-Tidal Canals or Areas under the 

Direct Controt 01 Miami-Dade County) 
» Class IV Permit (Construction Activities in Freshwater Wetlands) 
» Class V Permit (Temporary Dewatering) 

» Class V Injection Wells Permit 
» Construction Generic Permit (NDPES) 
» Environmental Resource Permit 
» Sovereign Submerged Lands Easement 

» Environmental Resource Permit 
» Right-ol-Way Occupancy Permit 
» Water Use (Dewatering or Irrigation) Permit 

» Section 404 Dredge and Fill Permit 
» Section 408 Approval 

» Bridge Permit 

City of Coral Gables I Sustainabilily Master Plan 
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2-4. FINANCIAL RECORDS 
DUNS NUMBER 
61-338-7281 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
RS&H's D&B Rating is 4A2. Please see the following consolidated financial statements for 2013. 

BStH 
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REYNOLDS, SMITH AND HILLS, INC. 

Consolidated Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year 2013 
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J. 
PWC 
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Independent Certified Publie AccounLants Report 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of March 29, 2013 and March 30, 

2012, and th e related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and of cash 
flows for the years then ended. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits iu accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves peliorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounti.ng policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fair1y, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. and its subsidiaries at of March 29, 2013 

and March 30, 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance .,...jth accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

June 11, 2013 

f··········u ................ n ... ~ .. __ H.~ ••.••••• • - • •••• • • - . , • • •• • ~ . ..... ... . ..... . . .... ............. . ........ . ....... . .. . - •••• ~ .- •• • •• • -- -.~-....... . .... ...... . -... - . . . ....... , •• ,.# ....... - ... ~ ••• - ••. •• • ,- ••.•• •. -.- .• -

I'ri(;(;tIJ(/ler/U)//S(!Co(J)JCJ),s [,LP, Bal1k of America Building, 50 North Lalita Street; Suite 3000, .Jacksonville, FL 32202 
T: (904) :3540671, F: (904) 366 3678, www.pwc.com/us 
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REYNOLDS, SMITH AND HILLS, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED 

in IhOllSllllds, c:xccpt per slwre dala 

Gross revenue 

Subcontr8ct 81ld other direct costs 

Net service revenue 

Cost of services 

Gross profit 

Selling, general and administrative expenses 

Oper8ting income 

Other income (expense): 
Interest and other income 
Interest expense 

Income before income taxes 

Income tax expense 

Net income 

Other comprehensive income 

Comprehensive income 

Weighted average common shares outstanding 

Earnings per common share 

$ 

$ 

$ 

March 29. 

201) 

152,700 $ 

44,195 

108,505 

36,804 

71,701 

64,737 

6,964 

47 
(I R 11 

6,830 

2,263 

4,567 

4,567 $ 

355 

12.86 $ 

March 30, 

2012 

135,902 

35,468 

100,434 

33,856 

66,578 

61,928 

4,650 

66 
( 121) 

4,595 

1,805 

2,790 

----
2,790 

400 

6.98 

See accompanying notes 10 consolidated linancial statements. 
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REYNOLDS, SMITH AND HILLS, INC, 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

ill thousands 

ASSETS 

CUlTent assets: 
Cash and equivalents 
Short-term investments 
Aecollnts receivable, net 
Unbilled service revenue 
Deferred income taxes 
Prepaid expenses and other cun ent assets 

Total CUtTcnt assets 

Property and equipment, net 

Goodwill 

Deferred incollle taxes 

Othet assets 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Unearned service revenue 
CUtTent portion of long-term dcbt 

Totol current liabilitics 

Long-term debt, excluding curren! portion 

Deferred income taxes 

Other liabilities 

Totolliabilities 

Shareholders' Equity: 
Corrunon Stock, $.01 par volue, 4,000 shares authorized; 

353 and 360 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 
Paid-in capital 
Notes receivable fi'olll employee stock purchases 
Retained eamings 

Total shareholders' equity 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements, 
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March 29, March 30, 
2013 2012 

$ 9,764 $ 10,542 
3,290 2,010 

22,749 13,076 
16,203 19,207 

592 285 
862 648 

53,460 45,768 

3,226 2,981 

1,601 1,657 

78 

267 246 

$ 58,554 $ 50,730 

$ 10,238 $ 8,674 
6,026 2,823 
5,536 5,256 
2,064 1,769 

23,864 18,522 

2,472 3,474 

19 

2,321 1,872 

28,676 23,868 

4 4 

(1,13 I) (651) 
31,005 27,509 

29,878 26,862 

$ 58,554 $ 50,730 
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REYNOLDS, SMITH AND HILLS, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

COlllmon Stock 

Paid-In 
in Iholls~llds Shares Amollnt Caeil"1 

BALANCE, April 1,20 II 416 $4 $ 

Issuance of common stock 12 836 

Repurchase of cOllunon stock (68) (836) 

Payment on notes receivable 

Net income 

Cash dividends 

BALANCE, March 30, 20 I 2 360 'I 

Issuance of cOlTunon stock 20 1,390 

Repurchase of common stock (27) (J ,390) 

Payment on notes receivable 

Net income 

Cash dividends 

BALANCE, March 29, 20 \3 353 $4 $ 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Notes receivuble 
from employee Retained 
slock E"rchascs Earninr;s TOlal 

$ (635) $31,145 $30,514 

(432) 404 

35 (6,016) (6,817) 

381 381 

2,790 2,790 

(410) (410) 

(651) 27,509 26,862 

(842) 548 

43 (894) (2,241) 

319 319 

4,567 4,567 

(1772 (177) 

$(\,131) $31,005 $29,878 

City of Coral Gables I Sustainability Master Plan 
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REYNOLDS, SMITH AND HILLS, INC. 
cONsor,mATED STATEMENTS OF CASH fLOWS 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED 

il t thuLlSJIIllls 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 

cash flrovided by (used in) oflerating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred income taxes 
Stock issued as compensation 
Defen ed rent clwrges and other 
Bad debt expense 

ChHnge in operating assets and liabilities: 
Accounts receivable ilnd unbiJlccl service revenue 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Accounts payable ilnd accrued expenses 
Uneflllled service revenue 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activilies 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Capital expenditnres 
Collections of notes receivable 
Maturities of short term investments 
Purchases of short-term investments 

Net cash used in investing activities 

rINANClNG ACTIVITIES: 
Repayments of long-term debt 
Proceeds fi'om issuHnce of common stock 
Proceeds /i'om exercise of stock options 
Repurchase of common stock 
Dividends paid 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net decrease in cash and equivalents 

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and equiValents Ht end oryear 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE or CASH PAYMENTS 
MADE FOR: 

Interest 
Income taxes 

NON-CASH INVESTING AND rlNANCJNG ACTIVJTlES: 
Assets acquired through capital leases 
Notes received in stock sale transactions 
Notes/liabilities issued in stock purchase tlansactions 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Ma/ ch 29, March JO, 
201 ) 2012 

4,567 $ 2,790 

1,480 1,502 
(210) 165 

75 108 
440 (100) 

42 

(6,669) (4,500) 
(235) (298) 

4,767 (474) 
280 (2,217) 

4,495 (2,982) 

(505) (1,557) 
319 383 

2,210 525 
(3,490} 

(1,466) (649) 

(1,927) (1,201) 
404 204 

69 121 
(2, (76) (3,580) 

(177) (410} 

(3,807) (4,866) 

(778) (8,497) 

10,542 19,039 

9,764 $ 10,542 

181 $ 117 
2,688 2,340 

1,220 $ 
842 432 

65 3,267 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial st<1tcmcnts. 

RS&8 
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RSrH. 
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N 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Business and Presentation - Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. (the "Company") is a 
professional service firm operating in the engineering and architectural design services 
industry with offices throughout the United States. The Company provides a full rangc of 
architectural, engineering, planning and environnnental services. 

These consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes include the accounts of the 
Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Intercompany transactions and balances have 
been eliminatcd. 

Fiscal Year - The Company's fiscal ycar is a 52 or 53-week period ending on the Friday 
nearest to March 3 J. fiscal years 2013 and 2012, which ended March 29, 2013 and March 
30,2012, respectively, include 52 weeks. 

Use of Estimates - The preparation of consolidated fmancial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally acccpted in the United States requires management to make 
estimates ancl assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and thc 
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the repOlied period. Actual results could 
differ from thosc estimates. 

Revenue Recognition - Revenue from contract services is recognized on the percentage-of­
completion method. Rcvenue is recorded as costs arc incuned, and profit is recognized on 
each contract based on the percentage that incurred costs bear to estimated total costs. Any 
loss on contracts is rceognized in full when it is foreseeable and can be reasonably 
determined. 

The Company incurs subcontract and other direct costs (ollt-of-pocket expenses) some of 
which are passed through directly to its clients. The Company believcs that revenue 
excJ uding subcontract and othcr direct costs, more accurately reflects the amounts earned for 
activitics performed by tbe Company. Accordingly, tbe Company reports such costs as a 
reduction of gross revenue resulting in net service revenue. 

Unbilled service revcnuc rcpresents revenues recognized in excess of amounts billed on 
contracts in process. Unearned service revenuc represents billings in excess of revenues 
recognized on contracts in process. Unbilled service revenues which will not be collected 
during the next year arc not significant. 

Cash and Eguiv,llents - Cash and equivalents consist of all liquid investments with original 
mat uri ties at the date of purebase of tlu'ee months or Jess. 
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RS&]I 
IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 

Sh0l1-Term Investments - Short-term investments consist of certificates of deposit with a 
maturity of six months at the date of purchase and variable rate securities. These investments 
are recorded at fai I' value and any unrealized holding gains and losses, net of relate tax effect, 
are excluded hom earnings and arc rcportcd as a scparate component of other comprehensive 
income until realized. The Company has dctermined that the fair value of its sh0l1-tenll 
investmcnts fall within Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. 

Property and Equipment - Properly and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation. Dcpreciation is determined using the straight-line method over the cstimated 
useful lives ofthc related assets, ranging from three to ten years. 

Goodwill- Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets of 
acquired businesses. The Company cloes not amorti/',e goodwill, but assesses the 
rccovcrabi lity of goodwill at least annually. Based on historical operating losses incurred by 
an operating division, an impairment charge of$56,000 was recorded in fiscal year 2013. No 
impairment charges were recorded for fisc;al year 2012. 

Income Taxes - The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax 
return. Deferrcd income taxes result [rom temporary differences which arise from certain 
transactions being repoL1ed in different pcriods for financial statement purposes than for tax 
purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using an asset and liability 
approach and arc based OIl differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets 
and liabilities using tax rates in effect when the differences arc expected to reverse. 

Tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return are subjcet to a rccognition 
threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statements. The tax benefit from an 
ullcel1ain tax position may only be recognizcd if it is "more likely than not" the tax position 
will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based upon the technical merits of 
the position. The Company has determined there is no impact Oil the financial statements for 
fiscal years 2013 and 2012. 

Eamings Per Common Share -- Earnings per common share is net income dividcd by the 
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. 

Stock Options -- The Company uses fair value recognition to account for stock options. 

Fair Value Measurement - Measuring fair value is based on inputs that market pa11icipants 
would use to detcrmine fair vallie of an asset or liability. A hierarchy of three levels of input 
may be used to measure fair value. I ,evel I inputs include quoted prices in active markets for 
identical instruments , Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar instll.lmcnts and 
observable inputs. Level 3 inputs include unobservable inputs based on little or no market 
activity lind which are significant to the fair value ofthe instL'llment. There is no effect on the 
Company's consolidated financial statements. Only cash and equivalents and short-term 
investments, which are Levell securitics, fall undcr the scopc ofthis guidance. 
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Reclassifications - Certain amounts in the prior fiscal year have been reclassified to conform 
with the presentation adopted in the current fiscal year. 

2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Accounts receivable consists of tile following (in thousands): 

Rcccivables currently due 
Contract retentions 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 

March 29, 
2013 

$21,686 
1,363 

23,049 
(300) 

$22,749 

March 30, 
2012 

$12,398 
978 

13,376 
----D..QQ) 
$13,076 

Contract retentions represents amounts billed to clients for services performed that, by the 
underlying contract tenm, will not be paid until the projects meet contractual milestones, 
or are at or near completion. Balances could be outstanding for several months or years. 

3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands) : 

Fumiture and equipment 
Leasehold improvements 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

March 29, 
2013 

$9,693 
1,240 

10,933 
(7,70'D 
$3.22!i 

March 30, 
2012 

$7,991 

~ 
9,208 

(6,227) 
$2,9Rl 

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $1 ,480,000 and 
$1,502,000 for fiscal years 2013 ,md 2012, respectively. The Company removed fully 
depreciated equipment of $2,785,000 in fiscal year 2012. None was removed in fiscal 
year 2013. 
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4. ACCRUED EXPENSES 

Accrued expenses consist ofthe following (in thousands): 

Accrued payroll 
Accrued vacation pay 
Accrued incentive compensation 
Warranty reserve 
Other 

5. DEBT 

March 29, 
2013 

$1,335 
1,265 
2,878 

500 

~ 
$6,026 

Long-term debt consists of the following (in thousands): 

Uncollateralized notes payable to related 
patiies at 3.25%, maturing through 2017 

Capital lease obligations 

Less cutTent portion 
Total long-term debt 

March 29, 
2013 

$3,474 
1,062 
4,536 

(2.064) 
.$2.472 

March 30, 
2012 

$1,242 
1,289 

250 
42 

$2,823 

March 30, 
2012 

$5,243 

5,243 
( 1.769) 
"]/\7l1 

• Firm Qualifications 

The Company has in place a line of credit that provides for borrowings up to $3 million as of 
March 29, 2013, with interest at LIBOR plus 2.8%. As of March 29, 2013, there were no 
bOITowings outstanding under the line of credit. The loan agreement, which is scheduled for 
renewal December 2013, contains financial covenants. The Company was in compliance 
with all covenants at March 29, 2013 and March 30, 2012. Substantially all of the 
Company's tangible assets are pledged as collateral pursuant to the loan agreement. 
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Amltlalmaturities of long-term debt during the next five fiscal years are (in thousands) : 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
Thereafter 

Notes 
Payable 
$1,769 

569 
568 
568 

Capitnl 
Lcascs 
$ 295 

279 
257 
175 
55 

__ I 

U,Q.62 

6. INCOME TAXES 

RStH 
IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 

The provision for income taxes consists of the following (in thousands): 

2013 2012 
Current: 

Federal $2,015 $1,381 
State 458 257 

Deferred: 
Federal (188) ISO 
State (22) __ 1_7 

lUi~_ $J,~Q.~ 

The differences between the provision for income taxes and income taxes computed using 
the U.S. Federal stalutory rate of thirty-four percenl are as follows (in thousands): 

Amount computed using statutory rate 
Increase (decrcase) in taxcs rcsulting from: 

State ineomc taxes, net of fcdcral bencfit 
Meals and entertainment 
Domestic production activities deduction 
Research and development credit 
Other 

II 

2013 
$2,322 

279 
158 
(87) 

(413) 
__ 4 

;!i],l&J 

2012 
$1,562 

190 
175 

(141) 

__ 1_9 

$L§Q~ 

City of Coral Gables I Sustainability Masler Plan 
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The types of temporary diffcrcnccs and theirrclatcd tax effects which create defelTed taxes 
are summarized as follows (in thousands): 

Gross deferred tax assets: 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 
Allowance for warranty claims 
Excess rental expense over payments 
Accruals not currenlly deductible 

Gross deferred tax liabilities: 
Excess tax over book depreciation 
Goodwill 
Prepaid assets 

Deferred current tax asset, net 
DefelTed non-CUlTent tax asset, net 
DefelTed non-CUlTent tax liability, net 

March 29, 
2013 

$114 
190 
230 
280 
814 

(37) 
18 

(222) 
(241) 
$573 

$592 

--.ill) 
$573 

March 30, 
2012 

$114 
95 
52 

246 
507 

42 
36 

(222) 
--.O.i1) 

$363 

$285 
78 

$363 

As of March 29, 2013, the Company determined, based on the history of prior taxable 
earnings and its expectations for the futW'e, taxable income will more likely than not be 
sufficient to fully realize deferred tax assets and, accordingly, a valuation allowance is not 
required. 

7. LEASES 

RStR 
IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 

The Company leascs celiain office space, equipment and vehicles. While most of tile leases 
are operating leases, certain equipment is leased under capital leases. As leases expire, it can 
be expected that, in the normal course of business, celiain leases will be renewed or replaced. 

Rent expense for fiscal years 2013 and 2012 was $4,790,000 and $5,000,000, respectively. 
Real estate taxes, insurancc, maintenance and operating expenses applicable to certain leased 
property are obligations of the Company under the lease agreements. 

Future minimum payments required under operating leases arc: 2014-$4,000,000; 2015-
$3,660,000; 2016-$3,220,000; 2017-$2,820,000; 2018-$2,300,000; lhereafLer-$] ,550,000. 
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8. CONTINGENCIES 

Thc Company is subject to lawsuits that arise in the nonnal course of busincss involving 
claims typical ofthose filed against the engineering and architectural professions. Thcse suits 
primarily allege professional errors and/or om issions. The Com pany mai ntai ns pro fcssional 
liability insurance which insures against risk within the policy limits. There can be no 
assurances that the policy limits are sufficient to cover all claims. There are no legal 
proceedings pending or, to the knowledge ofthe CompclllY, threatened against the Company 
which are not reserved for or covered by insurance which would have a material adverse 
effect on the Company's financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. 

Revenues from the Florida Department ofTranspOliation account for approximately 35% and 
30% of consolidated revenues for each of the fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively. The 
loss of this customer could materially and adversely affect the Company's financial position, 
results of operations, or cash flows. 

9. EMPLOYEE BENEfIT PLAN 

The Company sponsors a defined contribution plan that qualifies under Section 401 (Ie) ofthc 
Internal Revenue Code. The Plan allows pmiicipating employees to contribute up to 100% of 
their eamed compensation to the plan, subject to ERISA contribution limits. The Company 
contributes 50% of the first 6% of base compensation that a participant contributes to the 
Plan. For fiscal years 2013 and 2012, the Company contributed $1,585,000 and $1,500,000, 
respectively. Participants in the plan have the option to invest plan assets in the Company's 
common stock. At March 29, 2013, the Plan held a total of67,000 shares of the Company's 
COlmnon stock in trust for plan participants, which represents 7% of Plan assets. 

10. SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENTS 

The Company's Key Associate Shareholders' Agreement which applies to associates 
purchasing shares of Company stock after February 2008 (exclusive of shares purchased in 
the Company's 401 k plan) provides that shareholders 1) may not sell any shares withollt first 
offering them to the Company, 2) that the Company is obligated to purchase shares owned by 
an associate who dies while employed by the Company, and 3) that the Company has the 
option to purchase shares from any associate whose employment with the Company 
terminates. All shares are to be purchased at the then appraised value. As of March 29, 2013, 
there were 40,000 shares of Company stock covered by the Key Associatc Shareholders' 
Agreement. 

The Company's Participating Shareholders' Agreemcnt, which covcrs six of the Company's 
major shareholders, provides that each shareholder may not scll any shares without first 
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offering them to the Company, and that the Company is obligated to purchase shares owned 
by a shareholder who dies while employed by the Company. In fiscal year 2013, the 
agreement was amended to provide that upon a shareholder reaching age GO, the shareholder 
has the right to require thc Company to purchase their shares (a "put") within the following 
90 days. If the shareholder does not exercise their "put" at age 60, then upon the shareholder 
reaching age 62 the Company has the option to purchase all their shares (exclusive of shares 
held in the Company's 401 Ie plan) within the following 90 days (the "call"). If the Company 
does not exercise its "call", then the shareholder has another "put" to require the Company to 
purchase their shares within the following 90 days. 

If the Company purchases shares when a shareholder reaches age 60 or 62, then the 
shareholder has the option to 1) sell all shares for their then appraised value, with 20% of the 
purchase price paid in cash and the balance paid in five equal annual installments, as 
evidenced by a five-year promissory note bearing interest at prime rate, or 2) may sell 1 /61h of 
the total shares immediately and an equal number of shares in each of the following five 
years for a price equal to the appraised value at the time of each sale, all payable in cash. 

In fiscal year 20 12, the Company's President and ChiefOperati ng Officer reached age 60 and 
the Company exercised its options to purchase his shares. The shareholder elected to sell all 
shares at the cutTent price of $93.00 per share. He sold 38,000 shares for $3,551,000 
($710,000 paid in cash and $2,841,000 by a 5-year promissory note). 

In fiscal year 2010, an Executive Vice President reached age 60 and the Company exercised 
its option to purchase his 42,000 shares. The shareholder elected to sell 1/61h of his total 
shares then and an equal number of shares in each of the following five years at the appraised 
value at the time of each sale. In fiscal year 2013, however, the Parlicipating Shareholders' 
Agreement was amended to provide that the annual stock purchase scheduled for fiscal year 
2014 be deferred until fiscal year 2015, and the final stock purchase scheduled for liscal year 
2015 be deferred until fiscal year 2016. 

As of March 29, 2013, there were 70,000 shares of Company stock covered by the 
Patiicipating Shareholders' Agreement, exclusive of the two annual purchases referred to 
above. The following represents the fiscal years in which the remaining four shareholders 
reach age 60 (the earliest age at which they can exercise their stock "put") and the number of 
shares cutTently owned by them: 

Achieve 
Age 60 
2015 
2016 
2018 
2021 

Number 
of Shares 

7,000 
24,000 
28,000 
11,000 

14 

City 01 Coral Gables I Sustainabilily Master Plan 
RFO 2013.11 .27 



• .' • '. • :' ••••• - '. - - • - • J • '" • Section II • Firm Oualificalions 

II. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

The Company's DefelTed Compensation Plan provides a defclTed paymcnllo <.:ert<lin major 
shareholders equal to 10% orthe purchase pri<.:e orall shares of Company stock sold to the 
Company pursuant to the Participating Shareholders' Agreement. Payment is to be made in 
five equal annual installments commencing on the later of the recipient reaching age 65 or 
one year after retirement from the Company. The Company accrucd dcfcrred payments of 
$65,000 and $426,000 for fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively, and charged 
Shareholders' Equity. 

12. STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS 

BSr#L 
IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 

The Company has incentive and stock-based compensation plans under which selected 
cmployees rcceive shares of stock. The number of shares of co 111 111 on stock issued to 
employees and directors for fiscal years 2013 ancl 2012 was 1,000 and J ,000, respe<.:tively. 
Incentive stock options generally are granted with <Ill exercise price equal to 100% oflhe fair 
value ofa share of common stock on the date of grant, have no more than a 1 O-year term and 
vest within five years from the date of grant. 

A summary of the stock options and tbe related transactions is as follows : 

Outstanding, beginning of year 
Exercised 
Forfeited 
Outstanding, end of year 

Exercisable 

2013 

Shares 
4,000 

(3,000) 

1.000 

_l.Q00 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 
$19 

19 

lli 

2012 

Shares 
X,OOO 

(4,000) 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 
$IS 

18 

The following table summarizes the status of stock options outstanding at March 29,20 J 3: 

Range of 
Exercise 

Prices 

$19-$20 

~tions u!standing 
Weighted 

1,000 

Average Weighted 
Remaining 
Contractual 
Life (years) 

<1 

15 

Average 
Exercise 

Price 

$19 

Options Exl.ll'l:isnble 

1,000 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

$19 
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The appraised value of the Company's common stock IS determined annually by an 
independent valuation film. 

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Company has notes receivable due from employees for the purchase of Company stock 
totaling $1,131,000 and $651,000 at March 29, 2013 and March 30, 2012, respectively, The 
loans, which arc collateralized with the Company's common stock, earn interest at 2% to 
5.3% per year and mature through fiscal year 2020. Principal and interest are paid biweekly. 

The Company has notes paY<1ble due to current and past employees for the repurchase of 
Company stock totaling $3,474,000 and $5,243,000 at March 29, 2013 and March 30, 2012, 
respectively. 

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

B8&H 
IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 

As required, the Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date the financial 
statements were available for issuance, June 11,2013, and no sLich events were noted. 
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2-5. PROOF OF ABILITY TO OBTAIN INSURANCE 

DATE (MMIOD/YYYYj 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 12/2/20 13 
A 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MAnER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW, THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: Ir the certiricate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed, Ir SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the policy . certain policies may require an endorsemenL A statement on this certificate does not conrer rights to the 
certificate holder in lieu of such endorscmenl(s}. 

PRODUCE~ 

Harden and Associates 
501 Riverside Avenue, Su ite 1000 
Jacksonville FL 32202 

INSURED 

Reynolds Smith and Hills Inc 
Suite 300 
10748 DeelWood Park Bvd S 
Jacksonville FL 32256 

;' •. :r~ , Ciilil.le'lkll! 
L;:Jg':~. ,.11 9()J!.35-Gm35'-______ ~_L~...,rt""l"_'" .. o!lI,.,!l!lJO"'"."_'G,,31=.C!1,,3.!.!O,,2 __ 1 
~~@~ -<; levtf1e@ll~rdll.nlnStGtllJ:ollL _______ ---, ____ _ 

INSURERIS1AFFORDING COVERAGE ___ _ NtoJC • 

__________ I""N"'S"'U"'R-="":.:..::..,A ' ·c;r.~rlef Oak FjreJ0 s.ura.""'''''-'o<'''----------1f'''''''-''''--_ 1 

REYNO·1 INSURER B Tri.!YeJers Ploru:rtyLCasua!ly..G.Q, ______ --l'"''''''-''-''-__ 1 
INSURER c phoenix Insurance ComR.ally ________ r,5.6.2;J, 
,""UREf> D Lexinglon Insurance Compa'IY____ L9~ 

INSURER E : 

IN5UN(U r 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER'1086340351 .. REVISION NUMBER' 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS 

lUSH I"uut ~b' ':;~M~T#~ JYcIJCY EXP ---
tT~ TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR POLICY NUMBER " 'r.tIOn/VYYY LIMITS 

A GENERAL LIABILITY P6304711N755COF13 12612013 12612014 EACH OCCURRENCE li1 .000.000 - ~~~~~~E~:~~~ilCll ~ ~~MERCIAl GENERAL LlAOILITY 51 .000.000 

__ 1 CLAIMS MADE ~ OCCUR MED EXP (Anyone person) - '10,000 
X No Deductible PERSONAL B. ADV INJURY $1 .000.000 

GENERAL AGGREGATE '2000.000 -

~TLA~71~'M'T ~nPER: PRODUCTS · COMPIOP AGG r¥.Q.QO,ono 
POLICY X J~4@: LOC 

, 
A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY P6104621 M601 COF13 J/28/2013 

r'~" 
tE~~~LL" UMTI $I 000 0,20 ____ 

A BA3979R670 13CAG 12812013 12812014 
X ANY AUTO 130DILY INJURY (pef person) S 
I-

ALL OWNED .§. SCHEDULED BOOll'( INJURY (Per accident) S 
1- AUTOS _ AUTOS 

X HIRED AUTOS ~ ~3~O~WNED PROPERTY OAMACE. S 
I- . (I',,~oU_ - -- -

omp/Coll Oeducllble liSOOll000 

8 X UMBRElLA LlAB IX I OCCUR 
PSMCUP4 711 N755TIL 13 :;/2812013 1/2a120111 EACH OCCURRENCE S 10 000 000 -

EXCESS lIAB CLAIMS·MAOE AGGREGATE S la.oog 000 -
OED IX I r~ETENTIONS 10,000 • 

C WORKERS COMPENSATION pYVONUB5366B30713 121112013 1211/2014 X I :O~fI~Nsl 1
0m 

B AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y J N JUB915K337413 12/112013 21112014 ER 

~~~,~~~jMR~~~~r~~~~I~6~~;ECUTIVE EJ NJA 
E L. EACH ACCIDENT $.1..1.Q.P.D,pqO ____ 

(Mandatory in NH) E L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYE I $1 000000 
II yes, descnbe under 

E I I1ISFASF POLICY LIMIT Sl .0aO 000 DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS br.lnw 

D ProfessionalliabiliLy ~28395945 ")/28/2013 12612014 Per Claim Limit ,5,00.0,0.00 
wiLh Conlractors Pollution Llab Aggregale limit $10,000,000 
Claims Made; 1/1/42 Retro Date Retention S50,OOO 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS' VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Addihonal Rpmarks ScheiJule, if more space is required) 

For Proposal Purposes 

A Waiver or Transfer of Right 01 Recovery Against Olher in ravor of the cerlificate holder for General Liability 

·Cancellalion clause is 30 days except nonpayment of premium which is 10 days. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

For Proposa l Purposes 
10748 Dee lWood Park Blvd South 
Jacksonvill e FL 32256·0597 

CIINCE1. LATtON 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS, 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

~tfil 

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 

© 1988·2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

BSr-H. 
IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 

City 01 Coral Gables I Sustainability Master Plan 
RFQ 2013 11 27 



. . . '.~'" .' " . .. . .... .;" '. . .'. . '. . . Section If • Firm Oualifications 

2-6. PROPOSAL SUMMARY 
Please refer to Section H of the RS&H Team's SF 330. 

2-7. RELEVANT PROJECTS 
Please refer to Section F of the RS&H Team's SF 330 for detailed descriptions of several projects relevant to the City's 
interest in a Sustainability Management Plan. 

The Table below details reference information for five (5) projects . Please see the enclosed copies of the full report for 
each of these featured projects. 

Client 

NASA KSC 

Green Cove 
Springs 

BS&H. 

Description 

Sustainability Plan 

Climate Action Plan 

IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 

Address 

John F Kennedy 
Space Center, FL 

J Phone Dates 

I 
(321) 867-1599 

I 

i O'11 

I (904) 297-7500 2011-2012 

City of Coral Gables I Sustainability Master Plan 
RFO 2013.11 .27 

Value 

$45,000 

IOp,fioO 

$62,000 

1S3 1i!83a 

$20,000 
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PART I • CONTRACT·SPECIFIC QUALIFICATIONS 

A. CONTRACT INFORMATION 

1 TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and State' 

City of Coral Gables Sustainability Master Plan, Miami, Florida 
2 PUBLIC NOTICE DATE 3 SOLICITATION OR PROJECT NUMBER 

November 27,2013 RFQ 2013.11.27 
B. ARCHITECT·ENGINEER POINT OF CONTACT 

4 NAME AND TITLE 

Mike McCarthy, MBA, PG, LEED AP 
5. NAME OF FIRM 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
6 TELEPHONE NUMBER 7 FAXNUM8ER 8 EMAil ADDRESS 

(904) 256-2500 (904) 256-2503 mike.mccarthy@rsandh com 
C. PROPOSED TEAM 

(Complete this secUon for the prime contractor and all key subcontractors.) 

(Check) 

'" Z'" 9. FIRM NAME 10. ADDRESS 11 . ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT w w 
8

0 

'" 2;~ 0: ~~ Q. 
Co: "'>-

a. Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 10748 Deerwood Park Boulevard Project Manager; 
South, Jacksonville, FL 32256 Engineering; Planning • o CHECK IF BRANCH OFFICE 

Erin L. Deady, PA. 1111 Hypoluxo Road, Suite 207, Planning 
Lantana, FL 33462 

b. • 
o CHECK IF BRANCH OFFICE 

Zyscovich, Inc. 100 N. Biscayne Boulevard Planning 
27th Floor 

c. • Miami, FL 33132 

o CHECK IF BRANCH OFFICE 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 3125 West Commercial Boulevard Project Manager; 
Suite 130 Engineering; Planning 

d. • Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309 

~ CHECK IF BRANCH OFFICE 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 7007 Jefferson st NE Project Manager; 

• Suite A 15 Engineering; Planning 
e. 

Albuquerque, NM 87109 
~ CHECK IF BRANCH OFFICE 

D. ORGANIZATIONAL CHART OF PROPOSED TEAM lEI (Attached) 



Erin Deady, Esq. , AICP, LEED 
AP 3 

Frederick N. Jones, AICP , 
Grace Perodomo, AlA 2 

2 Zyscovich Inc. 
3 Erin L. Deady, PA 

Rick E. Chesser, PE 1 

' WilIiam"T.,Todd. p.~,~ 
~ CEM, LEED AP BO+C'" 

Daniel L. Briller, PE, 
LEED AP BD+C ' 

Timothy A. Whitley, PE, 
CxA, GGP, LEED A ' 

RECYCLING & WASTE REDUCTION 

Ben Chandler, PG, LEED AP I 

KimberlyA:Baier,:~o . j o-" 

LEED AP BD+C.' . 
Jason T. DiGuglielmo;, 

LEED AP':CIE.' 

'. . PROJECT MANAGER '. 

Mike McCarthy, MBA, PG, 
LEED AP 1 

: . RESOURCE CONSERVATION ' 

Scott W. Vockell, LEED AP , 

Nathan L. Stinnette' 

GREENHOUSE GAS INVENTORY 

Nathan L. Stinnette I 

. Ben J. Moore, Alep, LEED'Gk~' 

. Candace L Dor~~ LEEO\6j:d ". -~ . . .. 

Paul F. Hutchins, PhD, PE, 
CEM, LEED AP 1 

: LAND' USE AND DEVELOPMENT '; 

":,\ ii. ' 

Erin Deady, Esq .• AIGP, LEEO 
AP 3 

Trent Baughn, RA, AIGP 2 

Frederick N. Jones, AICP , 
Oarys Avila 2 

. EDUCATION AND OUTREACH:.;'. 

Bernard Zyscovich. FAIA 2 • . 

Mike McCarthy •. MBA, PG, 
". •..• . LEEDAP'. .. 

. :f;:rin Deady, Esq;; AICP. LEEO 

....... )<:... .: AP3 . ' 

Ben J: Moors, AIGP LEED GA 1 

: .. :1::1 i . t. r.TaITi\'''.''. 

Trent Baughn, RA, AICP 2 

Darys Avila 2. 



SECfION n SF 330 Part E Resumes 
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, E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THE CONTRACT · . '-.~ 
, (Complele one Section E for each key person.) ,'" . . . ,.':' 

12. NAME 13_ ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

Mike M,QCarthy, MBA, PG, 
LEED AP 

Project Manager, Education & 
Outreach 

*' TorAl b WITH CURRENT FIRM 

34 26 
15 FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Jacksonville, Florida 

16. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17 CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

MBA / Suslainability Prolessional Geologisl: FL, NC 
Bachelor 01 Science / Geological Sciences 

Prolessional Geologist FL, NC 
LEED AP 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publicalions, Organizalions. Training. Awards, elc) 

Mr. M,t;Carthy is a sustainability proressional and proressional geologist locused on integrating sustainable business practices into organization-wide operations. 
His award-winning local, national, and global sustainabilily programs engage the workforce and generate positive net rinancial returns and environmental and 
social benelits. His experience includes environmental consulting, remediation, and geological engineering. His extensive list 01 publications and presentations on 
surmounting the barriers to organizational sustainability and increasing sustainability awareness have been delivered to universities, cities, counties, industry trade 
groups, the Department of Defense, and international symposiums. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITlE AND LOCATION (Cily and State) (2) YEAR COMPlETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlO~; ;PlicablOI 
Votran's Integrated Sustain ability Plan, Volusia County Florida 

2010 

a. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Briel scope, size coSl, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [E] Check jf prOject performed wilh current firm 

Project Manager-Led development 01 a 10hg-term vision for sustainability lor operations, by identilying and prioritizing the projects that help realize indirect 
and direct economic returns and improve Votran's environmental performance. Scope: Facilitated a sustainability plan that addressed green procurement, 
lacility design, waste minimization and fuel, energy and water efiiciency while generating $1.7 million in net returns. In 2011, the Florida Public Trusl 
Association recognized the sustainability plan as the Most Innovative Project of the Year 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Sustain ability Plan, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~~ ;pli<.blel 

NASA Kennedy Space Center, Fl 2011 

b. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if pro;ecl performed with current firm 

Project Manager-Facilitated the development of KSC's integrated sustainability plan using principles 01 organizational dynamics to surmount barriers to 
implementing organization-wide sustainability initiatives. Mr M,t;Carthy and his team, in collaboration with KSC, developed a project-driven sustainabilily plan 
that integrates and motivates 18 business units through 200+ unique sustainability projects. The process included a sustainability workshop and lacililation 
of project devetopment and final plan preparation. In 2012, the NASA project leader and her team were awarded the NASA Blue Marble Award for the project. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Defense Commissary Agency (DeCAl. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~~ ;PliC.bIOI 

Global Environmental Management Systems 2012 
c. (3) BRIEF' DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, coSi. etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE @ Check if projcet performed wilh currenll1rm 

Project Manager-Collaborated with DeCA business units to create an integrated ISO-14001 conforming Environmental Management System focussed on 
Sustainable Business Practices. Developed and imptemented a robust management system to process criticat environmental concerns at 250+ facilities 
employing more than 18,000 stan in thirteen (13) countries. The Secretary of Defense recognized the projecl for Outstanding Environmental Perlormance. 
(I) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Rainwater Harvesting, Fort lauderdale-Hollywood International Airport PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~~ ;PIi<.bIOI 

Fort lauderdale-Hollywood, Fl 2013 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope. S;Z&, cost. etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if plajcel performed with currenl firm 

d. Project Manager-Evaluated irrigation demand and rain water harvesting opportunity to reduce potable water consumption. Scope: Proved the viability of 
a large-scale rainwater harvesting system to meet the 15 million gallons per year of irrigation demand lor a 23-acre community park/buller area. Scope: 
Evaluated the hydrogeologic and hydrologic characteristics of a stormwater pond in the Biscayne Aquifer. Water quality analyses, regulatory reviews and 
constructability assessments verified that the stormwater pond was a viable collection point The conceptual design has a payback period of one year and a 
projected return on investment more than three limes the construction costs over a five-year period 
(1) TiTlE AND LOCATION (City and Stafrl) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Effective Waste Management Program (EWMP) PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlO~~ ;PPIi •• biOI 

Defense Commissary Agency (DeCA), Nationwide 2012 
e. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope. size. cost. etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check il project performed with currenll1rm 

Project Manager-Led development and implementation of DeCA's EWMP business plan, and conducled the proof of concept at commissaries throughout 
Ihe United Stales. Scope: USing wasle prolile surveys and commodity markel analyses, the project team developed conservative financial analyses and 
projections based on a pay-as-you-go approach. Since its inception in 2007, the program has yielded more than $30 million in net revenue. 
-- -.. ----- .-. --- -
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12, NAME 13, ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14 ~ YEARS EXPERIENCE 

a TOTAl 

Rick Chesser, PE Project Officer 44 
b. WITH CURRENT FIRM 

9 
15, FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Slale) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 

16 EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17 CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Bachelor 01 Science / Civil Engineering Prolessional Engineer: FL 
18 OTH~R PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publicalions. Organizations, Training, Awards, elc) 

Prior to joining RS&H, Mr, Chesser served as the Florida Department of Transportation's (FOOT), District 4, Secrelary and was responsible lor the planning, 
development and implementation of the District's Five-Year Work Program, including multimodal planning, design, right-ol-way acquisition, administration, project 
development and environmenl studies, permitting, engineering design, construction/construction engineering and inspection, maintenance and operations, legal 
counsel and public inlormalion aclivities in the five-county area (Broward, Palm Beach, Marlin, SI. Lucie and Indian River Counties) 01 Southeast Florida. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (O ry and Slale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

1-595 Project Development and Environment Study PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCT10~; ;Plicablel 

Broward County, Florida 2014 (est) 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Driel scope. sIze. cost etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if prOject performed With current fum 

a. Project Manager Responsible lor Ihe development 01 a multilane interstate corridor on new alignment through central Broward County linking 1-75 with 
1-95 and US 1 in easlern Broward County, with direct access to Fort Lauderdale-Hollywood International Airport. Instrumental in securing lederal and 
state lunding lor the project Also served as the District Project Director to advance the project to construction, including program management, project 
coordination, consultant leam management, public information and media relations and coordination with local governments, the Broward Metropolitan 
Planning Organization and other community stakeholders 
(1) T ITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and Stale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Expressway System Plan for PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCT10~; :PNcabIOI 

Broward County, Florida 2010 
b. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bnol scope Size, cosl clc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE IEl Check if pro)cc1 perfOlmed wilh currenl film 

Project Manager Responsible lor the planning, project development and environmental studies lor an expressway network in Broward County, including 
the Port Everglades and Sawgrass Expressways. The Port Everglades Expressway eventually was constructed as 1-595 in Broward County, The Sawgrass 
Expressway was eventually constructed and now links 1-95 in northern Broward County to 1-75 and 1-595 in central/southern Broward County. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and Slale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Funding Agreement for the SR A1A Corridor Reconstruction Project, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES J CONSTRUCT10~; :PNcabiOI 

Broward County, Florida 2011 
(3) ORIEF DESCRIPTION (Bnel scope, size. cosl c/c J AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project performed with currenl1irm 

C. 

Responsible lor providing technical support and strategic analysis for Florida Department of Transportation (FOOT) negotiators to acquire the South Florida 
Rail Corridor, lormerly a 70-mile segment ollhe CSX system. Corridor was seen as a major multi modal corridor investment to enable the state's first 
commuter rail system to be implemented in January 1989. Project included a two-phase approach which would transition the full management 01 the corridor 
to FOOT at a key milestone 
(1) TITLE AND lOCATION (ei/yand Stale) {21 YEAR COMPLETED 

1-95 Widening Project, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCT10~; ;pJ;Cablel 

Palm Beach County, Florida 2011 
d. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl, ole) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project periormcd Wllh currenl firm 

Project Director. Responsible lor the reconstruction of 1-95, one of Palm Beach County's most signilicant north-south corridors, as well as several major 
interchanges, including a major connection to the Palm Beach International Airport and Downtown West Palm Beach 

(11 TITLE AND LOCATION (City ami Slale) (2) yEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSfONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCT10~; ;PI,cablol 

1-95 Widening Project, Broward County, Florida 
2011 

e. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bnel scope, Size, cost etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check it project performed wilh currenl firm 

Project Director Responsible lor the oversight of the reconstruction of South Florida's major north-south artery, including several major interchanges, 
throughout Broward County Irom approximately Deerlield Beach (on the north) to north of the Golden Glades Interchange (in Miami-Dade County). Project 
was tile largest inlrastructure improvement project in Districl 4's history. 



. ' 

. E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THE CONTRACT ' 
, _ , ,." . ' " (Complete ~me Section E (or each ~ey person.) ~ .. ,;'; '. ":' ' 

12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

Paul F. Hutchins, Jr., Ph.D., PE, 
LEED Ap, CEM 

QA/QC Officer 
N. TOT~L b. WITH CURRENT FIRM 

40 35 
15 FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Jacksonville, Florida 

16 EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17 CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Doclorate / Engineering Science FL / Induslrial Engineer 
Certified Energy Manager 
LEED Accredited Professional 

Master of Science / Operations Research 
Bachelor 01 Science / Engineering Physics 
18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publicalions. OrganizaUons, Training. Awards, elc) 

Or, Hulchins has over 40 years of extensive experience with commissioning, energy audits, training, building energy modeting, and analysis, Experl with long lerm 
energy planning lor organizalions as well as energy cost reduction and equipmenl efficiency, Dr, Hutchins has been a technical reviewer for sustainable projects and 
frequently assists businesses with establishing long term energy goals to foster efficient building operations and maintenance 

a. 

b . 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Stale) 

Energy Engineering Services, Defense Commissary Agency Various Loca­
tions Worldwide 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size cost etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Ongoing 
Check if proJeci periormed with current firm 

Project Ollicer-RS&H was responsible for the development and analysis of energy and water projects; commissioning, re-commissioning and retro­
commissioning of commissaries; preparation of audit reports and specialized enginecfln!l studies; energy data management and analysis; energy awareness 
and maintenance training and presentations in the US, Europe and the Far East; life cydc al1d economic analysis; site investigations, surveys and designs 
for minor construclion, facility repair and equipment replacement. Scope RS&H assisted OeCA in the development and implementalion of an Environmental 
Management System (EMS) in accordance with ISO 14001 and guidance contained in Executive Order 13148 (Greening the Government) and DOD directives. 
Savings to date exceed $147M. Size: 250+ 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Slate) 

Energy Audits for The Exchange PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Five U.S. Military Installations: FL, OK, AL, CA 2010 N/A 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, coSl, etc J AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check it project performed with current firm 

Project O rricc r- rer lorm~d energy audHs to assess existing cOlldilioJ1s 01 energy using equipment and identify Energy Conservation Measures. A large part of 
this project involves evalualiny the acouracy of the utility bills. R$&H has idelltlfied over $550,000 in billing errors that were credited to The Exchange, Scope: 
RS&H perlormcd energy audits 0129 Exchange buildings allive inslallalions. An important aspect of these audits was to invest igate any utility over-charges by 
the installat ion. RS&H IdCnllfied ne<lrly $560,000 of annual overclmges and 34 low cost/no cost measures that save about $192,000 per year, The Exchange 
received refunds totaling $750,000 for utility overages as a result of analysis, 
(1) TiTlE AND LOCATION (ei/yand Slate) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (if applicable) 

WATTS (Web-based AAFES Utility Tracking System) Throughout the US 
Ongoing N/A 

C. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bn'e' scope, size, cos/, e tc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check if project performed With currenl firm 

Project Officer-Designed and implemented a utility use and cost dalabase thai is accessible via the Internet. WATTS is accessed by almost 300 users, who 
enter utility use and cost data for over 900 facilities throughout the U,S, Reporls are generated that allow the Exchange to identify high energy-using bu ildings, 
find billing errors, and track their progress towards energy intensity reduction goals, Developed the Web-based AAFES UTility Tracking System, WATTS, 
(1) TITlE AND lOCA nON (City and Stare} 

Re/Retro-Commissioning GSA Buildings PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Miami and West Palm Beach, FL; Atlanta, GA; Mobile, AL; Greenville, MS 2009 N/A 
d . (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc J AND SPECIFIC ROLE Check i1 projecl performed wilh currenl firm 

Project Officer-RS&H was responsible for site visits, data collection, Energy Conservation Measure development and economic analysis, Functional 
Performance Testing, and report writing. RS&H data collection teams were responsible for three buildings with a combined gross area of 417,149 square feet 
Scope: RS&H provided Task Management, Energy Audit and Re/Retro-Commissioning services for seven Federal Buildings in GSA Region 4, SE United Stales, 
(1) TITlE AND lOCATION (City and State) YEAR COMPLETED 1- - --- ---

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (if applicable} 

Orlando International Airport Energy Services, Orlando, FL 
2009 N/A 

e. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc J AND SPECIFIC ROLE IB Check il project perlofmed WIth current firm 

Project Officer-RS&H reviewed record design documents in preparation of performing energy audits and analysis for central chilled water plants in four of the 
Allport's terminal buildinOfi. RS&H inspecled the equipment, controls and operating methods and recommended energy and water conservation opportunities 
and will 



.', .... ,:" .... '.: :,E.REsuMESOFKEYPERSONNEL'PRo'posEDFoRTHEcoNTRAcT::· ......... , ... , "':- .. '~ ," 
:.:. ' .. '. , .' ' .• '. :, ...., .....• - . . (Complete one Section E for each key person.) ' • . . . .' ,,: .' 

• ..... • ., • .' .', • _.' ....., ~.r • ,. 

12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

Ben Moore, AICp, LEED GA 8 
b. WITH CURRENT FIRM 

4 
Sustainability Planning, GHG • TOTAl. 

Inventory, Education & Outreach 
15 FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cilyand Siale) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Jacksonville. Florida 
16. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Master 01 Environmental Management / Energy. Economics and Policy 
Bachelor 01 Arts / Comparative Literature 

Certified Ptanner. AICP 
LEED Green Associate 

18 OTHER PROFESSIONAL OUALIFICATIONS (Publicalions, Organizalions, Training, Awards, elc.) 

Mr Moore's experience includes facility energy analysis reports, municipal energy conservation strategies, sustainable Iransit system management initiatives, 
and greenhouse gas mitigation through local land use. He has provided sustainable planning for clients, as well as design and procurement of renewable energy 
systems Mr Moore is an expert in sustainable capital improvement policies / procedures and comprehensive sustainability planning. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TIlLE ANO LOCATION (City arid Slale) (2) YEAR COMPLE TED 

Energy Conservation Program PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~;;pPIiCabIC) 
Defense Commissary Agency, Worldwide 2012 

a . 
(J) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Briel scope, size, cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE IE) Check if project performed WIth current firm 

Energy Planner-Responsible for analysis and development 01 energy and water projects. RS&H prepared energy audit reports and studies; energy data 
management and analysis; energy awareness and maintenance training; life cycle and economic analysis; site investigations, surveys and designs for minor 
construction, facility repair and equipment replacement; construction drawing and specifications; design drawings and specilication review of new and 
renovation projects; design criteria for new and retrofit applications. Size: 250+ commissaries 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~;;pPliCable) 
Kennedy Space Center SustainabiJity Plan NASA Kennedy Space Center, Fl 

2012 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project performed wilh current firm 

b. Energy Planner-Dralled energy scoping document for a comprehensive, multi-sector sustainability planning effort for Kennedy Space Center. Developed 
EMS initiatives into sustainable management systems that incorporate the requirements of EO 13514 into a cohesive project-oriented plan. RS&H developed 
and lacilitaled sus lainabili ty workshops to motivate and engage KSC employees and promote buy-in to KSC's sustainability initiatives. In 2012 the NASA 
project leader and her leam were awarded NASA's Blue Marble award for the project which recognizes groups and individuals demonstrating exceptional 
environmental leadership in support of NASA's missions and goals. 
(1) TiTlE ANO LOCATION (eifraud Stale) (2) YEAR COMPLETEO 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~;;pPliCable) 
Votran's Integrated Sustainability Plan Volusia County, FL 

2010 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (BrlC'scope. size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE lBJ Check if project performed with current firm 

C. 
Energy Planner-Assisted development of a long-term vision for sustainable operations by identifying and prioritizing the projects that help realize indirect 
and direct economic returns and improve Votran's Environmental performance. Facilitated a sustainability plan that addresses green procurement, facilily 
design, waste minimization and fuet, energy and water efficiency while generating $1.7 million in net returns In 2011, the Florida Public Transit Association 
recognized the sustainability plan as the Most Innovative Project of the Year. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Slate) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~;~pPliCable) 
Sustainable Capital Improvement Process Miami-Dade County, Fl 

2011 
(J) BRIEf DESCRIPTION (Bne' scope. SIze. cosl, ere.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 00 Check I' projed performed wi lh current firm 

d. Project Manager-Developed a guidebook and training program for incorporating sustainable and accessible design into the County's capital improvement 
process Utilized surveys, interviews and a review of County policies and national best practices to characterize baseline conditions. RS&H created guidelines 
lor implementing new construction and major renovation projects that maximize energy, minimize greenhouse gas emissions, and increase the use of renewable 
energy, based on tile USGBC LEED Rating Systems, computer-based energy modeling, life cycle cost analysis and projecl commissioning. Provided best 
practices lor incorporaling sustainability and accessibility to non-building capital improvemenls (e.g. transit systems, waste water treatment, port and airports), 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City a(Jd State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlO~;;ppl;Cablel 
Sustainable City Operations Rock Hill, SC 

2011 
e. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope. size, cost, ore.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [EJ Check if project performed wilh current firm 

Project Manager-Coordinated ellort 10 develop a Resource Efficiency Plan for the City's energy, water, waste, vehicle fleet and land use and transportation 
operations. RS&H developed a plan to syslematically improve the resource elliciency ollhe City of Rock Hills operaJions and created a detailed baseline lor 
defining goals, developing and implementing an effective plan, and measurinn the results of improvement efforts. 



'. '. ":.' ~ .. ? . ':. -'. . .. ,. '. :-. E. RESUMES' OF' KEY PERSONNEL PRO~OSED FOR THE ~ciNT~C't: . .'. . . . . ' " '.' 
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12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14 YEARS EXPERIENCE 

Erin L. Deady, Esq. AICp, 
LEED AP 

Sustainability Planning, Land Use & " ror~l 
Development, Education & Outreach 16 2 

15 FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) 

Erin L Deady, P.A. 
Lantana, Ftorida 

16 EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Bachelor of Arls- Marine Sciences 
Masters of Public Administration 
Juris Doctorate 01 Law 

Florida Bar 
Florida American Planning Association 
U,S Green Building Council, LEED Accredited Professional 

18 OTHER PROFESSIONAL OUALI FICATIONS (Publica lions, Organizations, Training, Awards, ele) 

Ms Deady ilas completed work as either a prime or subcontractor on 10 sustainability, energy and climate planning ellorts across Florida. Completed (as prime 
contractor) work lor 8 municipalities in Palm Beach County the Town 01 Lantana, the Town of Haverhill, the City of Atlantis, the Town of Palm Beach Shores and the Town 
01 Ocean Ridge on various grant, sustainability and climate initiatives and plans, She is the immediate Pasl Chair 01 the Environmental and Land Use Law Section of 
the Florida Bar and makes approximately 20+ presentations a year on energy, energy linance, climate and sustainability initiatives both within, and outside of Florida. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TI TLE AND LOCATION (Cityalld Slale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

City of West Palm Beach Sustainability Action Plan PRQI=ESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRucno~;~pPHC8bIC} 
West Palm Beach, FL 2011 

a. (3) ORIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check. If prOJect performed with currenl firm 

Wrote and managed the development of the City's branding and sustainability planning elfort from 2010-2011 SI1e managed two sub consultants regarding 
the greenhouse gas inventory and outreach components and was responsible for delivering the linal plan to the City Cost $103,000 She was the 
responsible Principal on the project, managing the budget, schedule and all deliverables. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Slille) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Energize Lake Worth PROr-ESSIONAl SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~;~PPHC.bICI 
Lake Worth, FL 2010-2011 

b. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bn·ef scope, size, cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE lE1 Check I' prOject perfOfmed Wllh current firm 

Led the project team including three subcontractors that completed a greenhouse gas inventory, an outreach strategy and energy audits of all of the City's 
buildings and facilities. The Plan also included policy recommendations for implementation including Code and Comprehensive Plan revisions to achieve 
energy reduction goals. Cost:$199,000. Her role on the project was as the responsible Principal, managing the budget, schedule and all deliverables 
(1) TI TLE AND LOCATION (City and SlillO) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Climate Action Plan PROFESS IO NAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCT'O~;~PPI'C8b IC} 
City of Boynton Beach, FL 2010 
(3) BRIEr- DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, sizo, cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 

C. 
~ Check II proJec l performed with currenl firm 

Worked as a subcontractor to manage the City's Energy Efficiency Cornmunity Block Grant and was responsible for developing and finalizing the Clirnate 
Action Plan incorporating elements 01 the completed greenhouse gas inventory She integrated recommendations for revisions to the City's Comprehensive 
Ptan and Code of Ordinances 10 implement the strategies in the Plan. Cost $199,000, Led the team devetoping the approach to the Climate Action Plan 
including an implementation strategy and policy recommendations, 
co TiTlE AND LOCATION (City ilnd State) (ll YEAR COMPLETED 

Sustainability and Climate Plan PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~;~PPHC'bIC) 
Marathon, FL 2011 -2012 

d . 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION ([3nef scope, srze, cost, etc J AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check. If prOject periormed wilh currenl firm 

With its unique climate, resiliency and sustainability challenges, the City of Marathon completed an energy audit 01 its facilities as well as a greenhouse gas 
inventory and Sustainability and Climate Plan. Was a subconsultant on the project but managed the development of the greenhollse gas inventory and overall 
Plan. Cost $50,000. With the designation of the Keys as an Area of Critical State Concern and significantly controlled growth and development, Ms. Deady 
provided key recommendations within a heavily environmentally related context for the City to prepare for climate resiliency challenges 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Stale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Municipal Energy Conservation Coalition PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlO~;~Pplic'b/e} 
Lantana , Haverhill , Atlantis, Palm Beach Shores and Ocean Ridge 2010-2013 
~EF DE:SCRIPTION (Brief scope, sizo, cosl, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check. If prOject performed with current firm 

e. Managed all aspects of grant project to coordinate 5 municipalities on projects ranging from municipal lacilities retrofits to development 01 a community 
and municipal greenhouse gas inventory, a sustainability strategy, energy rebate program and transportation strategy. Managed the grant reporting and 
administration, budget, all subcontractors and maintained all required reporting lor final project auditing purposes Cost:$1 ,236,000. Conceived of the grant, 
developed the partnership, pre and post-grant Memoranda of Understanding and all reporting for the State of Florida under the State's Energy Efficiency 
Conservation Sirategy program, 



12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

a TOTAL b WITH CURRENT FIRM 

Frederick Jones, AICP Land Use & Development 12 5 
15 FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cilyand'Slale) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Jacksonville, Florida 

16 EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Master 01 Science / Urban and Regional Planning 
Bachelor of Arts / Anthropology 

Certilied Planner, American Institute of Certified Planners (No. 020918), 2006 

18 OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications. Organizations. Training. Awards. elc) 

Mr. Jones has experience with entitlement and regulatory planning processes, with more extensive experience in due diligence, site impact analyses, and permitting 
lor a variety 01 land development projects. Planning Commissioner, City 01 Jacksonville Beach, 2006-2013; Member, American Planning Association; Member, 
Urban Land Institute, Sustainability Committee; Northeast Florida Regional Leadership Academy, 2011 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and Stale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~~ ;PPNCab/O) 

Climate Action Plan, City of Bartow, Florida 
2011 

a. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bne' scope, size, cosl, ele) AND SPECIFIC ROLE (EJ Check If project performed with currenlllrm 

Transportation Planner. Developed a plan lor reducing waste and greenhouse gas emissions lor the City 01 Bartow, FL (population 17,501) . The project 
created a greenhouse gas inventory of both government operations and the Bartow community. In addition, a prolile of community strengths and weaknesses 
and a database of resource conservation measures were assembled in order to prioritize sustainable projects. RS&H recommended a portfolio of projects to 
improve energy eliiciency in buildings, increase recycling and reduce dependence on foreign luels, among other measures. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and Slale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~~ ;PPNCab/O) 
Climate Action Plan, City of Green Cove Springs, Florida 

2011 

b. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bf/of scope, Size, cosl, elc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [EJ Check if proleel performed with currenl lirm 

Transportation Planner Based on qualitative and quantitative analysis, a GHG inventory and a database of actions, RS&H developed a strategy for climate 
stewardship responsive 10 the City's unique interests. The plan is designed to reduce resource consumption and greenhouse gas emissions within government 
operations and in the wider community. Through a focus on reducing costs, the plan establishes a Iramework lor continuous improvement and provides 
recommendations for lunding projects. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Stale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; ;pp"Cab/O) 

Design Principles for Mobility, City of Jacksonville, Florida 
2010 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Sn'of scope, size, cosl, clc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if prOleel performed wilh currenl firm 
C. 

Project Manager. RS&H developed a best practices handbook in support 01 the City of Jacksonville's 2030 Mobility Plan. The Mobility Plan establishes a 
new paradigm for infrastructure planning, design, and implementation with a multimodal emphasis. The plan identifies future transportation needs and uses a 
simple lee structure based on vehicle miles traveled to lund prioritized improvements throughout designated mobility zones; thus creating a more predictable, 
decision-making environment. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Clly and Slale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~~ ;PPIiCable) 

Natural Gas Fuels Strategy North Florida TPO 
2013 

d. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl, elc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE lEl Check il projecl performed wllh currenl firm 

Transportation Planner. RS&H is assisting the North Florida Transportation Planning Organization (NFTPO) with a multi-phase e/lort to develop and implement 
a strategy to advance compressed and liquefied natural gas (CNG / LNG) transportation systems. Relative to gasoline and diesel fuels, natural gas fuels 
leature reduced greenhouse gas emissions, lessened health impacts, and lower resource costs, among other advantages. However, widespread adoption 01 
natural gas fuels faces the barrier 01 coordinating investment in both fuel supply and demand; fueling infrastructure and CNG / LNG vehicles. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Clly and SIClIC!) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; ;PPI;Cable) 

Orange County Comprehensive Plan Amendment, Orange County, Florida 
2013 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bnef scoPC!, sizc. cosl, elc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [El Check If projecl performed wilh eurrenl firm 
e. 

Transportation Planner RS&H completed a preliminary analysis 01 the county's present Comprehensive Plan, identifying policies consistent with the intent of 
HB 697 The team also reviewed best practices Irom across the state and developed recommended policy language, as well as measurement and verilication 
protocols, lor new plan elements. Using GIS, RS&H developed an energy efficiency map series based on a preliminary methodology that evaluates transit 
corridors, residential densities, brownlields, and conservation areas, among other inputs. The map series was used to identify Energy Conservation Areas. 



E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THE CONTRACT . . ',', : , . . 
(Complete one Section E for each key person.) . ... ... , , ." ., . , 

12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

William T. Todd, PE, CEM, 
LEED AP BD+C 

Energy Efficiency 
a, TOTAL b. WITH CURRENT FIRM 

33 30 
15 FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Jacksonville, Florida 
16 EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Bachelor of Science / Mechanical Engineering Prolessional Engineer: FL 
LEED Accredited Prolessional; Certified Energy Auditor: FL Certified Energy 
Manager 

18 OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publicalions. Organizations. Training. Awards. elc) 

Mr. Todd has extensive experience in development and design of energy and water conservation projects. His expertise includes heating, ventilating and air 
conditioning systems, refrigeration syslems, industrial processes, lighting systems, utility-consumption and utitity-rate analysis for commercial and industrial 
facilities. His experience also includes technical reviews, feasibility studies, life-cycle cost analyses, HVAC system design, computer simulation of building's utility 
consumption. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cifyand Siale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Energy Engineering Services, Defense Commissary Agency PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; ; pt;cablel 

Various locations Worldwide Ongoing 

a. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [EJ Check ir project performed wilh currenl hrm 

Utility Analysis & Audits PM-Responsible for the development and analysis of energy and water projects; commissioning, re-commissioning and 
retrocommissioning of commissaries; preparation of audit reports and specialized engineering studies; energy data management and analysis. Scope: RS&H 
assisted DeCA in the development and implementation of an Environmental Management System (EMS) in accordance with ISO 14001 and guidance 
contained in Executive Order 13148 (Greening the Government) and DOD directives Size: 250 + commissaries. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and Slale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Energy Audits for The Exchange PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlON~~ ;PHcable, 

Five U.S. Military Installations: Fl, OK, Al, and CA 2010 
b. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size. cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check jf project performed with cu(rent firm 

Scope: Utility Analysis & Audits PM-A large part of this project involves evalualing the accuracy of the utility bills. RS&H has identified over $550,000 in 
billing errors that were credited to The Exchange. Scope: Performed energy audits to assess existing conditions of energy using equipment and identify Energy 
Conservation Measures. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (21 YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlo;;~a:licablel 
The Exchange lEED Evaluation Dallas, TX 

2008 
C. 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bn·el scope, size. cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if projecl performed WIth current firm 

Scope: Utility Analysis PM-Led the RS&H effort to evaluate sustainable design leatures for LEED Compliance. Scope: Complete analysis of the cost involved 
in implementing the requirements. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Stale) (2) YEAR COMPlETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlO~; ;PHcablel 

Orlando International Airport Energy Services Orlando, Fl 
2009 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (artet scope, size, cosl, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE IE) Check if proJecl performed with current firm 

d. SepPI? Utilily AnalYSIS & Audils PM-11S&H reviewod rccord rlesign doclJIllents in preparalion of petforrnillg energy a\Jr.Iil~ alld analYSIS lor central chIlled 
wJIr.r plants in four ollhr. Alrporl's lerminal bullrlihys. HS&H illspected thfl cQll ipment , C0 l11rols anti operating methods and IIlcommendod energy and wiltnl 
conservaliDI1 opportunit ies ancl low-cosVM"cost projects Ihal will provide energy, wator and maintenance cost SilvinO S. Scope RS&H was selected 10 provide 
MI[tectural and cliUlnecrillg energy m~nilgcment cOIIsuHing services lor lhe Oleater Orlando Aviallon flu illority (GOM). Oltando Interoalional Airport covers 
nearly 15,000 aems and has five terminal buildings. Si2e. 4.SM SF 

--
(I) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Stala) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Department of Veterans Affairs Facility Energy Assessments PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; ;Plicab,el 

Dayton, OH; Wadsworth, OH; Indiantown Gap, PA 2006 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, sire, cosl, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE f!I Check ir pfojeel performed with current firm 

e. 
Scope: LEED Project Administrator-Perlormed energy assessments and conducted field surveys to develop energy conservation projects for 10 buildings 
representing 40,156 Sq. Ft. Scope: Recommended ECMs included T81amps and electronic ballasts; occupancy sensor lighting control; photocell control of 
exterior lighting; HVAC controls re-programming or upgrades; DHW line insulalion; and programmable thermostats. The potential savings upon implementalion 
are $23k per year, reducing energy costs by 23%. Size:40,156 SF 

::, ~. . " .' . . ' . STANDARD FORM 330 (1/2004) PAGE 31 



12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

Daniel Briller, PE, LEED AP 
BO+C Energy Efficiency 

8. TOTAl b. WITH CUnRENT FIRM 

24 
15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Jacksonville, Florida 
16. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17 CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Masler of Science / Energy Engineering 
Bachelor of Science / Mechanical Engineering 

Mechanical Engineer: MO, IL 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications. Organizations. Training, Awards, elc) 

Mr. Briller has over 20 years of experience in developing design guidelines and conducting design reviews of high performance and sustainable buildings. He is an 
expert in sustainable and LEED design standards and has experience wilh assisting organizations in underslanding, achieving and improving levels of operation 
through 
long-term planning. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and Stare) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2013 
I CONSTRUCTlON~~;PNOable) Environmental Management Systems Program 

Defense Commissary Agency, Various Locations Nationwide 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, Size, cosl, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 

a. ~ Check if project performed with currenllirm 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

Technical Reviewer-Responsible for the development and analysis of energy and water projects; commissioning, re-commissioning and retro-commissioning 
of commissaries. RS&H prepared audit reports and specialized engineering studies; energy data management and analysis; energy awareness and maintenance 
training; life cycle and economic analysis; site investigations, surveys and designs tor minor construction, facility repair and equipment replacement; 
construction drawings and specifications; design drawing and specification review of new and renovation projects. Size: 18 commissaries 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and Stale) 

Impact Semetrics Study and Energy and Carbon Baselines 
Denver International Airport, CO 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, elc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 

(21 YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2012 
I CONSTRUCTlON~~ ;PNCable) 

lEI Check if projecl performed with current firm 

Technical Reviewer-Prepared a benchmark of energy consumption at airports from on-site and off-site sources. Scope: Completed semetrics study that 
incorporated data from previoPrepared a benchmark of energy consumption at airports from on-site and off-site sources. Completed semetrics study that 
incorporated data from previous studies completed at San Francisco International Airport to estimate future energy consumption and evaluate potential elrects 
of regulatory, market, and technological factors on future energy use patterns. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCAnON (City and Slate) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2011 
I CONSTRUCTION ~~ ; PI;Oable) 

EPA Sustainable Design Standards Washington, DC 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl. elc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project performed with current firm 

Technical Reviewer-Assisted the EPA, in revamping the agency's national architecture and engineering guidelines to reflect sustainable design and construction 
practices. Scope: Updated and expanded the EPA's comprehensive architecture and engineering guidelines to reflect sustainability requirements imposed by 
federal statutes, regulations, and executive orders. Directed a team of over 20 technical professionals of various disciplines and worked closely with different 
departments within EPA 10 ensure their interests and needs were addressed. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2011 
I CONSTRUCTION~~ ;PHCabIO) 

Federal Aviation Administration NextGen ATC Designs Washington, DC 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, atc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check it project performed with currenllirm 

Technical Reviewer-Provided expert guidance to the Next Generation Air Transportation Systems (NextGen) Facilities Program on high performance green 
buildings and conducted various energy studies and analyses. Estimated energy consumption, greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, and water consumption 
for proposed new facilities Responsible for reviewing energy audit reports from FAA facilities nationwide and using this data to project energy usage for new 
facilities to select the most suitable energy efficiency measures for future implementation 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Stale) 

Federal Aviation Authority NextGen EMS Program 
Denver International Airport, CO 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (an·ef scope, size, cost, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 

(21 YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2010 
I CONSTRUCTION~~ ;PI;Oable) 

lEI Check ir project performed with current firm 

Technical Reviewer- Oversaw Environmental Management System (EMS) Program, complete energy use and carbon footprinl inventory of Denver Inlernational 
Airport (all stationary facilities, aircraft flights, and ground transportation). This project provided FAA, for the first time, with a methodology to baseline these 
parameters for airports of any size. In addition, the project included developing an integrated suite of metrics that FAA could monitor future energy consumption 
and greenhouse gas emissions, taking into account the dynamic changes occurring in the energy industry and potential future regulation of carbon. 



. ' .. ' . " ; E. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL PROPOSED FOR THE CONTRACT . 

. , ..... .... . ., . (Complet9 one Section E for each key person.) . . , 
. . '. ) '. " .' . '., . - .- . . 

12. NAME 

Timothy Whitley, PE, CxA, CCp, 
LEEDA 
15 FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Albuquerque, NM 

13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 

Energy Efficiency 

14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

8 TOTAL b wrrn CURRENT FIRM 

5 5 

16. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17 CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Bachelor of Science / Mechanical Engineering Registered Professional Engineer: FL. GA, NV, MD, NM, TX 
18 OTHER PROFESSIONAL OUALIFICATIONS (Publicalions, Organizalions. Training. Awards. elc) 

Mr. Whitley is a licensed Professional Engineer/Mechanical/Certified Commissioning Authority/Certified Commissioning Professional with RS&H's Aerospace 
and Defense Program. With more than 20 years of experience, his typical project responsibilities include project management, documentation, design review and 
construction inspection during all phases of project commissioning (Cx). He is responsible for the overatl commissioning process of all projects. Mr. Whitley's 
experience includes a variety of projects including commercial office buildings, retail centers, educational facilities, healthcare facilities, data centers, and bio­
containment/research facilities. Mr. Whitley is also a LEED Accredited Professional having commissioned several projects that have been certified with the USGBC 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

NASA Ordnance Operations Facility CX PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; ;p,;cabl8J 
Kennedy Space Center, FL 2012 

a. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bn'e' scope. sIte, cosi, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if projeci performed with currenlllrm 

Project Manager for the commissioning plan preparation with brief design review, commissioning kick-all meeting and commissioning field inspection report 
review. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Slate) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 1 CONSTRUCTlO~; ;puca.,eJ 
AAFES Energy Management Service 

2011 
b. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size. cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check If project performed with CUfrent firm 

Participated in many energy audits, reviewed energy audits and maintained access reporting system for Web Based Energy Management System (WADS) 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

DeCA FY07-08 Energy Audits PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .1 CONSTRUCTlON~; ;puca.,eJ 
Ft. Lee, VA 2012 

c. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bnef scope, size, cost, ole) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project performed with current firm 

Maintained Access Reporting System for Web Based Energy Management System (DeCA EMR). 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and SIaIO) (21 YEAR COMPlETED 

DeCA HQ HVAC RCx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 1 CONSTRUCTIO~; ;P/icab'CJ 
Ft. Lee, VA 2012 

d . (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, SilO, cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project performed with current firm 

Cx Authority-Project Manager for Cx plan preparation with brief design review, kick-off meeting, Cx field inspection report, lead Cx functional performance 
testing visit and prepared final report. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

DeCA EA Assessments PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; ;PIiO •• ,OJ 
Ft. Lee, VA 2012 

e. --(J) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, SIze, cosl, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROlE lFJ Check il project pcriOfmed with current firm 

Participated in many energy audits and assessments. Reviewed energy audit and assessment reports. 



12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

Jeffrey Prewitt, PG, CIEC, 
CEICC 

Resource Conservation 
• . TOTAl b. WITH CURRENT FIRM 

27 7 
15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Jacksonville, Florida 

16 EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIAliZATION) 17 CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Master of Science / Geology 
Bachelor of Arts / Geology 

Licensed Professional Geologist IN, TN, KY, IL; Certified Indoor Environmental 
Consultant; Certified Indoor Air Quality Professional; Certified Environmental 
Infection Control Consultant; Cerlilied Microbial Remediation Supervisor; LEED 
Accredited Professionaf; Operations and Maintenance, Certification Board of 
ACAC 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training, Awards, elc.) 

Mr. Prewitt implements effective environmental management systems and sustainable business practices that balance environmental performance with our clients' 
business objectives, He has over 25 years' experience providing environmental consulting with extensive experience with indoor environments, water conservation 
and source development, and environmental compliance, 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Gityand Slalo) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Defense Commissary Agency (DeCA), PROFESSIONAL SERVICES J CONSTRUCTlO~~ ;PlicobleJ 

Worldwide Environmental Management System 2011 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size. coSl, erc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Chec.k if project performed wilh currenlfirm 

Sustainabilily Professional/Project Manager-Managed project as well as annual evaluations, OMB reporting, and updates of the ISO 14001 compliant EMS, 
a. Prepared and implemenled environmental management plans for newly recognized environmental aspects in accordance with E,O. 13423 and 13514, Collected 

and evaluated data for water conservation and prepared water management plans for commissaries throughout the US and Europe, Evaluated legal and other 
requirements for environmental aspects for compliance in Europe including chemical management, waste, electronic equipment, packaging and packaging 
waste Prepared a refrigerant management plan for use at the DeCA's 270 commissaries, Prepared training videos for commissary associates relating to 
refrigerant management, water conservation and hazardous materials management. Provided technical support to DeCA regarding regulatory and compliance 
issues,As a result of its EMS, DeCA has realized over $30 million in benefits from an ongoing waste management program, conserved over 56 million gallons 
of water, and removed over $22 million in environmental liabilities. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Stale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Atlantic Undersea Test and Evaluation Center (AUTEC) PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~~ ; PlicableJ 

Andros Island, Bahamas 2012 

b. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scoprJ, size, cosl, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [EJ Check if projecl performed with current lirm 

Sustainability Professional/Senior Geologist-Supported complete design services for construction of a wind energy generation system (Wind Turbine 
Generator) in a sole source aquifer recharge zone and wellhead protection zone, Evaluated karst, hydrogeology and saltwater intrusion site characteristics, 
Provided specifications and design modifications to protect the well field, wellhead protection zone and aquifer recharge zone during wind turbine construction 
and operation, 
(1) TiTlE AND LOCATION (Cily and Slate) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Rainwater Harvesting PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlON~; ;PHcableJ 

Fort lauderdale-Hollywood International Airport Hollywood, Fl 2013 
C. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bn'e'scope, size, cosl, elc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project performed with current firm 

Sustainability Professional/Senior Geotogist-Evaluated irrigation demand and rainwater harvest potential to conserve potable water. Evaluated potential for 
water quality impact of extracting water from a storm water pond hydraulically connected to the Biscayne Aquifer. Conceptual design will eliminate the use of 
15 million gallons of potable water per year for irrigation with a payback period of one year. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Slato) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTION~~ ;PIiC8 bleJ 

Antilles Elementary School Fort Buchanan, PR 
2012 

d. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl, etc,) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [E] Check ir project performed wilh current firm 

Sustainability Professional/Hydrogeologist- Evaluated karst and potential for subsurface stormwater management for the new Antilles Elementary School 
Design, Evaluated potential for using injection wells for storm water management/aquifer recharge, Evaluated use of permeable pavements relative to epikarst 
and karst bedrock in the area for LEED. Performed karst and hydrogeology consulting for new building design for RFP development. Cost: $38.7M Size: 
139,250 SF --
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12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

•. TOTAl b. WITH CURRENT FIRM 

Scott Vockell, LEED AP Resource Conservation 23 12 
15 FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and State) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Jacksonville, Florida 

16. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17 CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Bachelor of Engineering Technology / Mechanical Design LEED Accredited Professional, 2006 
18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publicalions, Organizations. Training, Awards, etc) 

As a Senior Environmental Specialist, Mr. Vockell has more than 18 years experience in site assessment, remediation, compliance and environmental management. 
He has conducted or managed assessment and remediation projects ranging in size from small petroleum spills to large-scale natural gas processing facilities. 
Assessment experience includes collection, interpretation and communication of surface and subsurface conditions and contaminant transport mechanisms, 
Remediation experience includes emergency response, source removal and the design, construction, operation and maintenance of remediation systems. Experience 
inctudes compliance support for a 2,500-mite intrastate natural gas pipeline system including compressor and metering stations. Environmental management 
experience includes quarterly environmental liability calculations for 263 facilities in the US and 12 foreign countries and the annual review and summary of federal 
and Department of Defense regulations affecting these facilities. FEMA Public Assistance experience includes disaster relief deployments to Ohio and Florida. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Siale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

FEMA Hurricanes Ike and Gustav (Declared Event DR-1786-LA) and PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (if applicable) 

Hurricane Rita (Declared Event DR-1607-LA), Lake Charles, Calcasieu 
2008 N/A 

Parrish, Louisiana 

a. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bn"e( scope, size, cosl, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE lE1 Check if project performed with currenl firm 

Project Specialist for the Department of Hometand Security Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). Prepared/revised existing Project Worksheets 
documenting damages (physical and financial) sustained by state and local governments (Applicants) as a result of Hurricanes Ike, Gustav, and Rita declared 
storm events. Revised Project Worksheets to delete estimated restoration costs and capture actual construction costs based on contractor invoices/change 
orders Developed and documented Hazard Mitigation Proposals funding the restoration of three (3) potable water pumping stations to pre-disaster capacity 
including facility improvements designed to prevent or lessen simitar damages from future disasters. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (ei/yand Stale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

FEMA Severe Storm and Flooding Events (Declared Event DR-1831-FL), PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (if applicable) 

Gilchrist County, Florida, Bay County, Florida, Walton County, Florida, 
2009 N/A 

Washington County, Florida, and the City of Tallahassee, Florida 
b. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Briel scope, size, cosl. elc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project performed with current firm 

Project Specialist for FEMA Prepared Project Worksheets documenting $1.1 million in damages (physical and financial) sustained by state and local 
governments (Applicants) as a result of the March 26, 2009 through May 5, 2009 declared storm and flooding events. Documented damages included 
debris removal from county roads, emergency protective measures from flooding, downed trees, and power tines, flood damage to a county park, overloaded 
underground drainage systems and seventy-three flood damaged roadways across three (3) Florida counties 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily alld Siale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

FEMA Tropical Storm Ike (Declared Event DR-1805-0H), Akron, Summit PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (if applicable) 

County, Ohio and Batavia, Clermont County, Ohio 2008 N/A 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl. etc J AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project performed with current firm 

C , 

Project Specialist for FEMA Prepared Project Worksheets documenting damages (physicat and financiat) sustained by state and local governments (Applicants) 
as a result of the September 14, 2008 declared storm event. Documented damages included debris removal from public roads, emergency protective 
measures from downed trees and power lines, wind damage to University of Akron facilities (Dorms and Public Works), flooding at Summit County Pubtic 
School facilities and damage to numerous infrastructure lacilities within Summit County. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

FEMA South Dakota Flooding (Declared Event DR-1 915-SD), Roberts County, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION {if applicable} 

South Dakota and Pierre, Hughes County, South Dakota 2009 N/A 

d. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, elc' AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project performed with currenllirm 

Project Specialist for FEMA. Prepared Project Worksheets documenting damages (physical and financial) sustained by state and local governments (Applicants) 
to roads and drainage systems as a result of the March through June, 2009 declared flooding event. Documented damages included debris removal from 
county roads, emergency protective measures from flooding and washed out roads, bridges and culverts, overtoaded underground drainage systems and flood 
damaged roadways across northeast and central South Dakota. 

-
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12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

.,. 'fOTAl b, WITH CURREI>IT FIRM 

Nathan Stinette Resource Conservation, GHG 
Inventory 7 3 

15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Jacksonville, Florida 

16 EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17, CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Master of Science / Strategic leadership Towards Suslainability 
Bachelor of Science / Geographic Science 

N/A 

1B. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publicalions Organizalions, Training. Awards, elc.) 

Mr. Stinnette has more than seven years of professional experience in natural resource conservation and geographic analysis. His areas of expertise include 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, sustainabilily plans and reports, sustainability communications and engagement, GIS mapping and analysis, environmental 
compliance support, environmental assessment, and data collection, 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Stale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Village of Pinecrest PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~/; :PlicableJ 

Miami-Dade County, Florida 2013 
a. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl, etc., AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project performed with current finn 

Scope: Village of Pinecrest. Miami-Dade County, Florida. Conducted a community-wide inventory of Pinecrest's GHG emissions, Obtained data from 
utilities, local government and private enterprises, calculated emissions, and produced an inventory adhering to IClEI protocols. Prepared a forecast of future 
emissions that will help Pinecrest select appropriate mitigation strategies. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Austin-Bergstrom International Airport (ABIA) PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; :PliCBbleJ 

Texas 2010-2011 
b. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, s;~e, cosl etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 00 Check if pro;ect performed with current firm 

Scope: Co-authored a Baseline Assessment Report summarizing ABIA's environmental initiatives, allowing the airport to track progress towards sustainability 
and GHG emissions reduction goals. The report established a sustainability baseline, identilied metrics and trends, benchmarked performance against other 
airports, and provided policy recommendations to improve ABIA's environmental programs 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Slate) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlO~;:PliCBbIeJ 
NASA Kennedy Space Center (KSC) Sustainability Plan Merritt Island, Florida 

2011 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope. size, cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project performed with current firm 

C. 

Scope: Helped develop workshops lor KSC that engaged over 100 KSC employees and gave them effective tools for sustainability planning, Conducted 
benchmarking studies and identified Best Management Practices (BMPs) for KSC's operations, along with relevant Federal and Agency sustainability goals 
Contributed to KSC's strategic 5-year sustainability plan, which coordinates the initiatives of the Center's various working groups, and positions the agency 
as a leader in sustainabilily. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Siale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlO~; :PliCBbIBJ 
United Launch Alliance (ULA) Cape Canaveral, Florida 

2011 
d . P) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope. size, cosl, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 00 Check if projaci performed with cutt9nl firm 

Scope: Worked to develop a sustainability business case for UlA operations by creating a GIS database of facilities to analyze utility data and identify 
conservation opportunities, By implementing business case recommendations, UlA can potentially realize $300,000 or more in cost avoidance over a five-
year period, 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED - - I CDNSTRUCTIO~; :PliCableJ PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Defense Commissary Agency (DeCA) Worldwide 
2011 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope. size. cost etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [!) Check if project performed with current firm e. 
Scope: Assisted in updating and maintaining DeCA's ISO-14001 complianl EMS. Supported DeCA's eflorts to engage employees in sustainability by 
authoring training video scripts and website content, and developed training materials to help employees at DeCA facilities identify environmental compliance 
issues and preventative actions. As a result of its EMS, DeCA has realized over $30 million in benefits from an ongoing waste management program, 
conserved over 56 million gallons of water, and removed over $22 million in environmental liabilities. 
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12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

a TOTl\l b WITH CUR~ENT FlrUA 

Darys Avila 
Land Use & Development, 
Natural Area Preservation 3 3 

15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) 

Zyscovich, Inc. 
Miami, Fl orida 

16 EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17 CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Master of Science / Architecture and Urban Design 
Graduate School of Architecture / Planning and Preservation (GSAPP) 
18 OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations. Tramlng, IIwards, etc) 

American Institute of Certified Planners (AICP) Certification in progress. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TiTlE AND LOCATION (City and Stale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~~ :PlicobleJ 

Tampa Innovation Alliance Master Plan, Tampa, FL 
2013 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bne! scope. sIze cosr f)/c) AND SPECIFIC ROLE lE1 Check.f project performed with CUHen! firm 

a. The City of Coconut Creek commissioned Zyscovich to create a vision and development plan for 430 acres of predominantly undeveloped land Following 
the County Mayor Kristin Jacob's initiative to preserve natural resources and promote sustainable and green design, Zyscovich created a master plan which 
preserves the natural landscape and provides a blueprint for sustainable building design, while providing the first centralized mixed-use activity zone for the 
City's residents. All buildings within the MainStreet District are required to be, at a minimum, LEED certified by the U.S. Green Building Council (USGBC) or 
certified by the Florida Green Building Coalition. Role Urban Designer Size: 430 Acres Cost: $207 K 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~~ :pIoeabloJ 

City of Jacksonville Vision Plan and Future Land Use Plan, Jacksonville, FL 
2010 

(3) BRIEF DE:SCRIPTION (Bnef scope, SIze, cosr, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [E] Check if project performed with currenl firm 

b. Vision plans for three planning districts in the City of Jacksonville, together with the new Future Land Use Map and Element, provide a blueprinlfor future 
sustainable development in the entire City (800+ square miles) With oversight by Commission appointed Steering Committees, Zyscovich crafted Vision 
Plans that address a dwindling vacant land supply through sustainable strategies that include mixed-use redevelopment and infill, improved connectivity and 
a variety of transporlation choices, and the conservation and expansion of public open space. Land use overlays were created and implemented to incentivize 
development within the core areas 01 the City through increased development entitlements. Role Project Manager Cost: $1 ,2 M 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Crly and Slille) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSmUCTlO~(; :phcablCJ 
Downtown Lafayette Strategic Framework Plan, Lafayette, LA Ongoing 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Orie! scope. !.lIe cost. e.c J AND SPECIfiC: ROLE {E] Check if project performed with current firm 

The Zyscovich team, working closely witillilC community, developed a strategy for a district-based structure for downtown Lafayette Physical barriers were 
c. identified (both internally and externally) and key issues were addressed The team supplemented the recommended district structure with a series of strategic 

proposals that seek to mitigate those barriers including the major thoroughfares which ring the downtown; large blocks which weaken connectivity at the 
edges of the downtown, lack of high-quality and safe parking to allract new business to the area, and scattered vacant parcefs and parking lots which create 
gaps in the urban fabric The following five guiding strategies represent opportunities to overcome these physical barriers and reinforce the individual districts 
which comprise downtown Lafayette, and include (1) Reinforcing existing paths; (2) Focusing on the Core; (3) Increasing the Variety of Open Space; (4) 
Enhancing Mobility with New Paths and Better Entrances; and (5) Improving Connections from Downtown to UL Role Urban Designer Cost 150 K 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City ;lnd Slale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 1 CONSTRUCTIO~(; :PI,eUbICJ 
Cocoa Beach CRA Downtown Vision and Zoning, Cocoa Beach, FL 

2012 
(J) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Orle! scope sua COSI elc J AND SPECiFiC nOtE {!] Check il prOject peliormcd with cuuentlirm 

d. With hundreds of tourists traversing its downtown main street to reach major destinations to the north, the Cocoa Beach Design Standards Manual oilers an 
opportunity to strengthen the downtown's image and its ability to capture high quality tourist traffic by improving the building stock and quality of development. 
The Cocoa Beach Design Standards Manual achieves this by first definillg a vision tor future improvements and development in the Downtown Area to enhance 
and augment tile existing character and by til en creating a character driven and design-based standards manual to be used as a regulatory Iramework to 
implement the vision. This project will establishes a planning vision by identifying issues, opportunities and major principles for moving forward with the 
character driven and design-based Design Standards Manual and it included include input from the community at large. Role Urban Designer Cost: $212 K 



12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

• 101M. b Will-i CURRENT ~IRM 

Bernard Zyscovich, FAIA Education & Outreach 43 37 
15 FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) 

Zyscovich, Inc. 
Miami, Florida 

16 EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17 CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Bachelor of Science / Architecture Florida / Architecture 
NCARB Certificalion Special Study in Urban Design, Universita' Di Architettura, Venice, lIaly, 1969 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizalions, Training. Awalds, etc) 

Getting Real About Urbanism by Bernard Zyscovich & Douglas Porter; Zyscovich, Architecture and Real Urbanism by Bernard Zyscovich, Preface by Frank 0, 
Gehry; The Techniques lor Real Urbanism, 2007 by Urban Land Inslitute (ULI); Parking or Urban Place making, Mullilamily Trends, Spring 2004; A Miami Midtown, 
Multilamily Trends, Winter 2004; Firm 01 the Year 2008-2009 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and StaiR) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

New Orleans (Post Katrina) Neighborhood Redevelopment Plans, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; ;PNcablel 

New Orleans, LA 2007 

a. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Drief scope Size, cos! etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [EJ Check if prOJcct performed wilil currenllirm 

Zyscovich assisted with community-based neighborhood-by-neighborhood planning lor Ilooded areas 01 the City which were central to decisions associated 
with the recovery of the most devastated areas 01 New Orleans following Hurricane Katrina. These carelully prepared revitalizalion ptans were formed into a 
citywide recovery and improvement plan for submission to the State 01 Louisiana and the federal government Role Principal-in-Charge Size: Citywide Cost: 
1051< 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Clly and Slate) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Pine Jog Elementary School and the FAU Environmental Education Center, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlo;~,~a;Plicablel 
West Palm Beach, FL 2007 

b. 
(3) BRIEF D~SCRIPTION (enef scope. sue, cosl etc, AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check" plOJccl ~rformed wIth currenl fum 

The School District 01 Palm Beach County and Florida Atlantic University are pioneering a new direction lor high performance schools in Florida, Their 
respective missions are to inspire and excite Palm Beach County esidents in the science and art of restoring the natural landscape and promoting our role 
as citizens in safeguarding the planel's natural resources. The partners are integrating the curriculum by combining both traditional and built environmental 
education to provide a comprehensive program of ecological awareness and stewardship. Role: Principal-in-Charge Size 155,000 SF Cost $303M 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and Slale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; ;Phcablel 
City of Jacksonville Vision Plan and Future Land Use Plan, Jacksonville, FL 2010 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE (EJ Check if prOJecl perlormC!d with current firm 

C. Vision plans lor Ihree planning districts in the City 01 Jacksonville, together with 1I1e new Future Land Use Map and Element, provide a blueprint for luture 
sustainable development in the entire City (800+ square miles). With oversight by Commission appointed Steering Committees, Zyscovich crafted Vision 
Plans that address a dwindling vacant land supply through sustainable strategies that include mixed-use redevelopment and intill, improved connectivity and 
a variety 01 transportation choices, and the conservation and expansion 01 public open space. Land use overlays were crealed and implemented to incentivize 
development within the core areas 01 the City through increased development entitlements. Role: Project Manager Cost $1 2 M 
(1) TITLE ANO LOCATION (City an d State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Coconut Grove Library Hisoric Renovation and Remodeling and Addition, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I cONsmUCTIO~(; ;Plicablel 

Coconut Grove, FL 2009 

d . 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bne! scope Size, cost, a/c.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check II project pm10rmed wilh curr en I Ilrm 

This project entails the expansion and modification of the existing building. The work will update the building's accessibilily, including tile addition of an 
elevator, and life salety code compliance, while providing new HVAC, electrical, plumbing and storm drainage The expansion of the building requires the 
sensitive addition 01 new glazing at the main reading room and a new enlry foyer Trees have been preserved and a new entry plaza and landscaping will return 
the building to its cullural significance in Miami's Coconut Grove community. Rolc Hisloric Preservation Project Manager Size 7,500 SF Cosl $2 M 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (el/yand SfiJlc) (2) yEAR COMPLE TED 

Miami Senior High School Master Plan, Programming, Phasing, Historic PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ) CONSTRUCT1o;~i;a~PI,cablcl 
Renovation, Remodeling, Reroofing & New Additions, Miami, FL 2009 
(3) SRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bncf scopo size cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if projccl performed wl!h current Ilrm 

e. 
Zyscovich was commissioned by Miami-Dade County Public Schools to master plan the restoration of the historic Miami Senior High School to its original 
grandeur, while updating it to a state-ol-t11e-art high school. A net gain of approximately 120,000 SF of new conslruction, including some demolition, is 
planned to meet the lacilities program. In addilion, a new 227 -space, three-level parking slructure of approximalely 77,000 SF is provided on the school 
properly across the street from the gym Role: Principal-in-Charge Size 509,950 SF Cosl: $49.8 M 
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12, NAME 13, ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

Trent Baughn, RA, AICp, 
LEED AP 

Land Use & Development, 
Natural Area Preservation 14 

b WITH CURRENT FIRM 

8 
15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) 

Zyscovich, Inc. 
Miami, Florida 

16. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Master of Architecture Florida I Architecture 
Bachelor of Science I Architecturat Engineering Technology 
18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publiealions, Organizalions, Training, Awards, ele.) 

American Institute 01 Certified Planners; Transportation Aesthetics Review Committee (TARC) 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and Slale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Coconut Creek Mainstreet Vision, Master Plan and Design Guidelines, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTION~; ;PJiCabJeJ 

Coconut Creek, FL 2005 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl, otc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project performed with current firm 

a. The City of Coconut Creek commissioned Zyscovich to create a vision and development plan for 430 acres 01 predominantly undeveloped land. Foltowing 
the County Mayor Kristin Jacob's initiative to preserve natural resources and promote sustainable and green design, Zyscovich created a master plan which 
preserves the natural landscape and provides a blueprint lor sustainabte building design, while providing the first centratized mixed-use activity zone lor the 
City's residents. All buildings within the MainStreet District are required to be, at a minimum, LEED® certilied by the U,S. Green Building Council (USGBC) 
or certilied by the Florida Green Building Coalition, Role: Project Manager Size: 430 Acres Cost: $207 K 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Stale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTION~; ;PJiCabJeJ 

Miami DDA Downtown Master Plan Study, Miami, FL 
2007 

b. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, coSl, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [EJ Check it project performed with current firm 

This Master Plan study created a "road map" tl1at merges urbanism and architecture with market, economic, social, and sustainability issues, It set lorth 
sustainable strategies focusing on improved mobility, public reatm and open space, and the urban forest and green infrastructure, and recommended 
guidelines for future development. Zyscovich focused on establishing a framework to guide private and public development in coordination with public realm 
improvements, establishing a market-based rationale for sustainable urban revitalization, Role: Project Manager Size: Citywide (+ 1 ,000 Acres) Cost: $ 590 K 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATtON (Cily and Stale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTION~; ;phcabJeJ 

Midtown Miami Master Plan and Zoning, Miami, FL 
2006 

C. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl, erc ) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [EJ Check if project performed with current firm 

This vacant, 56-acre site was identified as an opportunity to reintegrate the city street grid and create a mixed-use district for the surrounding neighborhood. 
As the site's master planners and master architects, the team partnered with the City of Miami to change the land use from Industrial to Restricted Commercial 
and create Special District Zoning and Design Guidelines Rote: Project Manager Size: 56 Acres Cost $275 K 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Downtown West Palm Beach Zoning and Master Plan Update, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; ;PJiCabJeJ 

West Palm Beach, FL 2009 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bn'ef scope, size, cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [EJ Check if project performed with current firm 

d. Zyscovich worked with an economic consultant and a City appointed Advisory Board to investigate the major planning potentials and create a new Vision for 
the redevelopment of downtown West Palm Beach, The most significant outcomes included linking the two main retait centers with a new business district and 
creating development incentives to attract Class A office uses, adopting a new zoning code and tand use ptan based on 13 new neighborhood sub-districts 
with distinctive characteristics, designing zoning parameters for a range of lot sizes and street types, developing the zoning mechanism to return a delunct 
main street into a neighborhood shopping corridor and enabling reuse 01 an industrial district for arts, retail, and residential uses, Role: Senior Urban Designer 
Size: Citywide Cost: $450 K 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTION ~~;PJiCabJeJ 
City of Jacksonville Vision Plan and Future Land Use Plan, Jacksonville, FL 

2010 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc,) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 

e. Vision plans lor three planning districts in the City of Jacksonville, together with the new Future Land Use Map and Element, provide a blueprint for future 
sustainable development in the entire City (800+ square miles). With oversight by Commission appointed Steering Committees, Zyscovich crafted Vision 
Plans that address a dwindling vacant land supply through sustainable strategies that include mixed-use redevelopment and infill, improved connectivity and 
a variety 01 transportation choices, and the conservation and expansion of public open space. Land use overlays were created and implemented to incentivize 
developl1lenl within the core areas 01 the CilY lhl'OuUI1 increased development entitlements. Role: Pro ject Manager Cost: $1,2 M 
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12 NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14 YEARS EXPERIENCE 

Thorn Grafton, AlA, LEED AP 
BD+C Land Use and Development 

a. TOTAL b wm-~ CURRENT FIRM 

34 8.5 
15 FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Sial e) 

Zyscovich, Inc. 
Miami, Florida 

16 EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17 CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Master of Architecture 
Bachelor of Architecture 

Florida / Architecture 
LEED AP Building Design and Construction 

18 OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training. Awards, elc) 

Member Amer Inst of Architects, Miami Chapt (continuous 1979-1014); President, Bd of Trustees, Marjory Stoneman Douglas Biscayne Nature Center, (1992-
1994 & 2012-2014); Green Visionary Award, Coral Gables Chamber of Commerce 2011 Green Means Green Award; LEED AP; Miami Chapter AlA Sustainable 
Design Architect of the Year 2010; Tulane University Graduate Preservation Program - Richard Koch Annual Preservation Lecturer, 2004; Florida Trust for Historic 
Preservation Award - Shelbourne House Miarni Beach 1997 and Hurt Building Opa-Iocka 1992; City of Miami Historic and Environmental Preservation Board: 
Miami-Dade County Shoreline Development Review Board; FlU - South Florida Native Landscaping; Harvard Graduate School of Design - Sustainable Design with 
Randall Croxton, FAIA; Historic Preservation Magazine Article on Thorn Grafton, Preservation Architect, 1991 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Stale) 

New Orleans (Post Katrina) Neighborhood Redevelopment Plans, 
New Orleans, LA 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2007 N/A 
a. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (BflC!f scope Size, cost elc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [EJ Check II proJecl per10rmed With current hrm 

This project for the City of New Orleans (the City Council) on an emergency basis in late 2005 in the aftermath of Hurricane Katrina. Planning scope was 5 flooded 
neighborhoods containing some of the most significant historic resources in the City- Treme, Seventh Ward, Fauborg St. John, and Fairgrounds/Dessaix. We 
worked for 8 months w/ remaining & displaced residents and an economic ptanner to identify/ prioritize the neighborhood rebuilding projects necessary to restore 
(initially) functionality and (eventually) a sustainable sense of community. FEMA & the State used the completed plans to assign emergency rebuilding funding. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and Stale) 

Coconut Grove Library Historic Renovation, Remodeling and Addition, 
Coconut Grove, FL 
(J) BRieF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl, elc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2006 - 2013 2013 

~ Check if project performed With current firm 

b. The School District of Palm Beach County retained the firm for 4 separate sustainable school projects The first was Pine Jog Elementary (In 2008, Florida's 
first LEED Gold new public school campus), in partnership with Florida Atlantic University in a 150 acre pineland habitat This multiple award-winning school 
pioneered the concept of integrating the high-performance building with the curriculum, combining both traditional and environmental education to provide 
a comprehensive program of ecological awareness and stewardship. The latest school is Galaxy Elementary (2013) and targets LEED Platinum. It is the first 
CHOICE (magnet) school specifically designed to provide E3 learning (Energy, Environment, Engineering), and will serve the District's underprivileged and 

c. 

minority populations. Principal Size 155,000 SF Total Cost, 4 schools: $80 M 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATtON (Oly and Stale) 

Coconut Grove Library Historic Renovation, Remodeling and Addition, 
Coconut Grove, FL 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bne' scope, Size, cost, ole) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2009 N/A 
@ Check if project performed With current firm 

This project for Miami-Dade County entails the expansion and modification of the existing building (owned by the City of Miami), portions of which were built 
in the early 1900's with a major addition in the 1960's. The work updates the building's accessibility, including the addition of an elevator, and life safety 
code compliance, with all new HVAC, electrical, plumbing and storm drainage. The expansion of the building requires the sensitive addition of new glazing 
at the main reading room and a new entry foyer, both of which are designed as an expression of today's design style and technology, while preserving the 
identities of the two original volumes The interiors will be updated and new library technology added Trees have been preserved and augmented and a new 
entry plaza and landscaping will return the building to its cultural and historic significance on an important historic site in Miami's Coconut Grove community 
Construction Documents completed. Role Project Manager / Preservation Architec t. Size: 8,000 SF Cost $2 M 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily alld Sial!!) 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Miami Sr. High School Master Plan, Miami, FL 
2009 2014 

(J) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, Slza, cosl, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [E] Check If proloc1 performed With curren1 firm 

d. Zyscovich was commissioned by Miami-Dade County Public Schools to master plan, and provide construction documents and administration of the restoration 
of the historic Miami Senior High School to its original grandeur, while updating it to a state-of-the-art high school A net gain of approximately 120,000 SF of 
new construction, with demolition of later additions, meets the facilities prograrn. In addition, a new 227 -space, three-level parking structure of approximately 
77,000 SF is provided on the school property across the street from the gym The project is phased with new construction and site utilities occurring first, 
followed by the historically-authentic rehabilitation of the original buildings, while students remain on-site throughout Role Historic Preservation Architecl/ 

Mal Size 509,950 SF; Cost: bid $49.8 M final cost x. $53 M includl ' ellal l 
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12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

a.. r Ot'AL b WITH CURRENT FIRM 

Grace Perdomo, Assoc, AlA 
Natural Area Preservation, 
Sustainability Planning 20 Year 1 

15 FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and State) 

Zyscovich, Inc. 
Miami, Florida 

16 EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECtALlZATlON) 17 CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DtSCIPLlNE) 

Master of Architecture / Urban Design 
Bachelor of Architecture 

N/A 

18. OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizations, Training. Awards, etc.) 

American Institute of Certilied Planners (AICP) Certification in progress. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TiTlE AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

New Orleans (Post Katrina) Neighborhood Redevelopment Plans, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; ;PHcablcl 

New Orleans, LA 2007 
a. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl. etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check il project performed wi,h current lirm 

Zyscovich assisted with community-based neighborhood-by-neighborhood planning for flooded areas of the City that were central to decisions associated with 
the recovery of the most devastated areas of New Orleans following Hurricane Katrina. These carefully prepared revitalization plans were formed into a citywide 
recovery and improvement plan for submission to the State of Louisiana and the federal government. Role: Senior Urban Planner. Size: Citywide Cost: 105K 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; ;pliCablel 

Albany GA HUD Choice Neighborhood Transformation Plan 
2013 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE IEJ Check if project performed with currenl firm 

b. Grace Perdomo created a comprehensive community vision and master plan to transform this distressed neighborhood and provide significant incentives 
for the local community to take critical steps to create viable neighborhood transformation. Based on extensive community outreach and participation, the 
plan was crafted to align with the City's overall vision for the revitalization of downtown Albany. Emphasis includes goals to improve and expand housing 
opportunities and access to basic services such as retail and health; improve the quality of the local public schools; irnprove public assets including 
neighborhood parks and connectivity to nearby recreation areas; offer effective transportation allernatives; increase access to jobs and levels 01 employment; 
and strengthen public salety and reduce crime rates Role: Principal Urban Planner. Size: 238 acres and over 1000 du Cost: $34 5 M 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Slale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlO~; ;Plicablel 

Charlotte NC HUD Hope VI Revitalization Plan 
2009 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl, elc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project performed With current firm 

C. Grace Perdomo provided master planning. urban design and grant writing services to the Charlotte Housing Authority for this recently awarded $20.9 million 
HUD HOPE VI Revitalization grant to transform the Boulevard Homes public housing development into a new rnixed-income, mixed-use and sustainable 
community. The plan's sustainability program will ensure that the new community fullills the requirements of LEED for Homes (multifamily) and the Enterprise 
Green Communities Criteria as well as achieves outcomes in areas consistent with the adoption of LEED 2009 for Neighborhood Development (LEED-ND) 
Rating System, Role: Principal Urban Designer. Size: 330 new du & mixed uses on 34 acres. Cost: $132 M 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Slate) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; ;Plicablel 

Culver City CA Sustainabiliy Design Assessment 
2007 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE IEJ Check i' project performed wllh current firm 

d. Grace Perdomo served as project team leader for the AlA's Sustainable Design Assessment Team (SDAT) to assist Culver City in the process of developing 
and implementing a sustainable community plan as part of its General Plan Update (GPU) and challenge the community to include bold changes in policy, 
infrastructure, capital improvements, building and development codes, and economic strategies, all aimed at making Culver City rnore livable and sustainable. 
The SDAT served as a starting point to focus the city's GPU on principles of sustainability and set goals for reduction of greenhouse gas emissions and sprawl. 
Role: AlA SDAT Team Leader. Size: Citywide Cost: $50 K grant lor planning plus expenses 
(l) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Stale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO;~i; a;pliCablel 

Albany NY Sustainabiliy Design Assessment 
2007 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Briefscope, size, coS(, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [EJ Check if prOject performed with current 'Irm 
e. 

Grace Perdomo served as a member 01 the AlA's Sustainable Design Assessment Team (SDAT) to assist Albany and its citizens in addressing key issues facing 
the community. These included addressing the vacant properties in many of the city's neighborhoods, building a more sustainable transportation system, 
better stewardship of the city's open spaces and promoting energy efficiency All 01 these were framed in the context 01 the city's plans to embark on a process 
to implement more sustainable policies and practices citywide. Role: Urban Designer. Size: Citywide Cost: 50 K grant for planning plus expenses 
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12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

ct TOTAL b WITH CURRENT FIRM 

Ben Chandler, PG, LEED AP Recycling & Waste Reduction 27 11 
15 FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Jacksonvill e, Florida 

16 EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17. CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Master 01 Science / Geological Sciences Prolessional Geologist FL, AL, IN, TX 
LEED Accredited Prolessional 

18 OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications. Organizations, Training, Awards. elc) 

Mr Chandler is a licensed Prolessional Geologist managing a variety 01 sustainability planning, waste minimization, data management and environmental 
compliance projects His leadership not only has brought cost-ellective ideas that enhance an organization's boltom line, but establishes a true sustainable 
connection between an organization, their worklorce and the community. Over the past 25 years, Mr .Chandler has worked with airpOrl authorities, 000 Agency's, 
NASA, DOT. cities, counties, municipalities, and the oil and gas industry. 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

( I ) TITLE AND LOCATION (City af1d Stale) (2) YEAn COMPLETED 

Effective Waste Management Plan (EWMP) Implementation DeCA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~;:pp"cable) 
175 CONUS Facilities 2012 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Sne' scopo size, cosl, erc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if prOject performed wllh curren! firm 

a . Project Manager-Managed an RS&H team that implemented OeCA's EWMP al 175 commissaries across the US. The EWMP implementation Irained nearly 
1,000 commissary associates. Through RS&H's implementation, training, data monitoring and program recommendations, DeCA's EWMP contributed more 
than $30M in recycling revenue and identified $2.6M in solid waste cost avoidance over the last six years. Mr Chandler's continual improvemenl strategies 
involved performing waste sorts at nine commissaries to identify additional revenues and cost avoidance opportunities The waste sort data revealed 80% 01 
the waste destined lor the landlill could be diverted saving the Agency an additional -$3.5 million annually and positioning them as a net zero waste agency. 
(1) TITlE AND LOCATION (Cily ;)nd Slar!?) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Waste Management Reporting Website - Data Management PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlO~;:pPIi<ablC) 
DeCA - Worldwide 2013 

b. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bnef scope, SIze cosl elc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check " prOjp.et pE!11ormed with current firm 

Project Manager-Managed an RS&H team that designed an internet-based reporting tool used to monitor and continually improve DeCA's EWM The 
customized website streamlines data collection efforts and provides instant feedback allowing DeCA to proactively manage sustainabte and environmentat 
initiatives worldwide Key features include: tile amounl of waste disposed and associaled costs; tile type and amounl 01 recyclable materials diverted Irom 
landfills lor reuse,; waste and recycling contracts, associated inlrastructure, and a "Dashboard" reporting leature. 
(1) TITLE ANO LOCATION (Gity iJnd Slata) (2) YEAR COMPLE TED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~;:pPlicabl.) 
Business Case - Effective Waste Management Plan (EWMP) DeCA - CONUS 

2007 
c. (J) BRIE"F DESCRIPTION (Bncl scope size, cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check" prOlcel performed w./h currenl fIrm 

Deputy Project Manager-Assisted in development 01 a comprehensive business case that effectively addressed waste management DeCA's 180 CONUS 
lacilities. The EWMP business case established new recycling programs, recycling contracts ensuring recycling revenue was returned to DeCA, and realized 
solid waste cost avoidance, lowering the burden on appropriated funds The Agency approved business case identilied returns 01 greater than $5M a year. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION rCily and SIt'JIC') (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

- 1 CONSTRUCTlO~;:pp"cabl.) Business Case Proof of Concept - EWMP PROfESSIONAL SERVICES 

DeCA - Texas, Virginia and West Virginia 2007 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Snet scope, size , cost, etc) AND SPECIr-IC ROLE ~ Check if prOlecl perlormed wllh currenl rlrm 

d. Deputy Project Manager-Assisted in developing and implementing a pilot test program that tested the business case concept, increased recycling rates, 
reduced solid waste amounts, and ensured compliance with applicable waste regulations. Over an eight-week period, Mr Chandler coordinated data 
coltection elforts at 18 lacitities with a locus on the amount of cardboard & plastic recycled and the amount of solid waste generated and disposed Concept 
verification phase also oblained inlormation regarding contracl mechanisms, recycling rales and solid waste disposal cosls This test proved Ihe business 
case concept in thatille EWMP enhanced the Agency's bottom line through improved environmental perlormance 
(1) TITLE " ND LOCATION (City i;md SliJIC) (2) YEAn COMPLETED 

Sustainability Planning , ISO Environmental Management System (EMS) US PROFESS IONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlO~;;pPI"able) 
Department of Defense Commissary Agency (DeCA) - Worldwide 2011 

e. PI BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Duel scope, SIze, cost. clc J AND SPECIFIC RotE lEI Check if prOJecl pcrlOlmed wilh cUfrenl 111m 

Deputy Project Manager-Designed and implemented an ISO 14001 compatible EMS for the Agency's global operations Responsible lor developing and 
structuring key EMS components (Environmental Policy, Planning, Operation and Implementation, Monitoring and Checking and Management Review) lor 
the Agency Authored and implemented numerous procedures, work instructions, and customized forms essential to ISO 14001 
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12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

Kimberly Baier, LEED AP 
BD+C Recycling & Waste Reduction 

• . lOlA b WITH CURRENT FIRM 

7 7 
15 FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Siale) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Jacksonville, Florida 

16 EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17 CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Master of Science / Environmentat Science 
Bachelor of Arts / Chemistry 

LEED AP Buitding Design and Construction, 2011 
LEED Accredited Prolessional, 2007 

18 OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publica/ions, Organizalions, Training, Awards, elc) 

Ms. Baier has more than five years experience managing environmentat and laboratory projects. She has implemented document controt and data management 
systems lor large ctients, and coordinated data collection, anatysis, and report preparation for sustainabte initiatives In addition, Ms. Baier has prepared and 
imptemented management plans for resource conservation under an tSO 14001 compliant Environmental Management System 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (ei/yand State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~;;pPIiCable) 
Energy Efficiency Conservation Block Grant, Jacksonville 

2012 
a. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Blief scope, size, cosl, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE I!J Check if pro/l!CI performed wilh currenl firm 

Developed a solid waste management plan lor the city 01 Jacksonville. Within this ptan, proposed a waste management pitot program for lour city buitdings 
to satisfy the materiats management component of the EECBG funding. This pilot program encompassed the principal of zero waste, expanded green 
purchasing initiatives, developed electronic stewardship initiatives and increased ellective waste management awareness through an education campaign. 
(1) TiTlE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Effective Waste Management Program, Defense Commissary Agency, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES j CONSTRUCTlO~;;pPIiCabJe) 
Worldwide 2011 

b. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Briel scope, size, cosl, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if project perlormed with current firm 

Implemented a comprehensive waste management training and data collection program in 69 lacilities Prepared materials and conducted training of more 
than 350 employees. Liaisoned with client's personnel facilitating waste and recycling data collection. Analyzed waste generation and recycling data to 
prepare location-specific summary reports assisting client to realize signilicant cost savings. Clienl realized over $5 5 million in recycling revenue and solid 
waste cost avoidance in first year. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Stale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Waterview lEED EBOM, Jacksonville, Florida--Technical Support for Waste PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlO~;;PpJiC8b1') 
Management 2013 
(3) BRfEF DESCRIPTION (Bn"ef scope. sizo, cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [E] Check il project performed with currenl firm 

c. 
Planned, coordinated, and implemented a waste audit of Waterview's waste containers. This waste audit Quantified waste types and generation rates allowing 
lor the development 01 environmentally prelerable alternatives to disposal. Analyzed the data oblained lrom this waste audit and developed waste diversion 
goals. Researched local recycling contractors to assist in diversion 01 materials lrom the waste containers A buitding-wide waste minimization and recycling 
program was implemented as part of RS&H's LEED EB certification and has achieved over 50% diversion rate 

-
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) yEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES j CONSTRUCTIO~;;pPJiCabJe) 
Affirmative Procurement Program, Defense Commissary Agency, Worldwide 

2011 
d. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cosl, etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE (E] Check if pro/ect performed with currenl (Irm 

Mapped the purchasing patterns ollourleen distinct business units 01 a multi-national organization Used inlormation to develop a comprehensive Green 
Procurement program targeted towards, energy eflicient and environmentally benign products. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Environmental Management System (EMS) Implementation Services, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .1 CONSTRUCTIO~;;PPJiC.bJ') 
Defense Commissary Agency, Worldwide 2006 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size. cost, etc J AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if prolecl perfOtmed with cuttenl firm e. 
Under agency's ISO 14001 compliant EMS, supported development 01 Environmental Management Programs and Iheir implementation throughout the 
organization. Managed information from more than 200 lacilities on EMS Awareness training 01 more than 16,000 employees, Coordinated development of 
client's document and record control system 

-



12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

Jason DiGuglielmo, LEED AP, 
CIE 

Recycling & Waste Reduction 
a TOTAL b WITH CURRENT FIRM 

12 7 
15 FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and Slale) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Jacksonville, Florida 

16. EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17 CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE liND DISCIPLINE) 

Bacllelor of Science / Health Sciences LEED Accredited Professional, 2007 
18 OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizalions, Training, Awards, elc) 

Mr. DiGuglielmo has approximately nine years of professional experience in indoor air quality investigations, soil and groundwater remediation, environmental 
site assessments and compliance, and inspeclion of stormwater erosion and sedimentation control. Mr. DiGuglielmo's experience also includes observation 01 
subcontractors and supervision of projects involving collection of field data 

19. RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and St3le) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (if applicable) 

Effective Waste Management Plan, Defense Commissary Agency, Worldwide 
2011 N/A 

a. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope Size, cos/, ele J AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if proj(!cl performed wl\h current firm 

Conducted waste surveys to identify and quantify commodities in a commissary's waste stream. Responsible for preparing site specific Ileallh and safety 
plans and coordinating field efforts. Responsibilities also included working to sort and weigh solid waste, preparing reports, and perlorming quality assurance 
and quality control reviews. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Sla te) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Toxic Materials Compliance Manual, Defense Commissary Agency, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (if ilpplicable) 

Worldwide 2011 N/A 
b. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bric/s.cope, size. cosl. etc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check if projeel performed wilh currenl firm 

Prepared a Toxic Materials Compliance Manual for associates of the Defense Commissary Agency Key topics included proper handling of hazardous 
materials, health effects associated with hazardous materials, personal proteclive equipment, and materials safety data sheets, 

(1) T ITLE AND LOCATION (Cily and Slate) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Proactive Indoor Air Quality Surveys for 18 Schools, US Department of PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (if applicable) 

Defense Domestic Dependent Elementary and Secondary Schools, Eastern 2013 N/A U.S. and Caribbean 
c. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, elc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE fR] Check If project perlormed with current fjrm 

Performed indoor air quality surveys to evaluate ventilation in the schools. Field activities included data colleclion of carbon dioxide (C02). temperature, 
and humidity levels from occupied classrooms, administrative areas, and outdoors. Responsibilities also included report preparation and providing 
recommendations for low-cost solutions for each school to improve air quality and comfort cooling. 

(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Sla te) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Microbial Inspections and Remediation Protocols, US Department of Defense PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (if applicable) 

Domestic Dependent Elementary and Secondary Schools, 2013 N/A 
d. 

Guantanamo Bay, Cuba 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size. cosl, erc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check,' prOlecl performed wllh curren I lirm 

Performed microbial inspections of classrooms and offices for W.T. Sampson Elementary School and Middle/High School Responsibilities also included 
report preparation of microbial remediation protocols 

(1) TITLE AND lOCATION (City a"d Siale) (2) YEAn COMPlETED 
- - - --

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (if ilppficiJble) 

Microbial Remediation, US Army Corps of Engineers, Norfolk, Virginia 2013 N/A 
e. (3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Orief scope, Size, cost, etc. ) AND SPECIFIC ROLE IE] Check il projecl performed wilh currenlfirm 

Perlormed inspection of three buildings in Fort Monroe, Virginia to document microbial impacts and to prepare a remediation protocol. Also performed 
supervision of mold remediation contractors and inspection of remedial efforts for each building Responsibilities also included preparation of the Final 
Remediation Protocol and Posi-Microbial Remediation Report. -



~·.·'"C : '.:> .'. . . E.RESUMESOFKeY ·PERSON~ELPROpcisEDi=ORrHE'CO.~':RACT ' :: .' ".' .. . ...... ': 
_; ,.,:;, .' '. . (Comple~e one SectIOn E (or each key perso!,:~ ",-'-:.',; ; " ' . .' . ' _ 

12. NAME 13. ROLE IN THIS PROJECT 14. YEARS EXPERIENCE 

a TOTAL b. WITH CURRENT FIRM 

Candace Dorn, LEED AP Greenhouse Gas Inventory 8 5 
15. FIRM NAME AND LOCATION (Cily and S/a/e) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc, 
Jacksonville, Florida 
16 EDUCATION (DEGREE AND SPECIALIZATION) 17 CURRENT PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION (STATE AND DISCIPLINE) 

Master of Science / Environmental Planning and Management 
Bachelor of Science / Environmental Science 

LEED Accredited Professional, 2009 

18 OTHER PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (Publications, Organizalions. Training, Awards, elc) 

Ms. Dorn has implemented numerous sustainable business practices and assessing and documenting environmental conditions in the areas 01 sustainable 
programs, transit and transportation, environmental assessment and natural resources. Her areas of expertise include environmental stewardship, site assessment, 
environmental compliance, wetland delineation, pollution prevention and groundwater and soil investigation 

19, RELEVANT PROJECTS 

(1) TITlE AND LOCATION (City and Stale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Votran Climate Action Plan, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; ; pliCable' 
Vol usia County Florida 2010 

a. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [E] Check it project perfmmed with current firm 

Sustainability Professional-Led development of a long-term vision for sustainability for operations, by identifying and prioritizing the projects that help realize 
indirect and direct economic returns and improve Votran's environmental performance RS&H conducted a GHG inventory and Climate Action Plan and 
established a baseline for measuring reductions. The team, working with the agency, then identified practicat measures lor reducing emissions by culling fuel 
consumption and increasing ridership. The new sustainability guidelines will allow Votran to realize more Ihan $1.6M in economic benefits through 2015. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (ei/yand Slate) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

NASA Kennedy Space Center Sustain ability Plan, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTIO~; ;pHcable, 
Kennedy Space Center, Fl 2011 

(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Briel scope, size, cost, etc) AND SPECIFIC ROLE ~ Check I' prOlect performed wiTh currenl fi rm 

b. Sustainability Professional-Assisted with development of sustainability workshops. Authored slides, workshop exercises, and instructional materials, as 
well as the workshop agenda Scope: Developed EMS initiatives into sustainable management systems that incorporate the requirements of EO 13514 into 
a cohesive project-oriented plan. RS&H developed and facilitated sustainability workshops to motivate and engage KSC employees and promote buy-in to 
KSC 's sustainability initiatives. RS&H was awarded NASA's Blue Marble award for the workshop which recognizes groups and individuals demonstrating 
exceptional environmental leadership in support of NASA's missions and goats. 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Siale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Effective Waste Management Program PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlO~; ;pliCable, 
Defense Commissary Agency, Nationwide 2012 

(3) BRIEF OESCRIPTION (etief scope, size, cosl, elc.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 
C . 

~ Check it project performed With current firm 

Sustainability Prolessional-Assisted in the preparation 01 quarterly reports for zone implementation and the implementation 01 training and data collection 
materials supporting EWMP initiatives. Scope: Developed EWMP business case based on waste profile surveys conducted at VA, GA, FL, and CA commissaries. 
Conducted proof 01 concept surveys at 18 commissaries in TX and VA. RS&H developed EMR software that assists DeCA with documenting waste management 
initiatives of over 200 laGilities in a central database. Cost: $825,000 Size: 105 commissaries 
(1) TITLE AND LOCATION (City and Slale) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

Environmental Management Systems Program Defense Commissary Agency, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTR~TlO~; ;~~able, 
Worldwide 2012 

d. 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Brief scope, size, cost, ele.) AND SPECIFIC ROLE [!J Check II project performed wilh currenllirm 

Sustainability Prolessional-Provided technical support for environmental management plans and newly recognized environmental aspects. Assisted in 
developing green procurement criteria and objectives for commissary operations. Prepared recommendations lor green packaging initiatives and green 
procurement Scope: Assists DeCA's Core Team in designing, implementing and maintaining the EMS. To date, the team has identilied nine significant 
environmental aspecls and developed an Environmental Management Program. Size: 250+ commissaries --
(1) TITLE ANO LOCATION (City and State) (2) YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES I CONSTRUCTlO~; ;PPlicable, 
Indoor Air Quality Surveys, USACE Norfolk 

2012 
(3) BRIEF DESCRIPTION (Bder scope, size, cosl, etc ) AND SPECIFIC ROLE 

e. 
IB Check if projecl performed wilh currenl firm 

Sustainability Prolessional-Dralted scope of work documenls, health and safety plans, and a communications plan lor Indoor Air Qualily (lAO) sampling and 
microbial remediation projects. Provided quality control for lAO proposals, data lables, and reports Scope: The US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) 
retained RS&H to evaluate indoor air quality and environmental concerns at two DODEA schools. RS&H performed a multi-phase investigation to evaluate 
potential eXlernal and internal sources of indoor air qualily (IAQ) and environmental contaminants . Size: 140,000 SF 

~i~~.: .... , .. ·:~d~", .. -~'" ~ '·!'·f~~;·~' .~~. , " " ~ .. :.:. ';"~~.'.-.~:,':,:.<" 
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20 EXAMPLE PROJECT KEV 
NUMBER 

1 
21. TI11£AND LOCAOON (City _ SIa'o) 22. YEAR COMPLETED 

Kennedy Space Center Sustainability Plan 
Cape Canaveral, Florida 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (ilapplicnble) 

2012 

a PROJECT OWNER b POINT OF CONTACT NAME c POINT Of CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER 

NASA Denise Thaller 
24 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Jnclude scopo, size, and cos!) 

RS&H collaborated with NASA's 
Kennedy Space Center (KSC) to 
develop a workforce-engaging and 
project-driven sustainability plan. 
The plan meets the requirements 
of Executive Order (EO) 13514. 
NASA's Strategic Sustainability 
Performance Plan (SSPP) and KSC's 
Sustainability Vision . As a result, 
KSC's project manager received 
NASA's Blue Marble Award. 

RS&H focused on the needs of the 
client, assessed potential barriers 
to organizational sustainability, and 
collaborated with KSC to develop 
an effective approach to surmount 
them. RS&H's listening skills, 
expertise in sustainability planning 
and organizational dynamics, as well 
as our strong project management 
skills, were all pivotal to the project's 
success. Key elements of RS&H's 

(321) 867-1599 

quality control process included development of an implementation plan that integrates quality control throughout the projects, 
peer reviews of all deliverables, monthly assessments of project performance, and client satisfaction 

Through effective planning and execution, a sustainability culture is now permeating all of KSC The initiative is led by senior 
management, pushed by middle management, and inspired by the entire workforce. To increase employee engagement, 
RS&H facilitated a sustainability planning workshop with more than 100 attendees, representing 18 distinct business units. The 
workshop raised awareness of EO 13514 and other Federal Government requirements, and provided hands-on experience 
with techniques that integrate sustainability throughout an organization. During the six months of plan development, RS&H 
coordinated meetings and provided leadership and guidance on sustainability planning. 

The KSC Sustainability Plan details more than 200 unique projects that: 

» Energize the Center's sustainability culture 
» Enhance pollution prevention efforts 
» Promote sustainable acquisition 
» Increase recycling and decrease waste 
» Increase process and energy efficiencies 
» Meet or exceed Executive Order and NASA sustainability goals 
» Benefit the community 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT 

(1) FIRM NAME (2 ) FIRM LOCATION (City and Slale) (3 ) ROLE 

a. 
RS&H Jacksonville, FL Deputy Project Manager ____ ~ ______________________ L_ ________ ~ ____________________ ~ ____ =-______________ __ 



, ""," F. EXAMPLE PROJECTS WHICH BEST illUSTRATE 'PROPOSED TEAM'S '. , .. ,' .' ,~. 
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20 EXAMPlE PROJECT KEY 
NUMBER 

. , (Present as many projects as requested by the agency. or 10 projects, if not specified . .': ." _ " .'; 
" ." .'" "" ... Complete on Section Fforeach'projectr ,::',:', :~, :: ........ ." " : .. ,".-' '.," , ,:: 2 

21. T1TlEANDl~noN ICIly_ Slale) 22, YEAR COMPlETED 

Sustainable and Accessible Capital Improvement Process 
Miami-Dade County, Florida 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (d applicable) 

2010-2011 
23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION 

a. PROJECT OWNER b POINT OF CONTACT NAME c POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER 

Miami-Dade County Patricia Gomez, PE, CEM, LEED AP (352) 343-9503 
24 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope. size, and cost) 

RS&H worked with Miami-Dade County to integrate sustainability and 
accessibility policies and procedures into its capital improvement 
process. RS&H assessed the County's present performance, 
developed new guidelines and recommendations for improvement and 
provided education and training services to support implementation , 

Jmprovement Process 
Guidelines and 

Recommendations 

N/A 

Methods employed included surveys, interviews and workshops with County 
engineers, architects, project managers and other CIP professionals. RS&H 
also reviewed County ordinances, orders and administrative controls, 
Current policies and procedures were bench marked against BMPs 
identified within the federal government, the State of Florida and the cities 
of Atlanta, Chicago, Los Angeles, New York City, Philadelphia, Portland, 
San Francisco and Seattle, RS&H identified strengths, weaknesses, 
opportunities and threats related to the sustainability and accessibility . .: .. ' Project Demonstrates: . '. ~ . 

RS&H created guidelines and recommendations for implementing new ./ Energy Planning and Analysis 
construction and major renovation projects that maximize energy, minimize ./ LEED/Sustainable Design Services 
greenhouse gas emissions, and increase the use of renewable energy. ./ ADA Design Services 
They also ensure compliance with the ADA. Guidelines incorporate 
techniques to improve project performance, including minimum design ./ Education and Training 
standards, life-cycle cost accounting, 
energy modeling, and commissioning, 
as well as the LEED Rating Systems. 

In order to implement the new 
guidelines, RS&H developed and led 
training and orientation modules for 
County professionals, Modules included 
an orientation to the new guidelines 
for CIP professionals, a Train-the­
Trainer curriculum for senior staff and 
a policies and recommendations brief 
for high-level decision-makers. MDC 
subsequently incorporated guidelines 
into a new implementing order , 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT 

(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (Cily and Stale} (3) ROLE 

a. 
RS&H Jacksonville, FL Energy Analysis and Planning 
(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (Cily and Stale) (3) ROLE 

b. 
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20 EXAMPlE PROJECT KEY 
NUMBER 

'. . . ' (Pres~nt as many projects as requested by the agenCy' 0; 10 projects: jf not specified, ' .. ' , .' 3 '. . .. ....:.:; . . Compfete on Section F for each project.) ' .• :',~.\ :':, '.:<':':. . ... .'. ;., ." 

21. TntE AND LOCATION (City and Slale) 

West Palm Beach Sustainability Action Plan 
West Palm Beach, Florida 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION 

a PROJECT OWNER tI POINT or CQNT'f!.CT Nf\ME 

City of West Palm Beach Penelope Red ford 
24. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope size, and cost) 

22. YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (if (lppJicable) 

2011 N/A 

c. POINT OF CONTACT TElEPHONE NUMBER 

(561) 804-4994 

. Project Demonstrates: ' ' . 

./ Optimizing of Operations 

./ Energy Efficiency 

./ Alternative Energy 

./ Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

./ Climate Change Mitigation 
and Adaptation 

./ Strategic Planning 

./ Community Outreach 

Erin Deady was the Project Manager for the City of West Palm Beach's Sustainability Action Plan (approximately 11 months in 
duration). The initiative included a greenhouse gas inventory, public outreach and engagement and ultimately production of the 
overall plan. The Focus Areas include: Natural Resources & Water Conservation; Land Use, Redevelopment & Transportation; 
Sustainable Buildings & Housing; Waste Management & Recycling; Growing a Green Economy; and Urban Agriculture & 
Community Gardens. Because the Office of Sustainability is housed within the Utilities Department, the Plan had a particular 
focus on creating a baseline of current water resource, infrastructure and conservation initiatives and capitalizing on where 
to make improvements. 

The planning process included numerous unique attributes to build internal and external stakeholder support For instance, 
the Team conducted approximately 30 internal and external stakeholder interviews to gain insights into the support, level 
of understanding and perceived challenges for implementing the sustainability planning effort. The process also included 
a widely attended workshop to perform various exercises to develop goals and strategies including ranking those by using 
Turning Point polling software to provide immediate and live feedback on participant's preferences on implementing solutions . 

The project served as a cornerstone of the Office of Sustainability's new branding effort "Rethinking Paradise for a Green City" 
and the City has begun tracking progress towards implementing its goals. 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT 

(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and S/atCJ) (3) ROLE 

a. 
Erin L Deady, PA Lantana, FL Project Manager 
(1)FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (Clly and Stale) (3) ROLE 

b. 

-
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': ":. .' __ . '. (Present as many projecls as requested by the agency, or 10 projects, jf ~ot specified. ' : .... " 
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21. nTlE AND lQCAnON ICiry and St.,o) 22. YEAR COMPLETED 

Comprehensive Sustainability Services 
More than 300 locations across the globe 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRucnDN (i( applicable) 

Ongoing N/A 
23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION 

a PROJECT OWNER b POINT OF CONTACT NAME c POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER 

Defense Commissary Agency (DeCA) Mark Leeper (804) 734-8000 x8626 
24 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RElEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size, and cost) 

Since 1995, RS&H has been providing award-winning, comprehensive sustainability services to DeCA. RS&H developed and 
maintains a database and web-based portal that tracks and manages energy, water and waste volumes and expenses, along 
with additional core facility data, for nearly 300 locations world-wide. The database tracks DeCA's progress towards federally 
mandated goals through reporting functions. Reports are used to identify and prioritize facility assessments and investment 
in building upgrades. 

In support of this work, RS&H has performed energy and water assessments of over 
70 facilities totaling more than 3 million square feet. Audits and commissioning efforts 
have been conducted at locations in the US, Germany, Japan and Guam. Efficiency 
and improvement projects that have been implemented provide an annual cost savings 
over $1.5 million with an average 3 year pay back. RS&H audits have included condition 
and safety assessments and recommendations for improving the non-utility operations 
and maintenance of facilities . 

" .. ' ," Project De'monstrates: " :.:" 

./ 

./ 

./ 

Comprehensive Sustainability 
Planning 

Facility Resource Efficiency 

Sustainability Revenue 

Greenhouse Gas Accounting 

RS&H has assisted DeCA in developing its Environmental Management System (EMS) in accordance with ISO 14001 Features 
of DeCA's EMS include a Solid Waste Management Program that realized a net benefit of more than $36 million in 6 years 
for DeCA, an ROI of almost 18 to 1. Water conservation and leak detection programs have saved over 955 million gallons. 

In addition to core facility assessment services, RS&H has conducted over 50 classes and produced training videos educating 
DeCA employees on how to operate facilities optimally. RS&H has also provided recommendations to update DeCA's Design 
Guidelines relating to resource efficiency, including insights regarding USGBC's LEED rating system. 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT 

(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (Cily and Slale) (3) ROLE 

a . 
RS&H Jacksonville, FL Project Manager 
(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and Slale) (3) ROLE 

b. 
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21. TI11.E lIND LOCATION (Clly on. 5"'.1 

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Strategy 
Jacksonville, Florida 

23, PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION 

2009 

22, YEAR COMPLETED 

CONSTRUCTION (if lfppllCclbleJ 

N/A 

a PROJECT OWNER b POINT OF CONTACT NAME c POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER 

City of Jacksonville Ebenezer Gujjarlapudi (90/1) 255-7245 
2-4 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Includo scope, sileo and cost) 

RS&H worked with the City of Jacksonville, Florida to secure a $7.8 million Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant 
(EECBG) . As part of this process, RS&H developed an Energy Efficiency and Conservation Strategy (EECS) for the City The 
EECS outlined a comprehensive strategy for utilizing grant funds to save energy, reduce greenhouse gas emissions and 
create jobs throughout the region. 

In this role, RS&H gathered and analyzed detailed information on City operations, interviewed over 100 stakeholders, and 
solicited over 50 public comments. Through this process, over 200 potential energy-saving projects were identified . RS&H 
quantitatively and qualitatively analyzed these projects from an environmental, social and economic perspective. A project 
selection matrix evaluated the energy savings, greenhouse gas abatement, developing a decision-making matrix for selecting 
high-value projects 

Working with City officials, as well as the Cities of Atlantic Beach, Neptune Beach, Jacksonville Beach, the Town of Baldwin, 
Duval County Public Schools, and the Jacksonville Aviation, Electric, Port and Transportation Authorities , RS&H developed a suite 
of eight programs, encompassing 19 individual projects that comprise the City's Energy Efficiency and Conservation Strategy, 
These projects address building energy audits and retrofits, lighting controls, utility monitoring software, waste management, 
low emission vehicles, residential energy efficiency and solar rebates, renewable energy and geothermal demonstration 
projects, clean technology job training, and community sustainability awareness. 

Together, these projects were projected to save over 40 million kilowatt hours of 
energy and avoid 37 thousand metric tons of greenhouse gasses per year, while 
creating 125 jobs. Savings equate approximately to the amount of energy used 
by 3,000 local homes. Including the costs of development and administration, the 
portfolio exhibits an estimated simple payback of 2.4 years or a return on investment 
of 56 percent over three years. In addition , the program will leverage an additional 
$3,7 million in project funding from the community. The project was delivered on 
time and 44% under budget. 

.; 

.; 

.; 

.; 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT 

(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City iJnd Stare) (3) ROLE 

Energy Planning and Analysis 

Energy Project Evaluation 

Greenhouse Gas Accounting 

Energy Efficiency Program Design 

a. 
RS&H Jacksonville, FL Energy Analysis and Planning 
(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (eily and Stare) (3) ROLE 

b. 



21 , TInE AND LOCATION (City and Slalo) 

Village of Pinecrest Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Forecast 
Miami-Dade County, Florida 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION 

a PROJECT OWNER b POINT OF CONTACT NAME 

Village of Pinecrest Angela Gasca 
24 BRIEF DESCRIPTION or- PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, SIZe, and cos/) 

The Village of Pinecrest, located in Miami-Dade County, 
Florida, established sustainability goals to save money 
through energy and water cost reductions, and to 
reduce its dependence on foreign oil and fossil fuels . 
To this end, Pinecrest joined ICLEI-Local Governments 
for Sustainability and made a commitment to achieve 
ICLEI's Five Milestones_ A GHG inventory is required as 
part of the first milestone, "Sustainability Assessment" 

RS&H is working closely with the Village of Pinecrest 
to complete an accurate, meaningful GHG emissions 
inventory and forecast that will allow the Village to 
benchmark sustainability performance, measure 
progress, and plan effectively for the future . The 
inventory will have two separate components, 
addressing emissions produced in the community at 
large and those directly related to local government 
operations (LGOP) . The community inventory has 
been completed, and the local government operations 
inventory is currently in progress. 

RS&H obtained data needed to complete the 
community inventory from Miami-Dade County, local 
utility companies, Florida Department of Transportation, 
and other sources. Using an innovative combination 
of Federal, State of Florida, and regional transportation 
models. RS&H calculated Vehicle Miles Travelled to 

20 EXAMPLE PROJECT KEY 
NUMBER 

6 
';2. YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (If i1ppJlcfJb/e) 

2014 N/A 

C, POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER 

(305) 234-2121 

estimate emissions from transportation. the sector contributing the largest share of Pinecrest's community inventory. Other 
emissions sources included in the inventory were: natural gas and electricity consumption. solid waste disposal, and process 
energy associated with potable water distribution and wastewater collection/treatment. 

The inventory was prepared using ICLEI's CACP software and following the principles of relevance, completeness. consistency, 
transparency, and accuracy The effort was extensively documented by RS&H to facilitate future updates to the emissions 
estimates. Emissions were calculated for a baseline year (2010) and the most recent year (2012), allowing recent progress 
in emissions reductions to be quantified 

RS&H also prepared a forecast of community emissions, using the two inventory years and trends in transportation fuel use, 
population, and economic growth to estimate future emissions in 2014, 2020 and 2030 These estimates will help Pinecrest 
achieve its long term sustainability goals by tailoring appropriate strategies to meet emissions reduction targets 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT 

(1) r=mM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (Clly and Sla/c) (J) ROI E 

a. 
RS&H Jacksonville, FL Energy Analysis and Planning 
(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (Cily and Slale) (3) ROLE 

b_ 
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21. nnE AND LOCATION (City and Slate) 22. YEAR COMPLETED 

Resource Efficiency Plan 
Cily Rock Hill, SC 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (if appUt'!able) 

2012 
23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION 

a PROJECT OWNER 

City of Rock Hi" Rebecca Hooks 
24 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size, and cost) 

A detailed baseline is essential for defining goals, 
developing and implementing an effective plan, 
and measuring the results of improvement efforts. 
Accordingly, RS&H focused on characterizing past 
and current performance at Rock Hill, while performing 
preliminary facilitation, planning and implementation 
tasks that will serve as the framework for more in-depth 
phases of effort, The resulting deliverable - a document 
of the City's baseline performance and a road map for 
continual improvement - will function as a resource for 
decision-making, a guide for project management and 
a prospectus for grants and other funding opportunities. 

RS&H characterized the City's resource efficiency 
performance by compiling and analyzing three years of 
data for six significant aspects of municipal operations: 
land use and transportation, energy and greenhouse 
gases, water, waste, fleet management and regulation. 
addition to analyzing performance and assessing trends, 
RS&H benchmarked the City of Rock Hill against three peer 
municipalities: Charlotte, NC; Gainesville, FL: and Greenville, SC. 

The baseline served as the foundation of a series of 
workshops with City staff representing a" key aspects 
of municipal operations Under RS&H's facilitation, staff 
evaluated the City's strengths, weaknesses, opportunities 
and threats; identified five areas for future focus; and 
established preliminary goals, objectives, initiatives and 
metrics for each focus area over a twenty year horizon 

RS&H supplemented the City's preliminary planning by 
establishing Resource Efficiency Plans (REPs) for land use / 
transportation, energy, water, waste and fleet management. 
These REPs will serve as tools for design, implementation and 
measurement of initiatives aimed at continuously improving on the 
City's three-year performance baseline. Recommendations for 
public and private funding resources for supporting a long-term 
commitment to resource efficiency improvement were integrated 
into each REP, based on RS&H's extensive experience with grants 
and other sources of funding that support resource efficiency 

c POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER 

(803) 326-3832 

./ Climate Action Planning 

./ Greenhouse Gas Accounting 

./ Facility Resource Efficiency 

./ Fleet Management 

./ Facilitation and Visioning 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT 

(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (Cily and State) (3) ROLE 

a. 
RS&H Jacksonville, FL Energy Analysis & Planning 
(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (Cily and State) (J) ROLE 

b. 

N/A 
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20, EXAMPLE PROJECT KEY 
NUMBER 

8 
21 . TITlE AND LOCATION (City and Slate) 22, YEAR COMPLETED 

City of Jacksonville Vision Plan and Future Land Use 
Jacksonville, Florida 

23, PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION 

a PROJECT OWNER b POINT OF CONTACT NAME 

City of Jacksonville William Killingsworth 
24 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RELEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size, and cosl) 

)J 

,"'- . 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (it appl;cable) 

2010 N/A 

c POINT OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER 

(904) 630-2879 

~j; ~ ~~----~~----~~~~~'.~~--.~~~~~~,~~~ 
Proposed Pedestrian Bridge Across the Limited Access Expressway 

The City of Jacksonville embarked on a two plus year long planning study to develop Visions for Planning Districts i-The 
Urban Core, 2 - Greater Arlington/Beaches, and 3 - The Southeast, plus a future land-use plan for the entire city The success 
of this grassroots effort has been in great part due to the thoughtful and creative input from the community The purpose of 
the plans has been to identify sustainable community goals, objectives, and planning potentials for growth. 

Now completed, the Vision Plans, together with the new Future Land use Map and Future Land Use Element, provide a blueprint 
for sustainable future development throughout the entire city. The vision includes strategies for enhancing the quality of life by 
addressing neighborhood preservation, industrial preservation, and green infrastructure, 

The vision and planning process included a public outreach process with a blog that allowed direct and real-time communication 
with the community. The development of the plans included community conversations and a steering committee for each 
district. The vision plans are framed by guiding principles developed as a result of the process. 

The five guiding principles, which vary a bit from district to district, are: 

1. Community Character/Uniqueness 
2 Mixed Land Uses/Density/Redevelopment Infill 
3 Improving Transportation Choice 
4 Economic Growth 
5 Open Space/Green Infrastructure 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT 

(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and Slale) (3) ROLE 

a 
Zyscovich, Inc Miami, FL Energy Analysis and Planning 
(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (Cily and Siale) (3) ROLE 

b, 
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21, TrTl£ AND LOCATlON ICq.nd SI.,e) 

Sustainability Management Planning 
Volusia County. Florida 

a PROJECT OWNER 

Volusia County TPO 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION 

b POINT OF CONTACT NAME 

Heather Blanck 
24 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND RElEVANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size. and cost) 

22. YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESS,ONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (i! RpplicRblo) 

2010 N/A 

c POINl OF CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER 

(386) 761-7700 

.,' ,-':" ': Project Demonstrates: '.' ' . 

./ Optimizing Operations 

./ Strategic Planning 

./ Fleet Management 

./ Community Outreach 

./ Greenhouse Gas Accounting 

The Volusia County's public transportation system (Votran) provides the mobility needs of Volusia County, As such, Votran is 
uniquely positioned to educate and promote pragmatic sustainable solutions in Volusia County, 

RS&H worked with Votran to develop a long-term vision for sustainability in its operations, by identifying and prioritizing the 
projects that will help realize indirect and direct economic returns and improve upon Votran's environmental performance, 

In the first phase of the project, RS&H established a baseline of environmental performance at Votran. including a preliminary 
greenhouse gas inventory, a comparison of operating procedures with Best Management Practices, and development of 
a portfolio of options to improve financial, social and environmental performance. In phase two. RS&H derived a return 
on investment for opportunities for improvement in the areas of energy, water, waste and air quality, In phase three, RS&H 
formalized and detailed the elements of Votran's systematic process to manage enterprise-wide sustainability initiatives and 
improvements for the next five years, 

By implementing the Sustainability Management Plan, Votran has the potential to realize over $1 .7 million in direct and indirect 
economic benefits through 2015, Approximately $800,000 will be generated from reduced fuel consumption, Votran also has 
the potential to realize approximately $700,000 in revenue by addressing GHG emissions through the increased use of public 
transit by Volusia County residents. 

25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT 

(1) FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (Cily and Stale) (31 ROLE 

a. 
RS&H Jacksonville, FL Project Manager 
(11 FIRM NAME (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and Stale) (31 ROLE 

b. 
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21 nTLE AND LOCAnON (Ciry and Stale) 

20 EXAMPLE PROJECT KEY 
NUMBER 

10 
22. YEAR COMPLETED 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSTRUCTION (if appJiCilb/~' 

Alternative Fuels, Vehicles and Infrastructure Strategy 
2013 N/A 

23. PROJECT OWNER'S INFORMATION 

a PROJECT OWNER b POINT OF CONTACT NAME c POINT OF CONTACT TELI::PHONE NUMBER 

North Florida TPO Jeff Sheffield (904) 306-7512 
24 BRIEF DESCRIPTION or- PROJECT AND RELI::VANCE TO THIS CONTRACT (Include scope, size, and cost) 

RS&H is assisting the North Florida Transportation Planning Organization (NFTPO) with a multi-phase effort to develop and 
implement a strategy to advance alternative fuels, alternative fuel vehicles and supporting infrastructure. 

Relative to gasoline and diesel fuels, alternative fuels - including biodiesel, electricity, ethanol, hydrogen. natural gas and 
propane - feature reduced greenhouse gas emissions. lessened health impacts. and lower resource costs. However. widespread 
adoption of alternative fuels faces the barrier of coordinating investment in both fuel supply and demand. including both 
vehicles and fueling infrastructure 

In Phase One of its efforts. RS&H developed an inventory of vehicle fleets and fueling infrastructure in Duval. Nassau. Clay 
and SI Johns Counties. RS&H collected data on regional diesel fuel consumption and vehicle fleets. It also developed and 
administered interviews and surveys with significant fleet operators. Utilizing Geographical Information Systems. the locations 
and key characteristics of fleets were mapped. Locations of existing public and private petroleum-based and alternative 
fueling infrastructure were also mapped. RS&H worked with local gas distribution companies to understand the location of 
gas transmission and distribution infrastructure and its impact on a future CNG / LNG system and with electric utilities to 
understand support for electric vehicle charging stations. 

Using this geospatial database as a basis, RS&H developed a preliminary business 
case for phased development of CNG and LNG fueling stations coordinated with 
targeted investment in fleet conversions Supplementing this vision is a proposed gas 
liquefaction / LNG storage hub situated at the Jacksonville Port Authority. extending 
the utility of natural gas fuels to marine vessels, while supporting drayage. heavy duty 
long haul transport as well as regional CNG infrastructure 

In the current phase of work. RS&H is developing business cases for biodiesel, electricity, 
ethanol, hydrogen and propane, with an aim towards 
development of partnerships for project implementation . The 
result will be a regional master plan for advancing alternatives 
in the region 
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25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT 
--r--

(1) FIRM NAMI:: (2) FIRM LOCATION (City and State, PI ROLE 

. Project Demonstrates: 

./ Alternate Fuel Consulting 

./ Fleet Inventory Management 

.; Climate Change Mitigation 

.; Transportation Planning 

.; Strategic Planning 

a 
RS&H Jacksonville, FL Alternative Fuel Analysis and Planning 
(1) FIRI\\ NAtvlE (2) FIRM LOCATION (Clry and Slate) PI ROLE 

b. 



SECTIONJI SF 330, Part G Matrix 

BSB 



.. 

28. EXAMPLE PROJECTS LISTED IN SECTION F 
(Fill in "Examples Projects Key" section below 

26. NAMES OF KEY PERSONNEL (From 27. ROLE IN THIS CONTRACT (From before completing table. Place ·X" under project 
Section E, Block 12) Section E, Block 13) key number for participation in same or similar 

role.) 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
- - - 1- - -

Mike McCarthy, MBA, PG, LEED AP Project Manager, Education & Outreach • • • • • • 
Rick Chesser, PE Project Officer/Planner 

Dr. Paul F. Hutchins, Jr., Ph D., PE, 
OAlOC • LEED AP. CEM • • • 

Ben Moore, AICp' LEED GA 
Sustainability Planning, GHG Inventory, • • • Education & Outreach • • • • • 

---
Erin L Deady 

Sustainability Planning, Land Use & • Development, Education & Outreach 

Frederick Jones, AICP Land Use & Development • • • 
I-

William T Todd, PE, CEM, LEED AP 
Energy Efficiency • • • • • BD+C 

I-

Daniel Brilier, PE, LEED AP BD+C Energy Efficiency • 
Timothy Whitley, PE, CxA, CCp' 

Energy Efficiency 
LEED A • • • 
Jeffrey Prewitt, PG, ClEC, CEICC Resource Conservation • • • • • • • 
Scott Vockell, LEED AP Resource Conservation • 
Nathan Stinette Resource Conservation, GHG Inventory • • • • • 
Darys Avila 

Land Use & Development, • Natural Area Preservation 
- -

Bernard Zyscovich; FAIA Education & Outreach • 
Thorn Grafton, AlA Land Use & Development • 
Grace Perdomo, AlA 

Natural Area Preservation , 
Sustainability Planning • 

Trent Baughn, RA, AICP 
Land Use & Development, • Natural Area Preservation 

Ben Chandler, PG, LEED AP Recycling & Waste Reduction • 
- -

Kimberly Baier, LEED AP BD-I-C Recyc ling & Waste Reduction • • • • • 
Jason DiGuglielmo, LEED AP. CIE Recycling & Waste Reduction • 
Candace Darn, LEED AP Greenhouse Gas Inventory • • • • • • 



25. FIRMS FROM SECTION C INVOLVED WITH THIS PROJECT 

No. I TITLE OF EXAMPLE PROJECT (FROM SECTION F) No. TITLE OF EXAMPLE PROJECT (FROM SECTION F) 

1 NASA KSC 6 City of Pinecrest 

2 Miami-Dade County 7 City of Rock Hill 

3 West Palm Beach 8 City of Jacksonville Vision Plan (Zyscovich) 

4 DeCA 9 VOTRAN 

5 
City of Jacksonville Energy Efficiency and 

10 North Florida TPO 
Conservation Strategy (RS&H) 

'.' . '. - STANDARD FORM 330 (1/2004) PAGE 57 



SECTION II SF 330 Part H Additional Information 

BStB. 



, ,', ," :" . ' ," -' " ", .' 'if. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION - ,", . " 
, -

30 PROVIDE ANY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REaUESTED BY THE AGENCY ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEETS AS NEEDED 

At its root, sustainability improves the quality of life and promotes the efficient use of resources, Coral Gables is well positioned 
to capitalize on these inherent values, As a beautifully planned and well-maintained community Coral Gables boasts a very 
attractive residential and international business setting with many of the essential features and services that will allow the city 
to quickly realize the economic, social and environmental benefits of sustainability 

For more than 12 years, RS&H has worked with local, national and international clients to integrate sustainable business 
practices into their operations. With more than fifty sustainability projects in Florida for thirty clients, the RS&H Team is well 
versed in the technical and business solutions essential to succeeding with sustainability in the Sunshine state, 

The Team we have assembled for this project, RS&H, Zyscovich, Inc. (Zyscovich) and Erin L. Deady, PA, is uniquely qualified 
to serve the needs of the City of Coral Gables, Zyscovich's integrated practice of urban planners, architects and landscape 
architects are attuned to the unique qualities of Coral Gables, Their awareness of the City's green initiatives and associated 
organizational insights on opportunities and sustainability leaders will ensure the project's success, The firm's visioning 
and sustainable planning services have provided a blueprint for future development in communities seeking to update and/ 
or create future land use maps and associated elements as part of a comprehensive planning effort. Zyscovich has also 
provided sustainable building design services for a number of South Florida agencies and has successfully met the required 
goals and objectives 

Ms Erin Deady of Erin L Deady, PA is an Attorney, Certified Planner and LEED Accredited Professional, with significant 
project management experience on complex sustainability, energy and climate projects throughout Florida These projects 
included and implemented public engagement and outreach strategies as well as integrated Sustainability Master Plans into 
local government policy and decision making processes, In addition, she has used her impressive expertise to secure more 
than $6 million in grant funding for sustainability. energy and climate projects 

Our Team's experience underscores the fact that the benefits of sustainability are best realized by creating quick wins and 
leveraging economic incentives that encourage the pursuit of organization-wide sustainability initiatives. For example, our 
energy efficiency practice has delivered more than $125 million in cost avoidance to our clients, Our waste to revenue 
programs extract valuable commodities from the waste stream and convert them into revenue. One of our clients is generating 
more than $5.5 million in net revenue from their RS&H designed and executed system, They have realized a total return of 
more than $33 million in net revenue to date, more than 20 times their initial investment. 

Our technical and business solutions succeed because of the commitment of senior management to the overall success 
of the organization. The RS&H Team works with our clients to craft a strategic vision around sustainability. As part of the 
development process we identify key sustainability champions within the organization and work with them on a coordinated 
approach to continuously cultivate management support and employee engagement. These attributes coupled with our 
technical expertise are the primary reasons why our client's short and long-term sustainability initiatives succeed 

Overall the RS&H Team's technical expertise includes focus areas including energy and fuel conseNation, greenhouse 
gas (GHG) management, resource conservation, land use development, natural area preseNation, recycling and waste 
minimization and education and outreach Our Team is also well versed in locating alternative funding sources within 
organizations and externally through grants A brief overview of our technical expertise is provided below: 

ENERGY AND FUEL CONSERVATION 
The City of Coral Gables operates numerous facilities and assets that consume energy. Examples include 17 municipal 
buildings, utility infrastructure (e g. pump stations), street lights and a vehicle fleet RS&H worked with the City of Jacksonville 
to develop over 500 energy efficiency projects resulting in an estimated annual avoided cost of $300,000 and an ROI of 
18%. Business cases for sustained investment were developed, showing that an aggressive approach could produce higher 
returns and net benefits in excess of $65 million. Based on a quantitative baseline of the City of Rock Hill's vehicle fleet, 
including fuel use, vehicle miles travelled (VMT), expenditures and emissions, RS&H helped set goals to increase fleet fuel 
economy by 100% relative to a 2011 baseline using a mix of technology and education 
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RESOURCE CONSERVATION 
The City of Coral Gables operates numerous facilities and assets that consume energy. Examples include 17 municipal 
buildings, utility infrastructure (e g. pump stations), street lights and a vehicle fleet. RS&H worked with the City of Jacksonville 
to develop over 500 energy efficiency projects resulting in an estimated annual avoided cost of $300,000 and an ROI of 
18%. Business cases for sustained investment were developed, showing that an aggressive approach could produce higher 
returns and net benefits in excess of $6.5 million. Based on a quantitative baseline of the City of Rock Hill's vehicle fleet, 
including fuel use, vehicle miles travelled (VMT), expenditures and emissions, RS&H helped set goals to increase fleet fuel 
economy by 100% relative to a 2011 baseline using a mix of technology and education. 

LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT 
Land Use is the most visible of the sustainability planning components. The Team's approach is focused on four key 
components. First is a strong sense of place. As one of the nation's first fully planned communities, decisions about land 
use and development in Coral Gables should celebrate what is unique about its people, culture, heritage, and natural history. 
Second is integration of sustainable features Green building and low impact development should be emphasized, while 
ensuring public and private facilities meet the daily needs of all residents. Third, is multimodal connectivity Bicycle and 
pedestrian modes should be prioritized, with daily needs clustered near population centers. RS&H worked with Orange 
County to address these issues through an update to the County's Comprehensive Plan, incorporating sustainability goals 
and objectives into each of the Plan's elements. 

NATURAL AREA PRESERVATION 
The City of Coral Gables is graced with a distinctive tree canopy and one of the most comprehensive parks and recreation 
programs in the state. These assets are part of the City's "Green Infrastructure." Green infrastructure is the system of land 
and vegetation comprising a community's ecosystem and which can be used to help offset negative environmental impacts 
of human habitation, for example storm water runoff and urban heat island effect. Cities across the country are beginning to 
realize the benefit of green infrastructure as natural capital by recognizing how it can help meet multiple municipal goals in 
cost-effective ways. For example, instead of considering the tree canopy a maintenance expense, it may be re-conceptualized 
as an asset, providing clean water and air, among many other benefits. One of the Team's more innovative projects rescued 
a dying wetland and cypress tree ecosystem drained by municipal well field pumping. The award-winning design cascades 
excess storm water runoff through a series of infiltration ponds to rehabilitate the vitality of the ecosystem and remove the 
flooding hazard for adjacent communities. 

RECYCLING AND WASTE MINIMIZATION 
A high percentage of waste streams contain commodities that can be converted into revenue. Through waste stream 
analyses and process improvements the RS&H Team has helped clients move towards their zero waste generation goals while 
increasing recycling revenues For the Defense Commissary Agency, RS&H developed and helped the Agency implement 
a compelling business case that has generated more than $33 million in net recycling revenues for the Agency over six (6) 
years while reducing solid waste disposal costs RS&H has also conducted waste sorts to help the Agency identify options 
to further reduce its waste volumes through composting 

EDUCATION AND OUTREACH 
Sustainability efforts depend upon effectively engaging stakeholders both internally and externally. The Team is committed 
to promoting the City of Coral Gables Sustainability Master Plan through innovative community outreach techniques. The 
RS&H Team has developed and produced internal education and outreach programs and materials that have been used 
to train more than 20,000 individual throughout the world. The Team is also well versed in conducting effective community 
outreach initiatives for sustainable master plans using webpages, web-based tools (e.g. MindMixer) community meetings 
and workshops. 

The Team's award-winning local, national and international sustainability projects, backed by the ability to generate significant 
financial successes for our clients, surmount the barriers to organizational sustainability by crafting a strategic vision, 
generating organizational support, motivating internal and external stakeholders and fostering continual improvement. RS&H 
applied this approach to NASA's first ever center-wide sustainability plan . The Kennedy Space Center (KSC) Sustainability 
Plan, consisting of more than 200 unique projects developed over a nine month period of collaboration, received the coveted 
Blue Marble Award for environmental excellence. The approach detailed in the following pages reflects the RS&H Team's 
understanding of the characteristics of successful sustainable organizations and how to foster them within the City of Coral 
Gables. 
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PROJECT APPROACH 
INTRODUCTION 
RS&H has worked with and trained more than 20,000 people in the US and 12 other countries to successfully integrate 
sustainability into their operations. As a result our clients have generated more than $30 million in net revenue and saved 
more than $100 million through sustainability projects. These results were realized by fostering organizations focused on 
innovative solutions, stakeholder engagement and proven results. 

The project approach detailed below incorporates the best practices RS&H and its sub-consultants have developed to 
engage clients across Florida and around the world to actualize a commitment to sustainability. It will result in a project-driven 
Sustainability Master Plan for the City of Coral Gables, harnessing top-down, bottom-up management values to motivate 
employees, and inspire triple bottom line performance: business success, enhanced quality of life and environmental 
stewardship. 

RS&H looks forward to working with the City to craft a scope of work and project approach tailored specifically to its objectives 

OVERVIEW OF PROJECT APPROACH 
Sustainability does not propagate via a reductionist 
methodology. It requires empowerment of human 
systems - in this case focusing the government 
operations of Coral Gables. It demands effective 
orchestration of organizations, politics and culture 
The approach focuses on understanding these 
aspects qualitatively and quantitatively in order to 
effectively engage key stakeholders. The approach 
recognizes that members of a diverse community 
capture more resources and produce more enduring 
outcomes than a monoculture. 

The project approach is grouped into three 
Figure 1: Project Approach Fundamentals fundamentals: Solutions, Engagement and 

Results. The outputs of each are the result of a 
series of activities described in detail on the following pages. Collectively, these project components respond to all the 
elements identified in the RFO. 

Solutions entail understanding City Government and the community it 
serves. Oualitative assessments will produce an understanding of the 
institutions, politics and cultures that drive innovation in Coral Gables, 
while quantitative assessments will ground insights in conclusions derived 
from available data. Solutions will flow from identifying challenges and 
recognizing the opportunities inherent in the City's present and future 
state 

Solutions emergent from qualifying and quantifying the City's baseline and 
forecasted conditions will facilitate Engagement. Engagement consists of 
informed cross discipline collaboration among the City's diverse staff and 
stakeholders, with support and facilitation provided by the RS&H Team Out 
of this collaboration, projects tailored to Coral Gables will emerge along 
with the local leaders who will ultimately be responsible for sustainability 
performance. A Sustainability Master Plan will document this process and 
provide a road map for the future. 

With a Sustainability Master Plan in place, the work of consultants will 
rapidly be replaced by a native organization for producing sustainability 
Results. Results will unfold over the course of five years, ten years and 
beyond. RS&H will provide initial guidance on plan implementation, funding 
options and recommendations for overcoming barriers. Customized 

When evaluating capital projects. does 
your department require life-cycle costs 

analysis of project components? 
100% ,--------------

80% 1---

67% 

60% 

40% 

0% 0% 

Yes No I don't know No Answer 

Figure 2: Sample Miami-Dade County Survey Results 



communications will lay the groundwork for a developing a culture dedicated to an innovative, efficient City focused on 
enhancing quality of life and economic development using sustainability as one of its tools. 

RS&H will begin the project by conducting a Kick-Off Meeting with the City's Project Manager and Environmental Specialist, 
Sonja Succar Ferre and key stakeholders, providing an overview of the project strategy, milestones and deliverables. The 
meeting will begin the process of integrating the City's organizational structure and existing efforts into a systematic process 
for achieving triple bottom line performance. Case studies of RS&H's work for local government will be used to illustrate 
RS&H's approach and share best practices. Through dialogue with the City's key staff, RS&H will refine strategic priorities 
and identify key contacts and resources integral to gathering data and establishing the qualitative and quantitative baselines. 

SOLUTIONS 
With consensus on the overall project strategy reached via the Kick-Off Meeting, the RS&H Team will qualitatively and 
quantitatively establish baseline and forecasted sustainability performance. Solutions will derive from assessing community 
capacity, evaluating baseline performance, with respect to key resources, inventorying and forecasting greenhouse gas 
emissions, benchmarking the City against peers and analyzing key gaps where improved performance is desirable. 

QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE BASELINE 

RS&H will qualitatively characterize Coral Gables by 
reviewing past activities and present capacity. Through 
a thorough review of the City's existing sustainability 
policies (e g , the Trolley Master Plan, Bicycle Master 
Plan, the Lighting Survey, etc), and other relevant 
plans, strategies and processes (e.g. comprehensive 
plans, development regulations, capital improvement 
processes, procurement, etc.), RS&H will familiarize 
itself with the City's efforts to date. 

Interviews with key stakeholders identified by the City's 
Project Management (e.g. representative from key 
City departments, the Green Task Force, etc) will be 
conducted to establish an organizational map of existing 
stakeholder roles and responsibilities. Mapping will help 
RS&H identify opportunities to develop internal/external 
relationships to increase the depth and breadth of 
sustainability in Coral Gables. 

RS&H utilized similar techniques to integrate sustainability 
principles into Miami-Dade County's Capital Improvement 
Process (CIP). RS&H conducted a literature review of 
County policies, procedures, and planning documents, 
Leaders from 14 distinct departments involved in capital 
Improvements were surveyed using a web-based 
questionnaire. Follow-up interviews were conducted 
based on the survey. The result was twofold: a clear 
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Figure 3: Sample Lake County Baseline Assessment 

Charlotte Gainesville Greenville Rock Hill 

Figure 4: Sample Rock Hill Fleel GHG Inlensily Benchmarking 

picture of the County's current CIP performance and employee-generated input on how best to improve the process. The 
qualitative assessment RS&H will conduct for Coral Gables will assess the depth, degree, and diffusion of sustainability 
throughout the organization. 

The RS&H Team will quantitatively analyze key economic, environmental and social metrics currently tracked by the City / its 
key stakeholders. RS&H will work with the City's Project Manager to determine the information to be collected and issue a 
data request accordingly. Information that will likely be included in the data collection effort include information on: air quality, 
energy, solid waste reduction and recycling, natural resources, water conservation and management, community investment 
and development, fleet management and transportation, buildings and facilities and human resources. Data will be cross­
tabulated, normalized, and trended as necessary to produce metrics for assessing the City's sustainability performance. 

In addition, RS&H will document the processes, tools and analyses Coral Gables presently utilizes to produce the information 
to be collected . It will also identify key metrics not currently collected by the City and any barriers that prevent collection 
Insights derived here will be utilized later in the process to develop protocols for tracking and evaluating progress over time 
via a tailored reporting framework 



In 2011, RS&H established a qualitative baseline for Lake County's 25 most energy-intensive facilities Twenty-four months of 
physical and operational data was collected and analyzed utilizing ENERGY STAR Portfolio Manager to evaluate opportunities 
for organizational improvement In 2012, it quantitatively analyzed the vehicle fleet of the City of Rock Hill, South Carolina Three 
years of fuel, vehicle miles travelled and expenditure data were analyzed and a greenhouse gas inventory was produced . 
Based on the assessment, RS&H benchmarked the city against peers. RS&H then recommended alternative fuels for heavy 
duty fleet vehicles and strategies to reduce VMT for light-duty vehicles 

Utilizing a similar approach, the quantitative assessment will establish a baseline for facility and infrastructure energy use, 
water consumption, waste consumption and fleet operations. This baseline will do more than pave the way for a greenhouse 
gas inventory and forecast. It will establish a basis for comparing Coral Gables to its peers, identify areas for improvement, 
establish inputs for business planning and provide a reference for evaluating tools for enterprise-wide data management 

GREENHOUSE GAS INVENTORY AND FORECAST 

The analyses conducted as part of the resource 
baseline will form the basis of the greenhouse 
gas inventory of government operations. 
This will be supplemented by data collection 
and analysis required to produce a citywide 
emissions inventory. 

RS&H will work with the Coral Gables Project 
Team, and other data providers as determined 
at the Kick-off meeting, to specifying and collect 
information needed for the community-wide 
inventory. Since developing a community-wide 
GHG inventory depends on the availability of 
data beyond the operational control of the City, 
RS&H will coordinate with the Project Team to 
obtain additional data from utilities and other 
providers . RS&H's experience conducting GHG 
assessments for municipalities in Miami-Dade 
County will facilitate this process. 
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Figure 5: GHG Emissions Scopes (adapted from ICLEI/WRI protocols) 

After receiving sufficient information, RS&H will proceed to establish the GHG emissions inventory based on available data. 
The government inventory will be conducted in accordance with ICLEI's Local Government Operations Protocol (LGOP), 
Version 1.1, The citywide inventory will be conducted in accordance with the U.S . Community Protocol for Accounting and 
Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Version 1.0, released by ICLEI in October, 2012. The inventories will be completed 

using the 2009 version ICLEI's CACP software. 
Tom COle Since ICLEI has announced its intention to 
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replace CACP with a web-based version of its 
GHG accounting software in early 2014, RS&H 
will confirm the ICLEI-supported GHG accounting 
tool used for this project with the City's Project 
Manager prior to proceeding with the inventory. 
The RS&H Team assumes the City will authorize 
RS&H to access the ICELI-supported software for 
data input purposes, 

The facilities and operations included in the 
government operations inventory will be specified 
in collaboration with the City's Project Manager, 
The following sectors are commonly included: 
buildings, vehicle fleets, streetlights and signals, 
water and sewage and solid waste Similarly, the 
scope of the citywide inventory will be determined 
in a similar manner, Typically, the residential, 
commercial, industrial, transportation, water/ 



wastewater treatment and solid waste sectors are included. Both the City's internal inventory and the community-wide 
inventory will include Scope 1 (direct) and Scope 2 (purchased energy) GHG emissions (see Figure 5) . RS&H will work with 
the City's Project Manager to determine whether to include Scope 3 (indirect emissions) for sources such as employee travel, 
commutes and the overall supply chain . 

RS&H will also develop GHG emissions forecasts for both the local government operations and community-wide inventories 
The forecasts will show the likely emissions totals in one or more future years under a "business as usual" scenario, based on 
local economic growth and prevailing trends in energy mixture and consumption rates. This information is useful as a point 
of reference as the City seeks to develop emissions reduction targets and compare actual reductions to forecast emissions 
levels . 

In 2013, RS&H conducted a citywide and government emissions inventory for the Village of Pinecrest in Miami-Dade County. 
RS&H worked with several stakeholders relevant to Coral Gables in collecting the data to complete the effort, including 
Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer Department, Miami-Oade Transit and Florida Power and Light. As part of community 
and government protocols produced for Green Cove Springs, Newberry and Bartow, Florida in 2012, RS&H developed a 
geospatial analysis of community transportation emissions. Since transportation emissions average 45% of GHG emissions 
statewide, understanding the patterns of transportation related emissions at the municipal level can inform local and regional 
transportation planning. RS&H is capable of applying similar geospatial techniques to citywide transportation and buildings 
emissions in Coral Gables. 

BENCHMARKING & GAP ANALYSIS 

Establishing a baseline allows objective comparisons between Coral Gables' sustainability achievements and other 
municipalities . The areas to be benchmarked will be consistent with metrics derived from the qualitative and quantitative 
analyses. The RS&H Team proposes to utilize standard such as the STAR Community Rating System to benchmark the City, 
The Sustainability Tools for Assessing and Rating Communities (STAR) tool was developed by ICLEI, U.S, Green Building 
Council, the National League of Cities and the Center for American Progress. The STAR framework assesses cities according 
to 7 goal areas (i .e. Built Environment; Climate & Energy; Economy & Jobs; Education, Arts & Community; Equality & 
Empowerment; Health & Safety; and Natural Systems) . Each area contains 5-7 objectives, amounting to 44 dimensions by 
which to measure and evaluate the City's performance and compare it to peers across the nation. Ultimately, Coral Gables 
can use the tool to achieve third party recognition and verification of its sustainability attainment and track its progress relative 
to its peers over time. 

Working with the City of Rock Hill, South Carolina, RS&H benchmarked the baseline sustainability ("resource efficiency") 
performance of municipal operations in six sectors (i .e. land use and transportation, energy, water, waste, fleet and policies 
! procedures) against three peer municipalities. RS&H worked with the City to identify its peers based on a variety of criteria, 
ensuring actionable results relevant to the City's "marketplace." The effort revealed areas where Rock Hill was a clear leader. 
It also highlighted exemplars for improvement, details of which were subsequently included into the City's sustainability 
planning processes. 
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Figure 7: Sample Cily of Rock Hill Policy Benchmarking 
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Upon completion of benchmarking efforts, a gap analysis will be performed The gap analysis will determine areas where the 
City would like to improve. For example, if Coral Gables is currently diverting less than 50 % of its solid waste stream to the 
landfill through recycling and composting and peer benchmarks point to a higher recycling value then cost-effective strategies 
to increase diversion can be evaluated . In addition, gap analysis can inform an assessment of the City's risk exposure . RS&H 
used a similar process to identify gaps in the environmental management system utilized at Austin-Bergstrom International 
Airport. Recommendations were provided for enhancing the airport's environmental organization based on the ISO 14001 
standard . The results of the Gap Analysis performed for Coral Gables will be used to inform development of achievable 
sustainability goals and identify the strategies necessary to meet them 



ENGAGEMENT 
The results of the Solutions phase of the project can 
be summarized in two deliverables. A government and 
citywide greenhouse gas inventory report and a "Solutions 
Memo," compiling key qualitative and quantitative metrics, 
the City's position relative to peer communities and best 
management practices for closing identified gaps, will be 
prepared. The inventory and memo will be the "launch pad" 
for the Engagement phase, during which the RS&H Team will 
facilitate interactions between City stakeholders. 

A Sustainability Master Plan Team (SMP Team) will be 
assembled with help from the City's Project Manager. The 
SMP Team may include sustainability leaders selected 
from City departments and members of the Green Task Figure 8. The Backcasling Process 
Force. It may also include additional leaders selected from 
the community as necessary to achieve goals. Working collaboratively, the RS&H Team and the SMP Team will establish 
sustainability goals, develop projects to meet those goals and produce a Sustainability Master Plan 

COLLABORATIVE WORKSHOP 

RS&H's overall objective for this project is to replace the need for outside expertise with a vibrant, local sustainability culture 
empowered by resident experts. The RS&H Team's sustainability professionals will facilitate a workshop or series of workshops 
attended by the SMP Team that will train participants on the techniques and tools essential to developing specific projects 
that will be integrated into the City's project-driven sustainability plan. 

Prior to the workshop, RS&H and the City's Project Manager shall 
refine workshop elements to align the agenda and materials with the 
workshop objectives. The collaboration will provide an opportunity to 
preview presentation elements, discuss enhancements and familiarize 
participants with their roles during the workshop. 

The workshops will prepare the SMP Team to collaboratively develop the 
Sustainability Master Plan. Highlights of the workshop agenda will include 
development of sustainability awareness, a review of the Solution's 
Memo, discussion of Best Management Practices and development 
of preliminary goals An "icebreaker" session will provide attendees 
an opportunity to become familiar with their working groups and to 
identify the City's sustainability strengths, weaknesses, opportunities 
and threats The RS&H Team shall teach the format, logic and process 
of developing sustainability projects by introducing a Process Flow 
Mapping technique to visualize resource, material and energy flows from 
a sustainability perspective The benchmarking portion of the workshop 
will introduce attendees to efficient techniques for researching best 
practices within the public sector and the community 

Figure 9: RS&H Facilitation of a 
Sustainability Workshop at NASA KSC 

RS&H will train participants on the use of backcasting Backcasting is a technique that requires individuals to visualize 
their organization's future and then develop interim goals and associated projects to manifest it Backcasting differs from 
forecasting . It isn't about projecting future outcomes; it is about deciding what future is desired , and then identifying steps 
to achieve it As famed management consultant Peter Drucker says (quoting Abraham Lincoln): "The best way to predict the 
future is to create it " 

Putting these tools and techniques together into an integrated project planning and implementation process spurred by 
continual improvement creates a positive feedback loop proven to yield significant social, environmental and economic 
benefits. At the conclusion of the workshop, participants will understand the City's current reality and future aspirations 
and will be motivated through incentives, prompts and commitments to develop creative strategies that will increase the 
sustainability of their community 



RS&H collaborated with NASA's KSC to develop an integrated sustainability workshop and six-month facilitation effort to 
develop a center-wide project driven sustainability plan . The plan was the first ever created for a NASA center More than 100 
KSC staff attended the six hour workshop, representing eighteen business units. Following Ihe workshop, RS&H facilitated 
additional breakout meetings, provided sustainability consulting, and leadership and guidance on the use of the sustainability 
planning tools As a result, KSC developed over 200+ unique sustainability projects that involve personnel from across the 
Center united in a common goal. In 2012, the KSC project leader and Team were awarded the coveted NASA Blue Marble 
Award for Environmental Excellence. 

SUSTAINABILITY GOALS 

During or following the workshop process, RS&H will collaborate with the SMP Team to set goals that are consistent with 
the City's current progress towards sustainability and that take into account available resources. Based on the backcasting 
process, goals will be developed for the six focus areas identified by the City in its RFO, including Energy Efficiency, Resource 
Conservation, Land Use and Development, Natural Area Preservation, Recycling and Waste Reduction, and Education and 
Outreach. Goals will be based on the ten and five year milestones identified in the RFO. RS&H will also explore development 
of one and three year goals with the SMP Team. Such goals may help the City build momentum and garner stakeholder 
support for their longer term sustainability efforts . 

Goals will be calibrated to accord with access to financial resources, staff time, technical knowledge, and the ability to 
leverage existing relationships . The financial performance will also be considered For example, RS&H helped Fort Lauderdale­
Hollywood International Airport achieve water and green space goals by evaluating convers ion of an existing storm water 
pond to a rainwater harvesting system that will irrigate a greenbelt area on the airport property RS&H calculated that the 
project would avoid approximately $70,000 in irrigation costs and save approximately 15 million gallons of potable water per 
year. 

Concurrent with goal review and adoption , RS&H will collaborate with City staff to identify the departments, business units 
and stakeholders within the City that can achieve the sustainability goals Within each of these areas a leader will be selected 
that has the capacity to engage their fellow employees while also possessing the ability to manage projects and see them 
through to completion If not already a member of the SMP Team, these individuals will be formally recruited to the process 
of developing a Sustainability Master Plan for the City. 

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT 

During the month following the workshop(s). RS&H will facilitate and participate in meetings with SMP Team members. RS&H 
will train and familiarize participants with a process to systematically examine, understand, improve and manage sustainable 
initiatives and practices to develop viable projects integrated into the SMP With these skills, key staff and community members 
will be capable of leading a long-term effort to improve the City's triple-bottom line performance 

In the course of the collaboration period, groups will identify and prioritize projects, ident ify the resources, schedule, and 
coordination required to design and implement sustainability projects over the next year, while reinforcing lessons introduced at 
the workshops. The process will empower stakeholders to identify areas where they can make a difference in their community 
by creating positive feedback loops It will strengthen top-down and bottom-up management via two-way communication -
a hallmark of sustainable organizations. Meanwhile, RS&H will aid groups with technical elements of project development, 
ensure that projects are aligned with Coral Gables' sustainability goals and available resources, and assist with methods to 
evaluate and select projects for inclusion in the SMP 

RS&H developed a suite of sustainability projects for the City of Jacksonville. The project portfolio represented a comprehensive 
strategy for utilizing nearly $8 million in grant funds to save energy, reduce greenhouse gas emissions and create jobs 
throughout the region . Through co llaboration with a core Team of City staffers, as well as div8rse stakeholders throughout the 
City, including input from 150 public participants, over 200 potential sustainability projects were identified A decision matrix 
evaluated the energy savings, greenhouse gas abatement, cost and other factors of each project, permitting an objective 
process for sci8cting high-ROI projects. The final suite of projects included building energy audits and retrofits, a variety 
of lighting controls, utility monitoring software, waste minimization projects, electric vehicles and charging infrastructure, 
residential energy efficiency and solar rebates, renewable energy and geothermal demonstration projects, clean technology 
job training, Clnd community sustainability awareness programs Together, these projects were projected to save over 40 
million kilowatt hours of energy and avoid 37 thousand metric tons of greenhouse gasses per year Including the costs of 
development and administration, the portfolio exhibits an estimated simple payback of 2.4 years or a return on investment 
of 56 percent over three years The City successfully completed implementation of these proj8cts in the last quarter of 2013. 



RESULTS 
At the end of the Engagement phase, 
RS&H will prepare a draft Sustainability 
Management Plan for review and approval 
by the City. The SMP will document the entire 
development process, so City staff may use 
it as a resource for continuous planning and 
process improvement. Also delivered will be 
an executive summary to the SMp, designed 
to concisely and attractively communicate the 
SMP to City stakeholders Once approved, 
the Sustainability Management Plan will 
provide a schedule for implementing projects 
prioritized to achieve Results. While results will 
unfold over the course of five years, ten years 
and beyond, the RS&H Team can provide 
initial guidance on plan implementation and 
communication 

IMPLEMENTATION 

"it Total Annual Investment ($) • Total Annual Return (5) 

S4,OOO,OOO 

$3,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$1,000 ,000 

$(1,000,000) 

S(2,OOO,OOO) 

$(3,000,000) 

Figure 10: 5 Year Cash Flow Analysis for City of Jacksonville Energy Efficiency Programs 

Implementation of the SMP will unfold over several years, directed by leaders identified via the engagement phase, RS&H 
Team will provide initial assistance with several key aspects of implementation, including scheduling, overcoming common 
obstacles, and data management 

As part of project development, RS&H will work with the SMP Team to develop schedules for each project. As part of 
implementation services, RS&H can work with the SMP Team to refine these schedules and develop a master project schedule 
and project management plan. 

Building off the work conducted during the Solutions phase, particularly the qualitative analysis, RS&H will identify barriers 
to implementation of SMP projects and propose recommendations for overcoming them Recommendations may include 
cllanges to City, regulations, plans or procedures. A common barrier for many sustainability projects is funding, RS&H and 
its sub-consultants continuously monitor sustainability funding sources and techniques The Team also has a proven track 
record of assisting clients seek and obtain grant funding tor sustainability projects, The RS&H Team can develop a catalogue 
of relevant funding resources and techniques for the City based on the projects included in its SMP 

COMMUNICATIONS 

Effectively communicating the City's Sustainability Master Plan to its stakeholders will be essential for its long-term success . 
The RS&H Team can work with appropriate Coral Gables staff to develop a strategy to brand the it's planning effort, develop 
web applications, present the plan to the City Commission and other key stakeholders, and establish a process for annually 
reporting progress to all , 

RS&H will help the City brand it's SMP as fiscally responsible, business-friendly, and supportive of Coral Gables' unique culture 
and heritage Effective campaigns, such as Miami-Dade Green and Power 2 Charlotte will be evaluated and best practices 
identified These concepts can be refined throughout the Solutions and Engagement phases of the project Eventually, the 
brand will reflect the goals and projects of the SMp, conveying the City's effort in a clear and engaging fashion 

A web presence for the sustainability planning process can be established early on in the project as a tool to solicit input 
and organize work products As the project moves through its phases, the RS&H Team can work with the City's Project 
Managers to strategically update City staff, stakeholder groups and the public about project progress, as necessary, building 
momentum for continued commitment to sustainability in Coral Gables Upon completion of the SMp, a public website can 
be developed to communicate it interactively. Such a website can be the center of a campaign to educate, inform and build 
trust with the City's stakeholders, utilizing traditional media outlets, real-time outlets, web and social media (i e" Face Book, 
Twitter, Linked-in, OR codes, etc.) 

Once the SMP is complete, RS&H looks forward to working With the City Project Manager to help present it to the public and 
to the City Commission Buy-in from both groups is crucial and the plan will be developed to ensure it is achievable 
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RS&H collaborated with the Defense Commissary Agency's Communication Department to develop annual communication 
plans to promote awareness of the agency's sustainability focused Environmental Management System Monthly messages 
and themes were established at the beginning of each year to reinforce the Agency's global sustainability message. 
Communication vehicles used included press releases, magazine articles, web pages, presentations and key talking points 
for the Agency Director and his Chief Operating Officer. In addition, RS&H developed and produced an EMS awareness video 
translated into multiple languages that was viewed by more than 17,000 associates located around the world. A Green Store 
rating system was developed to track performance in stores around the world and foster friendly competition among store 
managers to excel. 

CONTINUAL IMPROVEMENT 

Successful implementation of a 
Sustainability Master Plan requires a 
systems approach. The sustainability 
planning approach the RS&H has 
developed incorporates an interactive 
process of baseline assessment; 
engagement, goal setting and project 
development; and implementation and 
evaluation. 

The final phase of this cycle, which involves 
implementing projects and reporting and 
interpreting results, is essential for driving 
continual improvement. The reason is that 
insights that accrue from implementation 
may be used to inform an improved 
cycle of assessment, planning and 
implementation. Without such a process, 
significant goals are difficult to achieve. 

Measurement and verification of project 
implementation is a frequently overlooked 

Figure 11: Sustainability Planning as System of Continual Improvement 

aspect of municipal sustainability commitments. This project will provide insight into the processes, tools and analyses Coral 
Gables presently uses to collect sustainability data. Key metrics not currently collected and barriers that prevent collection 
are particularly important. Meanwhile, the SMP will establish metrics for tracking and reporting on sustainability projects 
Based on these inputs, a protocol for measuring and verifying metrics annually can be developed . Recommendations and 
options for implementing this protocol will be provided, ranging from utilizing free tools, to purchasing "off the shelf" software 
or developing a custom solution The RS&H Team can work with the City to identify the most appropriate solution RS&H 
is experienced with specifying, procuring, designing, implementing and managing information technology systems for 
sustainability metrics locally, nationally and internationally 

Once a robust sustainability data management system is in place, RS&H can work with the City to develop policies and 
procedures for annually reporting on its progress towards achieving its sustainability goals The Global Reporting Initiative 
(GRI) is an internationally recognized standard for annual reporting on sustainability Further, the STAR Community Index, 
discussed in the benchmarking section, may also be used to obtain third party verification and recognition for the City's efforts. 
RS&H can structure the SMR as well as its data management recommendations, to ensure that utilizing such standards for 
sustainability reporting and validation is feasible. 

The Sustainability Master Plan will empower Coral Gables to systematically manage its sustainability initiatives and create 
a leaner, greener, and more adaptable organization, ensuring environmental excellence, high quality of life and economic 
success . 
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SOLICITATION NUMBER (If any) 

ARCHITECT - ENGINEER QUALIFICATIONS 
PART 11- GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS 

(If a firm has branch offices complete for each specific branch office seeking work) , 
2a_ FIRM (01< BRANCI I omc -) Nt,ME 3_ YEAR ESTABLISHED DUNS NUMBEfl 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc 1990 613387281 

2b STREET 5 OWNERSHIP 
10748 Deerwood Park Boulevard, South a TYPE 

2c CITY 12d. STATE 12e. ZIP CODE 
Corporation 

Jacksonville FL 32256 b_ SMALL BUSINESS STATUS 
No 60 POINT OF CONTACT NAME AND TITLE 

Mike McCarthy, MBA, PG, LEED AP 7. NAME OF FIRM (/I block 20 os a branch office) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
6~ TELEPHONE. NUMBE[l 16C E-MAIL ADDRESS 

(904) 256-2263 Mike.mccarthy@rsandh.com 

I)". FORMER FIRM NAME(S} (II afwJ 8b YR ESTABLISHED 8e DUNS NUMBER 

9, EMPLOYEES BY DISCIPLINE 
10. PROFILE OF FIRM'S EXPERIENCE AND 

ANNUAL AVE RAGE REVENUE FOR LAST 5 YEARS 

a~ Function c No o( Employees a Profile 
c_ Revenue 

b Discipline b. Experience Index Number 
Code (1) FIRM (2) BRANCH Code (see below) 

02 Administrative 118 66 Design-Build 6 

06 Architect 83 32 Engineering Consultations and Reports 6 

16 Construction Manager 24 2 A05 Airports; Navaids; Airport Lighting; Aircraft 6 

07 Biologist 1 1 A06 Airports; Terminals; & Hangers; Frieght 8 

08 CADD Technician 39 19 B02 Bridges 4 

12 Civil Engineer 136 33 C10 Commercial Building; (low rise); Shopping 4 

15 Construction Inspector 75 6 C13 Computer Facilities; Computer Service 6 

21 Electrical Engineer 22 13 C15 Construction Management 4 

24 Environmental Scientist 23 9 E02 Educational Facilities; Classrooms 6 

25 Fire Protection Engineer 4 3 E07 Energy Conservation; New Energy Sources 6 

29 Geographic Information System 3 1 H07 Highways; Streets; Airfield Paving; Parking 8 

37 Interior Designer 7 5 10 1 Industrial Buildings; Manufacturing Plants 4 

39 Landscape Architect 6 4 105 Interior Design; Space Planning 5 
42 Mechanical Engineer 39 15 L01 Laboratories; Medical Research Facilites 5 

47 Planners: Urban/Regional 38 16 001 Office Building; Industrial Parks 6 

56 Specifications Writer 33 29 P05 Planning (Community; Regional; Areawide & 7 

57 Structural Engineer 50 26 P06 Planning (Site, Installation and Project) 4 

58 Technician/Analyst 23 12 T03 Traffic & Transportation Engineering 6 

60 Transportation Engineer 88 21 Architectural Consultation/Surveys 4 

62 Water Resources Engineer 22 7 Land Subdivision and Development 5 
Other Employees 18 14 Management 8 

Total 852 334 Financial Establishments (Banks) 6 

11 , ANNUAL AVERAGE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUE INDEX NUMBER 
REVENUES OF FIRM 
FOR LAST 3 YEARS 1 Less Ihan $100,000 6 $2 million to less Ihan $5 million 

(Insert revenue index number shown at right) 
2 $100.000 to less than $250,000 7 $5 million to less Ihan $10 million 

a. Federal Work 7 3 $250.000 to less than $500,000 8. $10 million 10 less than $25 million 
4 $500.000 10 less than $1 million 9 $25 million to less than $50 million 

D, Non-Federal Work 10 5 $1 million 10 less Ihan $2 million 10 $50 million or grealer 
c , To tal Work 10 

12. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
The foregoing is a statement of facts 

a SIGNATURE 

c. NAME AND TITLE 

Lisa M. Robert, PE - Senior Vice President 

AUTHORIZED FOR LOCAL REPRODUCTION STANDARD FORM 330 (6/2004) PAGE 6 



1. SOLICITATION NUMBER (If any) 

ARCHITECT - ENGINEER QUALIFICATIONS 
PART 11- GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS 

(If a firm has branch offices, completo for each specific branch office seeking wor/c) 
2a FIRM (OH BRANGI I OFf'ICE) NAMI= 3, YEAR ESTABUSI lED DUNS NUMBER 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 1990 096085253 

2b. STREET 5. OWNERSHIP 
3125 West Commercial Boulevard, Suite 130 a TYPE 

2C CITY j2d. STATE 

1

2e ZIP CODE 
Corporation 

Fort Lauderdale FL 33309-3448 Il. SMALL BUSINESS STATUS 
No 

6a POINT OF CONTACT NAME AND TITLE 
Mike McCarthy, MBA, PG, LEED AP 7 NAME OF FIRM (/I block 2a is a branch omce) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
6b TElEPHONE NUMBER I IlC E·MAIL ,\DDRESS 

(904) 256-2263 Mike.mccarthy@rsandh.com 

Aa. FORMER FIRM ~lflM ErS) (" ,m y) et>. YR, ESTAI3l ISHED Be nUNS NUMIJER 

9. EMPLOYEES BY DISCIPLINE 
10. PROFILE OF FIRM'S EXPERIENCE AND 

ANNUAL AVERAGE REVENUE FOR LAST 5 YEARS 

a Function c No of Employees a. Profile c Revenue 

Code b Discipline (1)FIRM (2) BRANCH Code b Experience 

02 Administrative 

06 Architect 

08 CADD Technician 

12 Civil Engineer 

15 Construction Inspector 

16 Construction Manager 

21 Electrical Engineer 

24 Environmental Scientist 

25 Fire Protection Engineer 

29 Geographic Information System 

37 Interior Designer 

39 Landscape Architect 

42 Mechanical Engineer 

47 Planners: Urban/Regional 

56 Specifications Writer 

57 Structural Engineer 

58 Technician/Analyst 

60 Transportation Engineer 

62 Water Resources Engineer 

Other Employees 
Total 

11 ANNUAL AVERAGE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
REVENUES OF FIRM 
FOR LAST 3 YEARS 

(Insert revenue index number shown at right) 

a Federal Work 1 
b. Non-Federal Work 6 
c. Total Work 6 

a. S IGNAT~IHF C' 
( )6, -!--t 175 ti:;J 

c NAMI: ANI) TITLE 
Lisa M. Robert, PE - Senior Vice President 

118 4 B02 Bridges 

83 2 E09 Environmental Impact Studies, Assessments 

39 1 G01 Garages; Vehicle Maintenanace Facilities; 

136 7 H04 Heating, Ventilating, Air Conditioning 

75 0 H07 Highways; Streets; Airfield Paving; Parking 

24 0 P05 Planning (Community; Regional; Areawide & 

22 0 T03 Traffic & Transportation Engineering 

23 3 T06 Tunnels & Subways 

4 0 

3 0 

7 0 

6 0 

39 0 

38 0 

33 0 

50 0 

23 0 

88 9 

22 2 

19 0 

852 28 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUE INDEX NUMBER 

1 Less than $100.000 6. $2 million to less than $5 million 
2 $100,000 to less than $250,000 7. $5 million to less than $10 million 
3 $250,000 to less [han $500,000 8. $10 million [0 less than $25 million 
4. $500,000 to less [han $1 million 9 $25 million to less [han $50 million 
5 $1 million to less than $2 million 10. $50 million or greater 

12. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
The foregoing is a statement of facts 

DATE 
January 15, 2013 

Index Number 
(see below) 

5 

2 

1 

1 
7 

2 

8 
'I 

AUTHORIZED FOR LOCAL REPRODUCTION STANDARD FORM 330 (6/2004) PAGE 6 
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SOLICITATION NUMBER (If any) 

ARCHITECT - ENGINEER QUALIFICATIONS 
PART 11- GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS 

a Irm as (Ir fl' h b ranc o Ices, comp e e or eac speci Ie ranc o Ice see (lng wor h ff,- I [ft h .~' b h f{,' J ' k) 
2a FIRM (OR BRANCH OFFICE) NAME 3 YEflH ESlABLlSIlED ~UNS NUMBER 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 2013 

2b STREET 5. OWNERSHIP 
7007 Jefferson St NE, Suite A-15 a. TYPE 

2c CITY 
1 2d 

STATE 

1

2e ZIP COOE Corporation 

Albuquerque NM 87109 
b SMALL BUSINESS STATUS 

No 
6a. POINT OF CONTACT NAME AND TITLE 

Mike McCarthy, MBA, PG, LEED AP 7. NAME OF FIRM (If block 2a is a branch office) 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
Ill' TELEPliONE NUMBEH 16C. E-MAIL ADDRESS 

(904) 256-2263 Mike.mccarthy@rsandh.com 

8~1 FO RIVI E I~ I'IRM NAME[S) (If any) 8b YR. ESTABLISHED 8c. DUNS NUMBER 

9. EMPLOYEES BY DISCIPLINE 
10 PROFILE OFtiRM'S EXPERIENCE AND 

ANNUAL AVERAGE REVENUE FO I~ LAST 5 Y ARS 

a. Function c. No of Employees a Profile 
c Revenue 

b. Discipline b Experience Index Number Code (1) FIRM (2) BRANCH Code 
(see below) 

02 Administrative 

Other Employees 

Total 

11 , ANNUAL AVERAGE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
REVENUES OF FIRM 
FOR LAST 3 YEARS 

(Insert reVenue index number shown al right) 

a_ Federal Work 1 

b. Non-Federal Work 1 

c. Tolal Work 1 

a. SIGNATURE (~_!-! 65&(5/ 
cAME-AND TITLE 

Lisa M. Robert, PE - Senior Vice President 

AUTHORIZED FOR LOCAL REPRODUCTION 

118 0 M05 Military Design Standards 

734 1 

852 1 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUE INDEX NUMBER 

1 Less Ihan $100.000 
2. $100.00010 less Ihan $250,000 
3 $250,000 to less than $500,000 
4 $500,000 to less than $1 million 
5. $1 million to less than $2 million 

12. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
The foregoing is a statement of facts. 

6 $2 million to less than $5 million 
7 $5 million to less than $10 million 
8 $10 million to less than $25 million 
9 $25 million to tess than $50 million 
10 $50 million or greater 

DATE 

January 15, 2013 

0 

STANDARD FORM 330 (6/2004) PAGE 6 



1. SOLICITAnON NUMBfR (llo ny) 

. ARCHITECT - ENGINEER QUALIFICATIONS . '. WUD 14-001 
PART II - GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS 

(if a firm has branch o/JiCI!.5 ,·omplere. Jor each specific branch office S1JekillO work) , 
~., fiRM {OR BRANCH OFFICEI NAME 3 YEAR F.srIlRlISHEIJ 

1 

DUNS NUMBER 

Erin L. Deady, P.A. 2011 062307334 
2b. STREET S. OWNERSHIP 

1111 Hypoluxo Road, Suite 207 a, TYPE 

Sub-chapter S Corporation 
2e. CITY 2d. STATE 20. ZIP CODE 

Lantana FL 33462 b. SMALL BUSJfIE~ STATUS 

W. POINT OF CONTACT NAME AND TITLE Small Business Administration 
Erin l. Deady, President Woman Owned Business 

1. NNJ1E OF FIRM (I/b/od 1iJ is 0 bUlnch OfffU) 

6b. TELEPHONE NUMll f H 1 6<. E·MAIL ADDRESS 
S61.5a6.7116 erin@ deadylaw.com 

8a . FORMER FIRM NMI~llli'l 0'111 Bb. YR. JiS1Ml lSilED 

I 
8", DUNS ,ruMOER 

9. EMPLOYEES BY DISCIPLI NE 

a . Function 
b Discipline: 

Code 

02 Administrative 

08 CADD Technicia n 

13 Communications Engineer 

48 Project Manager 

54 Security Specialist 

56 Sp~cifiC3tions Writer 

Total 

11. ANNUAL AVERAGE PROfESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUES 
Of FIRM 

FOR LAST 3 YEARS 
(Insert revenue Index number shDwn or right) 

a. Federal WOrk 

b. Non-Federal Work 3 

c. Total Work 3 

c. 

ell (J L 
AUTH ORIZED f OR LOCAL REPRODUCTION 

10. PROFILE OF FIRM'S EXPERIENCE AND 

ANNUAl AVE R."G£ REVEN J [ f OR l AST S YfAR' 

C, No. of Employees a Profile 
b. Experience 

Il) flnM IZI BRANCH Code 

A06 Ai rports; Terminols; & Hangers; Freight Handling 

B01 Barracks, DormitorIes 

COS Child Care/Development Facilities 

Cll Community Facilities 

007 Dining Halls; Clubs; Restaurants 

E02 Educational Facilities; Classrooms 

H09 Hospital & Medical Facili t ies 

Hll Housing 

L01 laboratories; Medical Research Facilities 

001 Office Building; Industrial Parks 

POS Prisons & Correctional Facilities 

S02 Security Systems 

6 

PROfESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUE INDEX NUMBER 

1. less than $100,000 

2. $100,000 to less than $250.000 

3 

• 
5 

$250.000 to less than $500.000 

$500,000 to lesS than $] rnillion 

$1 million La les.s than $2 million 

12. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

The fnr<!gdlnR is a statement of facts. 

6 .. $2 million to less than $5 million 

I . SS million to less than $10 million 

8 $10 million LO less than $25 mililOI) 

9 $25 million to less than $50 million 

10. $50 million or greater 

DATE 

1/14/2014 

c Revenue 

Inde. NumbN 

ls~t! below} 

- -

STANDARD FORM no (6/2004) PAGE 6 



ARCHITECT ENGINEER QUALIFICATIONS 
L SOLICITATION NUMBER (If any) 

PART II - GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS 
(If a firm has branch offices, complete for each specific branch office seeking work.) 

2a FIRM (OR BRANCH OFFICE) NAME 3 YEAR ESTABLISHED 14 DUNS NUMBER 
l yscovidi, Inc. 1986 177052818 
2b STREET 5 OWNERSHIP 
100 N, Biscayne Blvd., 27th Floor a TYPE 

2c CITY 12d STATE 12e ZIP CODE Corporation 

Miami FL 33132 b. SMALL BUSINESS STATUS 

6a, POINT OF CONTACT NAME ANO TITLE N/A 
Bernard Zyscovich, FAIA. President 7 NAME OF FIRM (/I block 2a is a branch office) 

6b TELEPHONE NUMBER 16e E·MAIL ADDRESS N/A 
305.372.5222 Bernard@zyscovich.com 

8a. FORMER FIRM NI\ME(S) (If any) 8b. YR. ESTABLISHED I 8c. DUNS NUMBER 

Zyscovich Architects 1977 I 
9. EMPLOYEES BY DISCIPLINE 10 PROFILE OF FIRM'S EXPERIENCE AND 

ANNUAL AVERAGE REVENUE FOR LAST 5 YEARS 

a Function c No of Employees a. Profile c Revenue Index 

Code b. Discipline Code b Experience Number 
(1) FIRM (2) BRANCH (see below) 

02 Document Control / 6 6 A06 Airports; Terminals & Hangars 4 
Administration 1 Accounting 

06 Architect 54 49 C06 Churches; Chapels 3 
08 CADD Technician 15 15 C10 Commercial Buildings (low rise) Shopping 1 

Centers 

15 Construction Manager/ Inspector 5 4 007 Dining Halls; Clubs; Reslaurants 1 
37 Interior Designer 4 4 E02 Educational Facilities: Classrooms 6 
47 Planner: Urban/Regional 3 2 F02 Field Houses; Gyms t 

301 Graphics Specialist 1 1 G01 Garages; Vehicles Maint Facilities; Parking 1 
Decks 

Graphic Designer 2 2 HOB Historical Preservation 1 

Marketing Staff 3 3 H10 Hotels: MOlels 1 
H11 Housing 7 
105 Inlerior Design 3 
L04 Libraries: Museums: Galleries 1 
POS Planning (Community, Regional) 5 
P06 Planning (Site, Installation & Project) 5 
R04 Recreational Facilities (Parks, Marinas, 3 

etc.) 
R06 Rehabilitation 5 
U02 Urban Renewals; Community Devel 3 

Other Employees Z01 Zoning; Land Use Studies 3 
Total 93 86 

11 . ANNUAL AVERAGE PROFESSIONAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUE INDEX NUMBER 
SERVICES REVENUES OF FIRM 1. Less than $100,000. 6. $2 million to less than $5 million 

FOR LAST 3 YEARS 2 $100,00 to less than $250,000 7. $5 million to less than $10 million 
(Insert revenue index number shown a/ rigIJ t) 3 $250,000 to less than $500,000 8. $10 million to less than $25 million 

a. Federal Work 3 4 . $500,000 to less than $1 million 9 $25 million to less than $50 million 
b. Non-Federal Work 8 5, $1 million to less than $2 million 10. $50 million or greater 
c. Total Work 8 

12. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
-- -;:> The foregoing is a statement of facts. 

C. NI\ME ANtl TITLE 

Bernard Zyscovich, FAIA, President 

AUTHORIZED FOR LOCAL REPRODUCTION 
MANDATORY USE DATE OF FORM 612004 

16, 2014 

STANDARD FORM 330 (612004) PAGE 6 
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3-1. RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL 
Please see Part E of the RS&H Team's SF 330 for resumes of the Team's key personnel. 

3-2. WORKLOAD 
One of RS&H's greatest strengths is its 
resources. We have the personnel to 
immediately assign to this contract and its 
associated task orders. It is our mission 
to make this contract and the associated 
tasks a top priority. 

According to our labor management 
tracking system, on or about February ]j 
2014, we expect a contracted workload Vl 

of approximately 62 percent of our 
Jacksonville office capability allowing us 
more than sufficient resources and time 
to begin work immediately. With the 
exception of a few projects, the majority of 
our projects are nearing completion. The 
commitment to our resources required 
for those projects are included in the 
Staff Availability Chart. RS&H employs 
865 employees with 285 employees 
located in the Jacksonville office. We 
utilize a workload leveling procedure that 
identifies our corporate commitment and 
availability of personnel over time. 

ABILITY TO MEET DEADLINES 

175 

150 

125 

100 

75 

50 

25 

o 

Staff Availability 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

• Workload Capacity lit Contracted Workload 

RS&H prides itself on its ability to meet client schedules, and often exceed delivery requirements . We demonstrate this 
commitment by finding better approaches to complete the job more efficiently and faster without sacrificing the quality of 
our services or deliverables. We use a thorough and efficient project control and delivery system to assure project budget 
control and staffing needs. We place the right people on the project at the outset and do not change out our outstanding 
performers to ensure continuity of project staff and project-specific staff knowledge . Many of our public and private-sector 
jobs include monthly or quarterly sampling and reporting and we take great pride in always meeting these regulatory 
requirements with consistent, high quality staff, and project deliverables. 

RSrB. 
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Section III • Sialling Plan 

3-3. KEY PERSONNEL 
RS&H and its team of sub-consultants have provided award winning, nationally recognized sustainability services to a 
diverse range of clients across the globe for more than 30 years. We are well versed in the development, implementation, 
and communication of Sustainability Master Plans. We offer fully integrated, multidiscipline experience and expertise in: 

» Energy Efficiency 
» Resource Conservation 
» Land Use and Development 
» Natural Area Preservation 
» Recycling and Waste Reduction 
)) Education and Outreach 

Our experience with Florida governments positions us to help Coral Gables thrive, while achieving its economic, quality 
of life, and environmental goals For specific examples of relevant projects, as well as RS&H's approach to achieving 
sustainability excellence in these focus areas, please see SF330 Part H in Section II . 

The project team will be led by Project Manager, Mike McCarthy, PG, MBA, LEED AP. As leader of the company's 
Sustainability Services Group, Mr. McCarthy is a sustainability professional and professional geologist focused on integrating 
triple-bottom-line business practices into organization-wide operations. He has assembled a project team of in-house 
professionals and sub-consultant partners to provide cutting-edge, comprehensive insights into the County's sustainability 
objectives. 

Mr. McCarthy's award-winning local, national, and global sustainability programs engage stakeholders, generate positive 
net financial returns and promote healthy, resilient communities. Mr. McCarthy has managed hundreds of multidisciplinary 
sustainability and environmental management projects for government clients throughout the world and across Florida. 
He has over 30 years of experience with sustainability planning, environmental consulting, remediation, and geological 
engineering . Mr McCarthy will oversee all sustainability planning activities and manage the sub-consultant partners to meet 
the objectives of Coral Gables. 

Rick Chesser, PE, Vice President and Director of the Public Infrastructure and Transportation's Southeastern Region, will 
serve as Project Officer. Based in RS&H's Ft. Lauderdale office. Mr Chesser will ensure that the RS&H team delivers high­
quality services that thoroughly meet the needs of the City. 

Dr. Paul Hutchins, PE, CEM, LEED AP, a nationally recognized energy and data management expert, will serve as OAI 
OC Officer. Mr, Hutchins leads RS&H's Energy Services Group. He will ensure that project deliverables meet the technical 
standards of RS&H and Coral Gables. 

Complementing RS&H's in-house sustainability professionals are two carefully selected sub-consultants, Zyscovich, Inc 
and Erin Deady, PA. 

Zyscovich is an integrated urban design, architecture and interior design firm headquartered in Miami with offices throughout 
Florida. It has garnered a national reputation for creative, sustainable design solutions Zyscovich has developed the 
concept of Real Urbanism@, a design philosophy that supports sustainable development through understanding past and 
present development patterns, local needs, and economic opportunities. Zyscovich's Principal for this project is Bernard 
Zyscovich, FAIA founder of the firm . With over 40 years' experience, he has led creative teams on a wide range of sustainable 
projects, from the urban planning of major U.S. cities to building design , Mr Zyscovich will lead his firm's experienced urban 
designers and planners on tasks primarily related to Land Use and Development, Natural Area Conservation and Education 
and Outreach . 

Erin L. Deady, Esq., AICp, LEED AP is Principal of Erin L Deady, PA - a full service legal, planning and consulting firm 
providing sustainability services to local governments, special districts, interlocal authorizes and private sector corporations 
Ms. Deady has over 15 years' experience in sustainability law. planning and project management She has managed a 
dozen sustainability planning projects for local governments in the State of Florida, including Boynton Beach. Century, Lake 
Worth, Marathon, Orlando, West Palm Beach, Monroe County, Lee County, Canaveral Port Authority, and is working with a 
team on the Heartland 2060 project. Ms Deady will support tasks related to overall strategy development, goal prioritization, 
and development of implementation strategies in all focus areas 

RS&8 
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• Staffing Plan 

The combined Team has helped clients secure more than $6 million in grant funding, generate more than $30 million in 
net revenue through waste reduction, and save more than $150 million through resource efficiency measures through 
sustainability and strategic planning projects. These results were realized by awareness of internal and external opportunities 
and through fostering organizations focused on innovation, stakeholder engagement, and a common sense of purpose. 
The Team's award-winning local, national, and international sustainability projects surmount the barriers to organizational 
sustainability by crafting a strategic vision, generating organizational support, motivating internal and external stakeholders, 
and fostering continual improvement. 

3-4. EXPERIENCE WITH OTHER DISCIPLINES 
The RS&H team is uniquely experienced and well-qualified to lead the Sustainability Master Plan effort for Coral Gables. This 
is not a Team that specializes in other disciplines and is attempting to "break into" the practice of sustainability planning We 
are a compilation of experts in the field that have completed multiple sustainability projects individually and together. 

The Team has completed well over 50 sustainability projects for as many clients. Each of these projects has been multi­
discipline, since sustainability is by nature a multi-discipline field. It requires expertise from a diversity of technical and 
professional areas, including engineering, architecture, planning, science, law, economics and communications, among 
others. Most importantly, it requires the ability to synthesize these diverse specialties into a program that balances people, 
planet and profit. The Team has received national recognition for its ability to provide valuable sustainability services to its 
clients . 

The Team's success is predicated on harnessing the multi-discipline expertise of its associates for the benefit of its clients. 
Our business success is predicated on the ability to work closely with other design professionals and consultants as part 
of a team. The firms have worked with each other in the past to pursue and complete sustainability projects. The project 
team has been carefully structured to address the distinctive challenges and opportunities present in Coral Gables. It 
includes professionally registered engineers, architects, planners, scientists, and attorneys willing and able to work with 
other disciplines as required. The RS&H Team combines multidiscipline experience in the full variety of sustainability focus 
areas with specialized expertise in the technical requirements of implementing sustainability solutions in a municipal context 

3-5. SUBCONSULTANT QUALIFICATIONS 
ERIN L. DEADY, PA 
Erin L Deady, PA. is a full service firm incorporated within the State of Florida (and Palm Beach County) providing legal, 
planning and consulting services to local government and private sector clients since being formed in 2011. The contact 
person for this project will be Erin L. Deady, Esq., AICP, LEED AP (P 561.586.7116/ F. 561.586.9611) and the location of the 
office is: 1111 Hypoluxo Road, Suite 207, Lantana, FL 33462. The firm also employs outside contractors and teams as 
workload dictates. Their clients include small and large local governments as well as special districts, interlocal authorities 
and private sector corporations including agricultural and land development interests. 

Ms Deady, who will serve in a Sustainability Planning role, has significant experience that includes seven years with a 
national not-for-profit organization as well as eight years of experience at a private law firm, before successfully incorporating 
her own firm two years ago. Ms. Deady has also achieved several other accreditations: 

» Planning Accreditation by the American Institute of Certified Planners 
» Certification in Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design, US Green Building Council 
» U.S Small Business Administration, Economically Disadvantaged Woman Owned Business 

RS~ 
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In addition to being an attorney and certified land planner, Ms. Oeady has significant project management experience on 
numerous complex projects involving the development and implementation of public engagement and outreach strategies 
and integration of Sustainability Management Plans ("SMP") into local government policy and decision-making processes. 
Representative projects include: 

» City of Boynton Beach, Climate Action Plan 
» City of Lake Worth, Energize Lake Worth 
» City of West Palm Beach, Sustainability Action Plan 
» Municipal Energy Conservation Coalition 
» Monroe County EAR and Comprehensive Plan Update 
» Lee County Sustainability Plan 
» Town of Century Energy Efficiency Conservation Strategy 
» City of Marathon, Sustainability and Climate Plan 
» Canaveral Port Authority, Sustainability White Paper 
» Heartland 2060 Energy Baseline Inventory 
» Green Works Orlando Community Action Plan, Orlando 

LICENSES 

RS&IL 
IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 

OUU 
DOLl 
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GBCI 

GREEN BUILDING CERTIFICATION INSTITUTE 
l lii n u~ (" 1ilI1 1 1 1 1'\ 1' 11A. ~ 
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6~o;JUllm ilia. IULenun( I NH IMUf,&lllHr OF l lt £ 1..JJIrdUU lr ," t1rI' III 

AI'ID ~NVIIIO:-l)o.IE~TAL DESIGN (L",fD") GI\.HN BUILDING II..HING SYSTEM'" 

The Florida Bar 
651 E:A~TJi'iTr.A~f\N S.,-,,~..,. 

TALlAi!';~~~. FLO~roA ~2J!i!l_'l3(!O .~~ I tlll'l" .Jnll.",":H",,,-,,,.o;p.~J. h 
EU·("ITr.·~ Olin,,,,," .. ~ ... l tUM.I'M"_"tt_ 

(,(>a;.I 'II c l L<-<J fI 

Inlk ]117]10 
I::rmLl'C'Di:"'IIJ)" 
Erin L D..-:tJy,1' ,-\ 
, 1111I)polll'(J R<!. Stt 207 
L~r:LaL~:!, Fl 

I flEHEBY (llt 'IIFT IhJl I J"llhl' .,It!ly ~pp()lnl~J ~u~lodIJI; 01 m.:m~r~hip ro.:c~'[lh <.!flh·: (0 rlC'!'l.1IHa. 

I H!I{TlllR CER.TIFY :hJI Ihe r~~ord~ III Ihe oDic.! (II l!le Clerk (II illc SUf}feo1l' Court 01 :IJ ~1(l2~~) lI:d:C<l:c Ihal !i~iJ allGm~y wa~ ~dnl;t:ro La pra'::l:cc!::Iw In LilC Siale orFIQrid~ 011 LkL0bcr 

'')JV I fliRTII[R eEl{ r tr·y Ih,l: [he rc.::l)rdi!11 Ihc or;:c~ ~) .. I he Flilr1ri:J [hr H;\"I:'::.1lo.: Illll the ahflve 
JI!omo:y is ~Il ;).::iv~ m.:m!Jt, 01 nle Fle>r;c:\ [1<11 In gVt)(] ':;)nd~l1C: 

DJI"''\lL'u~~1~~lG'.vol ();:tubc~,1011 

Jfu~j~4..L 
Willi~;\IJl:Shcrt:l:rd 

Superv,;Jr. ~ll'1nb'-'T.;I"p kc.:vrds 
Th..:FI('Ir.ul Lhr 

City of Coral Gables I Sustainabilily Master Plan 
RFO 2013.11 .27 



• Siaffing Plan 

ZYSCOVICH, INC. 
Zyscovich Architects is a 90+ person integrated Urban Design, Architecture and Interior Design firm headquartered in 
downtown Miami with additional offices throughout Florida and in New York City, Bogota and Tobago For 37 years, the firm 
has garnered a national reputation for the creative solutions it brings to complex redevelopment projects that balance the 
needs of the local economy and the desires of the community 

SUSTAINABLE URBAN DESIGN: Zyscovich has specific and extensive experience in Sustainable 
Design, including the City of Coconut Creek for which Zyscovich created a master plan that 
preserves the natural landscape and provides a blueprint for sustainable building design, while 
providing the first centralized mixed-use activity zone for the City's residents 

WORKING WITH MULTIPLE STAKEHOLDERS: Zyscovich has worked with Owners, City officials, 
developers, and key stakeholders to develop clear Visions and implementable Master Plans. By 
collaborating and forming a true partnership, they are able to identify the most important issues 
and develop realistic and financially feasible solutions The firm fully understands the factors 
involved in structuring successful finance and development deals As part of their master 
planning and visioning efforts, they favor building consensus by presenting ideas that motivate 
the community to embrace a comprehensive vision. 

A CUSTOMIZED ApPROACH TO CREATING VALUE: Zyscovich approaches urban planning and 
design projects by identifying opportunities to capitalize on past and present characteristics of 
a particular place. They have termed this design philosophy Real Urbanism® Real Urbanism® 
is a concept that supports sustainable development by understanding how a city came to be 
and considers past and present development patterns, local needs for better communities, 
and economic obstacles and opportunities . Zyscovich focuses on merging the economic 
development opportunities with appropriate design solutions. 

EXPERTISE AND RECOGNITION BY OUR PEERS: Some of their relevant awards include: 
» AlA Florida's Firm of the Year 
» APA Florida Award of Excellence for the City of West Palm Beach Planning and Zoning 
» AlA Florida Award of Excellence in Architecture for the 500 Block of Collins 
» AlA Florida Unbuilt Honor Award for the Downtown Miami DDA Master Plan Study 
» APA Outstanding Urban Design Project or Study for Midtown Miami 

LICENSES AND REFERENCES 

AC /J 705211 

I 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
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State of Florida 
Department of State 

I n"l1,ry flull.tile ll:l'UIJ~ ullllls uflil.'c that ZYSCOVICH.INC IS U corpUiullull 
olf!.<lIlLnd 11l1dcl the laws 01 Ihe StJle \ll Florid ... , liled 011 October 30. 19~6. 
effecti\ c: OClIlhcl 30, 19~1\ 

TIll.: tlUt:tUlll'llt lIultlbn ulilus curpulal ... ,.. is M-tOt)J6 

I (UllhL'1 l:cllify that $'Iitl curpmalilll1 ha!>. paill all fcc!' uue th is uffice Illl uugh 
l)cccmbcl ) 1,2013, thai ils IllUstl t'ct:nt annuil l lCpLIJ I/u nlfonn business I l!plill 

was tiled 0 11 Jallll:lIY ), 2013, anti ils sta tus is ac tive 

I rUllhcr t.:t."llilY thai SU it.! cUqHII Ul iul1 h:l.s nul fi lt'J All id es orDissoluLion 

RS~ 
IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 

Gil "" w Ider m r JrfJfrd llnd (I", 
Grt'UI St·uf o/,i.1' StlJll! "I FI"ridfJ 
li t Tu lJll lltJ .... 'fu, Iht: Cllp ;tu', (IIi.\- js 

,11(' T/, ;rtl I1,,)' uf J illf uor)', 1fJlJ 

~()~ 
Secretary of Slate 

"'lJ lh .· nl ;'-~I;I\II II ); CCyt>;;!nr:,IIJH 

I to :tUlh~nl il":.' .· I hl~ n·. I lnc ~ I~ . \·I.1I I hi· r"n"wrn,!! ,ilc.~nl~1 rhi, 
ID. ~ntl ~IH'" 11I1I """ h ~ i ro , 'ru r li nn~ t1 h IJ1:1YI·t1 

Sepr~lJlhcr 21, 2007 

rl!d CQ}1)UIl IlIld S.;:it-clll1n Commirtcc 
Cil\' ofFutt My~rs 
t\,;c}uJ:ing &. t'onlnlcL<; 

Administr1tlion Oi"isinll 
1 R10 Hendry ~trcct 
Fort M),cn.. Fl 3)902 

Re: RL'Commcndauon Leller ("r ZyscO\'kh Arehil«ls 

1 0;.1 Whom It May CO!1Cml: 

In m)' role liS Ext(:Uli,c Direc:ltor ortlle Miami 00\\1110\10"0 De ... -.:lopmenl Authority,) MVC 
been .... witing ,~ilh ~emarll Zyseovl.::h Md the riml'li UrNH Ocsisn TCIlfTI o"~r Ihe 1;lSi 
'"'Cl VC3I"'II, A! Ihe tc.1d Urhan Design consullant. _heir primary resrxlluihility was 
updaiing the: [)uwnlown Mismi MlIs\.("r Plan working u, coordiRDuon with (I multi, 
cliSl:iplin.ccllt..:lmkalte.am 

Their $1~rrw.:L~ 11 .... ·ay' plorenio,ul and rl:.'lpC'lfuivc. The 1C4m'S \liork (1:11eC1cd the rum's 
.hiliry 10 eslablish it vi$iflQ, stDU:g)' and implemcnl.ltion plan lhat m .. "imi:zC'$ murkot:l, 
«.ooomic .1mJ communilY opponuniti£"S. 

fj\;ewise., the firm'); .blhl), to contente 1\5 well .:1 commuNClt.e nnovu"u· ~ 
St.I'I1It.Ii~ is oot or Lhdr m<i'd im['J)rlInl !.lrt:ngth5. whkh otTers lhc.b clitnlS • dr.lifw 

ad"1U11"~C 

fIlII) pleased 10 re\.'ommend Zy&to\·ic.h Arcrutecls fl>l your projccl 

Iryou h.·we any <lucsliOl1s pkllSC' fetl rr« 10 l~ntar.::llI)c:!l1 (J05) 579·6675 

... ~."'.J'1I'\IOn, ... ,..;-t..... J:l)~ ~"'-'''''.''':'J •• M 
.. i.u. ......... ~ioIC ..... 
... _~· •• »'JI 

1 ,1»lrt~l~ 

' . _11;1'" 

~ MIAMIBEACH 

M:"' ... ':' • .....-h ~, .... ,,,b;"'.~.-,," "'".'N;: 
I-I i:,.~:, ..... ~,.J:: I~. i1t'};~-Jn/~ 

April 1, (!011 

RE: Zyscovich. Inc 

To Whom Tills May Concern 

The Ci;Y of Miami Beach hal> Jetaln!;!d the services of Zy~\ovlch, Inc lor <1 $eries of 
importanl projects Ihraughoullhc years. MoM re<.ently. 10 2002, Zyscovich nlepared 
an updated Master Plan tor Ihe c:enlt,J1 core area 01 Ihe CiLy. srecifically 10 address 
the use or two crilically important sudace lois lor the expansion of the New WOlld 
Symphony an(lthe ~vc!opmenl 01 a park. w!'uch were anticipated 10 further enhance 
the Cily's position as a global destination On Januilry 25. 2011, The New Worlel 
Symphony's New World Center and Ihe City's Soundscape Park were officially opened. 
which together \'11th a n.ew S50·space municipal parking garage have achiev<!d 
s;gnirlcant ;nternatiU'lal acclilim 

II shoutd be nolcc lhill Zys:;ovICh's VISIon lot Inc Cily Celile. area. conceived ill!lially,[ls 
pari 01 the ongm<tl R~developJ1;e:1l1 rl<ln in 1993 as Vlell as the alJ(h'e-referenct!d 
Master Plan update- In 2002 has since come to r:ui!:On 

Zyscovu:h VIas also involved til the locv/s Holel Projecl. a pubhc'privale venture 
responsible for &l11/Q(lmg tj ' tJ flf ll l con'¥onll041-Qw _'V holel developmenllo Miami Beach 
In more than 30 Y~41h. 5;jeclhcaDy. 11"M1oVW{!'" 'e.~1or the design and resloralion 
CIJ UlC'l l'th tmu;: $.1 Mr)(il.t: l ·h~ld lP" IP\.~U1 111e mff"t imoortrmt M 11 o, .. Ifln~I~ plpPtllT)l 
ill Itle-Q1y. wt Lld l wn r~SJJ)C~ .. , POlf 01 It Je U'l!'WJ pt~«1 .lr-a>"'Id, wa!l 11130 
1000pom.il:J:c FtJlUJe tili!'!lyJttJI Old " "tllUf S,I tlJC'Ul iitWJ P,I. nltJG.lf~ whlrl\wilS. bit: IIq 
il(;CflrrunQ{f.tlfl] IIV: Il .prk lrtlJ I ~gl llrt'fll'-'I\t , tOt JIlIf r 1..""'''''' M1C.! tI !II! rlo',.~t P:iJDln h~fI. 0 .., 
(100 ~ll IClCilily whll:;:htrldudcts 21.00() M~ftlr(l real er itl.l".'PJLd, lI'1WlNrtl .1I1! .tltfJOO.I ~ 
CQ""ilc~ IltRJ rhrkil ll..l rahR:.1l(1n or 1~lallLlItc bl. llklinlj$, \'i"ll~e tRI:od&z:. W1l1(! D~Uillly 
lrK:otf't'N'l!torl i.,!D the !) I"ugtl 

Zyscovich has miJlnt<tined a succe5stul and productive workmg relationship with Ihe cily 
staff and has al· .... ays been available \0 plovide dear answers 10 our questions, 

It is my ple;:;slIre to advance my recommenda!ion 01 Zyscuvlch. Inc 

<&rtY-· l 
,L"o Bonde 
Redevelopment Coordinator 

KOB 
W. r~'_ •• --.',,~_, _I, ••. ,. I !;, '" . ., ,.~. '."1 ' ,~,-", ." ........ -.. ,". 

the firm's ability to conceive as 
well as communicate innovative 
urban solutions is one of their most 
important strengths, which offers 
their clients a distinct advantage ." 

Dana A. Nottingham 
Executive Director 
Miami Downtown Development Authority 

City of Coral Gables I Sustainability Master Plan 
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4-1. SIMILAR PROJECT INITIATIVES 
While RS&H's experience is international in scope, its roots are traced to Florida. It maintains its headquarters in Jacksonville, 
with 17 additional offices in Marathon, Miami, Ft. Lauderdale, West Palm Beach, Ft. Meyers, Tampa, Deltona, Orlando, Merritt 
Island, Green Cove Springs, Lake City, Freeport, Quincy, Tallahassee, and Southport. RS&H maintains strong sensitivity to 
local values through an unrelenting commitment to client and stakeholder input By involving stakeholders directly in our 
work and listening carefully to what we hear, our team gives creative expression to the character of the community. We build 
on local traditions to define the shared vision unique to each place. RS&H believes this approach is essential for successful 
sustainability projects, which require community-wide buy-in and collective action. The result of RS&H's place-centered 
approach is a practical methodology, based on proven techniques, leading to a one-of-a-kind plan custom-tailored to the 
unique flavor of the City of Coral Gables. 

RS&H has extensive experience helping local governments in Florida seize opportunities to maximize resource efficiency, 
while improving the health and resilience of the communities they serve. Within the past 5 years, RS&H has assisted over 30 
Federal, County or local government clients across the State of Florida and the Bahamas with over 50 sustainability projects. 

Ten projects are presented in the RS&H Team's SF 330 Part F that RS&H has been recently engaged in that are similar to 
the services sought by the City of Coral Gables. Each project demonstrates RS&H's years of experience assisting clients 
with sustainability planning projects, as well as the firm's unique understanding of challenges and opportunities inherent in 
pursuing such projects in a local government context. For each project, full references are provided. Letters of Reference 
from Miami-Dade County; the City of Pinecrest; Volusia County / Votran; Duval County / City of Jacksonville; and Rock Hill, 
South Carolina follow this section. 

Map of RS&H locations and sustainability projects in the State of Florida. 

RSrH 
IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 

" RS&H Locations 

(') RS&H Sustainability Projects 

City of Coral Gables I Sustainabilily Masler Plan 
RFQ 2013 11 27 



'('.::" ,~',. ".:.' , " , , '. ' .. -:'. ;"':, "~""'~ .. ~ " ,: ... ',' - , ." .. , Section IV • Project Control Experience 

The RS&H Team has years of experience assisting local governments in Florida with sustainability projects. A detailed 
project history, including project descriptions is included in Part F of the enclosed SF 330. The table below summarizes 
these projects, including the client name, location, contact information, and contract duration. Also included in this sect ion 
are five Letters of Reference from Miami-Dade County; the Village of Pinecrest. Florida; the City of Jacksonville, Florida; 
Votran/Volusia County, Florida; and Rock Hill, South Carolina, respectively 

Client Project Address 

John F Kennedy 
NASA KSC Sustainability Plan 

Space Cenler, FL 

Miami-Dade 
Sustainable and 

300 N.E, 2nd Ave, 
Accessible Capital 

County 
Improvement Process 

Miami FL 

City of West 
West Palm Beach 401 Clematis Streel 
Sustainability Action West Palm Beach, 

Palm Beach 
Plan FL 

DeCA Waste Minimization 2250 Foulois Street, 
Nationwide Program Lackland. TX 

City of Energy Efficiency and 220 East Bay Sireet, 
Jacksonville Conservalion Stralegy Jacksonville, FL 

Village of Greenhouse Cas 12645 Pinecrest 
Pinecrest Invenlory and Forecast Pkwy. Pinecrest, FL 

City of Rock Resource Efficiency PO Box 11706 
Hill Plan Rock Hill, SC 

City of 
City of Jacksonville 

220 East Bay Street. 
Vision Plan and Future 

Jacksonville 
Land Use 

Jacksonville, FL 

Volusia Volran Plan for 950 Big Tree Road, 
County Sustainabilily South Daylona, FL 

North Florida Natural Gas Fuels 1022 Prudentiat Dr, 
TPO Stralegy NFTPO Jacksonville, FL 

- -_ .. - --- -

BS&8 
IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 

Contact Phone Initiated 

Denise Thaller, Nalional 
Aeronaulics/Space (321) 867-1599 2011 
Environmental Manager 

Patricia Gomez, 
(352) 343-9503 2010 

Miami-Dade County 

Penelope Redlord 
Sustainabilily Manager, City (561) 804-4994 2011 
of West Palm Beach 

Mark Leeper, 
(804) 734-8000 

Defense Commissary 2007 
Agency Project Manager 

ext. 8626 

Ebenezer Gujjarlapudi, 
(904) 255-7245 2009 

Director, City of Jacksonville 

Yocelyn Galiano Gomez, 
(305) 234-2121 2013 

Village Manager 

Rebecca Hooks, 
(803) 326-3832 2012 

City of Rock Hill 

William Killingsworth 
Director, Planning and (904) 630-2879 2010 
Development, COJ 

Healher Blanck, (386) 761-7700 2010 
Asstistant General Manager 

Jeff Shelfield, North Florida 
(904) 306-7512 2013 

TPO Executive Director 
--

City 01 Coral Gables I Sus lainability Master Plan 
RFO 2013.11.27 
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2011 

2011 

2012 

2009 

Ongoing 

2013 

2010 

2010 

Ongoing 
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Aug~ 20, 2013 

Re~Mldo;o. Smith aM Hih~, Inc 
do ~n Moore, AICP, LEED AP 
10748 D6~twOOd Park Boulevard Soulh 
JackSOfTViJ!e, FL ~2256 

RE; Contract No. RFP 703 

OtIp.r1n~ or RaQuulory & E,:;oJlQmk: Resoun:;OB 
Plllnninv Dtvh.ion 

Drtk.6 nf ~1I,"",",.bHi1~ 
1tlMN1"SlJ9<:tt'1~'F1oor 

~itlrri,FL:3312 
T305-J7~ 

http:tlwww_miamldad~ g~r.,.nI 

SusJalnable CI~tallmprovement ProcC$s Consulmnl Services 

To whorn II may CDn~-

t: 
,:t 

~':~~':orC:;~~e:~ ;6~~ro~:. ~ a~~&~ItI:~~ ~S;~ r:n:::!~a:t~=~::: I~ 
c.ounty's effmt 1o develop sus!al!1ablrty policies and procedur1'l~ \0 be I'ltt\graled into Lhf! County'~ 
t:al'lltAlllmp.to~n".Iln1 ptOOl!-~!U!1t 

Based on a rENIew of polict.es, blt9(\llellls, s.urveys, .. nd worksJ"h1ps, RS&H cre<llad gUidelines <1M 
r9COO1~nd:ltbm (0/' implemiinli.'11 IAIp~al Improvements that m:a;drnba enBf9Y, mlnlmiN 
oreeMQoI.J:le 0" ert"liss/QM. Wld incre-a68 1M U~e of r'!'ne"w-eble er\\!Irg)" In otdrlt to impl&ment ll)f. new 
QU~~~~, RSB.H dftveloped and It:!1xllrairling nnd oricnla6an modur~ ror Coutrly proleMionats 

R~H prO\'kied delot1ed wo,k on 6Ched:.JItJ, within bl)dgDt and communicated re$uHs prof-llrielOJl8lJy 
The County has been s<rlisflad with Rs&H's WOfk and y,.uuld recomnlGfld its sU8lainabiLi1y consulting 

~-:~w.J Patti IIi Gon"lflZ-Acewdo, PE. CEM, lEEO AP 
SUst nabiity" Program Mao.ag.af 
0(flD;1 of 5u~.dn;K)~ky 
Mi;Jffii-Dade County ReguJalory and Ec:oncmic Resources Department 
Planning Oiviiion 

Rc-rn'*1s, Srtl:!"= on", H~!'., if, .. 

VIi.l,l,CE or PIN£CRE'Sr 
otf;cE' <H Ir<E' Ylnge I.o.q.nog« 

An~..J "'\ike Nt:C':Hthy·, MBA., i":3 lED AP 
107.4 B Oee-v-..c;.xi PCft Bc,,;leo..o(l~ri SQ.;~h 

jC'.(h<.)l\v;lle. H 32256 

RE: Su~lQioobilll-1 CO'"Iwhil1Q Se"'ic~ 
Ccmmvnily G,t'U:.·fl~~ G<1J; Em~:.ion !OY(Inlo:y 0:-.3 ;:olOG>J-~1 

,~;tf)"'C-<:lI~~":'''''':.:...w 

~~~e< 
~"",-.c",""'""," 

The Wo..JC" 01 ~;rh'Gf!,1 !~Cb ~.t!'(.J ~S!.I ~ k':.~ ~J~!O:n.:lhii,~( o)(lwl;hg ~y.Yic.oJ' R;x.i ~ dC-.11ic,)~l 
;;I C0rrl!nuniy G:o?!";~J,;')Jk" '.::;C,. trr,iE;,)(l '1 A""br:; one! fO'e""-..O';.! rr.x Ihe V&:lge ~:::l b!1:;d~!l~Cik 
~L~~fl(;l<!ly ~'P.:fu'.'Tc'X:e. "'~-m:Jj;:; !Xf".~J!e!.{, ard rl~;! e;[e-::;\'!?Iy b. the :uL'e 

.-II=-~-"RS&H provided detailed work ~:I 5.i'.l.i.;.;:.-~~I . ,·,~,i<x1 d~,"",' ~~k '''' vh .. ~,\> . w";,,, ~<IG" ",,J coc,"'ce,ko'~1 ">,,,',, 

on schedule within budget andl ,.....,- . ~'" ~~.~ . .... ~. [I",. W''?!!'' d Piece'"> hm L.->,,, .mki,ed ",.;;~ ,Y,;;', w .. f oe-d .... cd 
I . ~ ~::f1;~.!1.. ~!:';" ~.....-f i: .. 5!;siClr,c!?l~ Iy ("r.-.r.~~Jh"-:.g SlJ"r .. ICI-'~ 

communicated results professionally_' 
The Village of Pinecrest has been 
satisfied with RS&H's work and 
would recommend its sustainability 
consulting seNices," 

Angelo Gasca 
Administrative Services Manager 
Village of Pinecrest 

RS&8 
IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 

-

116~5 P!r.Ecr~51 Port:""".:J·~ '" _....-. 1 f ilQlva .tI IS) 
1: JI.I) 2).( 1111 I ~:J'~ .. :,U~ 1131 

no 
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"Mike McCaarthy's knowledge and 
expertise in the field is combined 
with a hands-on approach to each 
deliverable. He is an outstanding 
project manager, whose team 
created a much valued product." 

Heather Blanck 
Assistant General Manager 
Votran, Volusia County, Florida 

NEIGtl80RHOOOS OliPAI! TMENT 

St. P'~llIbel 19. 20jJ 

R~ynolds,Smilh Dnd "ills , Inc 
c/o Mi~c McCarThy, PE.MBA, LEEO AP 
10748 Ikc:rwood PiL,k Doul~vill"d Soulh 
J .. ck~nvillc:, FL J:r.L~6 

RE: Contract No. RJ:P P-45-UI' 
Procnm Mrmllg~mc:nl Sc:rvic:u (or Ihe: t:nll:fc,y Ij:rriden..:y Cun~~..-v,,'i(ln nlock Gr:In' 
Program, Phase I 

Conlr .. c1No.RFt'·3Z·IO 
Entre Elficifncy lind Conser-"olion Prl>grom Mon.scm(nl 

To WhORl II MilY Concern: 

The Ci'y of JDctsonvilic ~ rc:laincd RS&H (01 suSlalnahili,y (onwllin, u ,v:ces ove, ,he l"OU''\oC or :W09 
through ,he ptno!nl dale RS&H IS sc,"';n" as h:ad (onsu'I:Jn' (or Ci,y's EIW.'n Efficn:oo: y and 
ConW!,v;tlion Block G~I (EECUG) Prop ... m 

RS&11 has wortc:d willi ,he City 10 Drrly fOf DOO 5(CUI't; .. :n R mllhon Ene'KY Efficiency a..d 
t"IlfI)A'TV'-"" UJod: rlmr.! rlllm IIw t ' 5 1 1:k~ltlpDlI vl r. • ....,Ifi.T "":kI~ .... OIk.:d wilh 11M: Cil)' 10 d~5lgn ~ 
ttJlttl lh't)C'IItOiY" ,oru, fOlicJ IIf ~ ;'Jl;lIIllCII II1dll..,lf 1'I' ~,.'l t ~ nthUJI OO illlJ ft!' <1O InUbeIIl iik\uall jil.lW\. C' 

C""q'~ II u~ :n ~ I1rbi~ Wa:rU r.-r' .. u .... ~ lr! " "F'""j""'L In ~d()ilion 10 i\\!lplng desi!:n 11K 
prntrarn, R5£H currenll), 5<::r~s:lS 11M: Cil),'slcChrlic;a1 ~souree for imp!.:m.:nling ;IS Slr~I~1O' awJing Ih~ 

ci l), wilh proj~cI man~g~menl, pllnn;ng, PIOCUII"''I'I..:"" lIui,n, IT1CJSUH:lllo!nl aml "'l'nficJIiOn ~nd quai;l)' 
control ~nd ilSsurance 

RS&H h;as prnvllkd ()~Iaikd work on schedule, .... lIhin !ludgel ~nd eomlllulHealed resulls pro{"sSlon~lly 
The C;I), has been s.Jlisfi ... d wilh RS&'Ws wnrk 10 d~lr: 3ntl ... ould r~'Colmn.:nd liS enug)' 300 
susI3inability consuhing 5<::rvic~~ 

~ 
KUftnGllull 
Environmental &. Compliance Opcr~lioll'f Admininr~IOf 
Environm.:nwl EfTki~nc)' GrolOlS Projo'CI Man:rger 
Cil)' or hck!Onyill~, NCighbortlootls Oeparun.:nl 

RS~ 
IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 

Votran 
¢ II¥ ..... '~~' 

Aui1J!lt 19, 2013 

RoyncidS, SrT\o1rl Md HlIs, Inc 
Arh, M:kA I-"cC;::w1hy tAM f'G I FEll /lop 
10748 l,K.f",. ... -ood PafIC. 6o.jevaaJ Soum 
Ja..'1<son·~!e R l2256 

RE: SuatAlnability COllsultlnD SetviceJ 

• Projecl Control Experience 

Developnll!nt or M ""egra.ted SuslMnability Implementation Plan 

10 V'J'hom it Mey Concem: 

Vctmflo, VtJt~ c.:CU'lty I ,=-.dre im''I"ro)r1:iloQo G'IJ\oVTtI r~ nM H to: 
W1I!l:t"I:J,.~ (J a;;r1RI".ng ~ RMI I dtN'~ fill L-t~lotl SI.llI.loabi~)' 
l mpfLlrne:nt Dl;oJQ f'l¥\ "'f1Io,~ 1 lJI: oY.doS Vo1ren III .yt1O:tn.lt< l'I(a.;4u I~ ~ 
ifI~ l(l.tfl"l""wlM !!OI.~IC:r nlls!;..-".- 'fd ~ow-rnrmt& IJV. CI: tNO f5, ,.~ 
~ 100:tJ I ' .... .w~...... IlWiJrlJtrj tl lft.J.lo$.I lnrW,lI,,".;jJ PI~,Q4 lilt Yt:411 
I\~;t.!d I~ i)'lap'~I I'r(.trj,!1I. ~~n ... 't'A I\~kn 

R;U .•• pl'OVI(Joj(] ~1&<1 YrI01( .:;.l &.t~, wtlhin budU<!1 iSOlI uOmtl~"tl 
""".KJh ?"Of~siooall)'. Mko McCarlhy'5 foI,.u:.~&edg6 ~nd experti&e in "'- f-4ld jg 

c;rr"I!\oI""OO Wllh a ~ 1~ir<Jl approach to lIIodl deN'Jerob\9 He is 9n cutstandrog 
~~ manegl!r. whose ItSIDl Cfea1eC 8 mum. valued prodl.JCL Votrnn h"!1 been 
vOl)' !atirted Wltn HSKH's WOI:k ...,d riKXlmmenOs thoif' susuirwlity WI,.JI~IY 
SQ!"Io'k;01i 

st~(9IlJ, ,. 

.. )\1(\(0 JffG~ . .L . 
H"Ul'lheI' B}ar,Q; 
ASSIM~\l (',*,,~r<tl Manage( 
Vo!ran, Vc::tus;a COUNY, FI~iOO 

9 ... "-0 nlo TnU (lOJ.() ---sol1TH CAYT~ FLORJOA 1l\IIHlt6 
(3M) 'S614OE" -FAX (:lSGi ""A-7-487 

~~......" .. ~c-,~-

@ 
RocKHILL 
S OUTH CAROLINA 

AU~llS' 16, 2013 
Reyoold6, Smhh aod HilJs, Inc. 
do Ben Moota. AICP, LEED Green As60ciale 
10748 DeorwoOO Pari< SOlileolArd South 
Jad<.sonvlJle, FL 32258 

RE: R9'SOurcQ Eftich:ancy Pun 

To Whom It May COl"lO:!rn: 

The Ct-I of Rock Hill ralaincd RS&H for suctilirl-.bjty 0006U1ting ~rvkes 2012 
IhrouQh the pre$enl dale. RS&H fit"O'O'd aa .I6.ad oo,.."ullanl fcf Clly'e efforts to 
8'SO~~ sUSL.elnablrily c::ht'lilengu Wid opport""itCe&. 

RS&'H worked with the Cil.y 1o cl"wlr&d:erlze ir$ resource effi:;ieocy PMformanoa. 
It oomplled :md .. nalyuK1 !tuee yvan: of data lor sa: sigllikant JISPeC\$ c( 
municipal Dpor3~~ lard use 31ld tr;Jo$pOfl3lion, energy, IAQlar, wasle n&el 
manag!moot and regulaOOn RS&H belld'lil'lill1ced ftlSUl111 Bgalmt 1I1~ PMI'" 
muf\iclpalitles. Under RS&H's facililati<xl. $LotH &Joh..lr-ted the City', streng1hs, 
weakneS9i!'!ll, opportunr:ielJ 800 INests; idecilfied tWo areas ror future foc:UtJ; 1lnd 
~tabll!hed pr"limioafY goal$. object~. loirla.!1vt:1I and matrics ror D.ac.h rocus 
area over a twenly year lw,i:zOfL A Resootce Efficl~I"Y Plitn W3i- dillveloped 
Inclusive of the !lix locUs weo The plan 6erves as a tool for deaign, 
im~nlaUon tind rneRsureu~nl of ir;i\i:atM.t6 aim-cd al conLirtKlusly I"lproving 
the Cl:.y·s pel1ormAnoo Recommel'lCalions ror public lind pliVite tunding 
~60UrCf)~ were al60 provKhld 

RS&H :'l39 pro'iidoo delalled work on 5d'Iedule, within bu~el ard oommunk;olcd 
results proronsJon3lty The City ha$ beet1 J;llisft.d with Rs&H'9 work k) cale 

Rebecca Hoot:.s 
Gr::.nts Admlnjg(rBtor 
City r..1 Rodc.HiII 

CIT)' O~ 'lOCK 1I11. !' 
m.IU:JtI$JQ!1 SJlln:f. I' (l. 110& tl)Q: 

MOC1i HJU ,~ 1JTJI·I l\K. "J,m·xc 
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4-2. WILLINGNESS TO WORK WITH CONSULTANTS 
The RS&H Team has been assembled specifically to assist Coral Gables seize triple,bottom-line opportunities via its 
Sustainability Master Plan, It looks forward to working closely with the City staff, as well as any consultants designated by 
the City, to complete the SMP 

All of the sustainability projects completed by the RS&H team in the past have been multi-discipline efforts, requiring 
cOllaboration between a diversity of technical and professional areas, Each project has also succeeded on the basis of 
understanding and improving organizational relationships. 

The three firms that comprise the RS&H Team are all familiar with the importance of working collaboratively with one another, 
with our clients, and with other stakeholders, including consultants designated by the City, in order to achieve project goals. 

RStH 
IMPROVING YOUR WORLD 

City of Coral Gables I Sustainability Master Plan 
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SECTION 6 
RFQ SUBMISSION CHECK LIST 

COMPANY NAME: (Please Print): Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc , 

Phone: (904) 256-2500 Fax: (904) 256-2503 

0 I. 

[Z] 2, 

[2] 3, 

0 4, 

0 5. 

0 6. 

[ZJ 7. 

[Z] 8. 

(Z] 9. 

lZJ 10. 

ILl 11. 

[2] 12. 

[ZJ 13. 

lZJ 14. 

lZJ 15. 

--NOTICE--

BEFORE SUBM1TfING YOUR RFO, MAKE SURE YOU ... 

Carefully read the SPECIFICATIONS/SCOPE OF WORK and then properly fill out the RFQ 
SHEET and CERTIFICATION PAGE (Schedule "A"). 

Fill out and sign the NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT (Schedule "B") and have it properly 
notarized. 

Sign the VENDOR DRUG FREE STATEMENT (Schedule "C"). 

Complete, sign and have notarized RESPONDENT'S QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT 
(Schedule "D"). 

Complete STATEMENT OF NO RESPONSE (Schedule "G") if applicable. 

Sign and return first page acknowledging CODE OF ETIIICS, CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
AND CONE OF SILENCE (Schedule "H"). 

Complete, sign and have notarized American with Disabilities Act (ADA) Non-Discrimination 
Statement (Schedule "1"). 

Complete, sign and have notarized the Sworn Statement Pursuant to Section 287.133 (3) (a), 
Florida Statutes, On Public Entity Crimes (Schedule "J"). 

Complete and submit Acknowledgement of Addenda (Schedule "K") if applicable. 

Complete, sign and have notarized LOBBYIST forms (if applicable). Forms available 
at www.coralgables.com. City Clerk 

Complete and submit STANDARD FORM 330, Architect-Engineer Qualifications. 

Clearly mark the RFQ NUMBER AND RFQ NAME on the outside of your envelope. 

Submit ONE ORIGINAL and FOUR PHOTOCOPIES with ONE disk or memory stick in PDF 
format of your RFQ. 

Make sure your RFQ is submitted prior to the deadline. Late RFQs will not be accepted. 

Include Bond if applicable, 

FAILURE TO PROVIDE THE REQUESTED SCHEDULES MAY RESULT IN YOUR RFQ BEING DEEMED 
NON-RESPONSIVE. 

TIllS PAGE ALONG WITH SCHEDULES "A" THRU "K" ARE TO BE RETURNED WITH YOUR RFO 
(DRAW A LINE ACROSS A FORM WHlCH IS NOT APPLICABLE). 

RFQ 2013,11.27 
SMP 
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SCHEDULE "A" 
CITY OF CORAL GABLES 

CERTIFICATE OF CONSULTANT 

I hereby certify that I am Lisa Mo Rob..:::e.:..;rt:.!..., .:...P~E,----____ and a duly authorized representative ofthc firm 

R Id S Oh d HOII I 0 0 10748 Deerwood Park Blvd S, 
eyno . S, mit an I S , nco , whose addlcss IS Jac ksonville , FL 32256 

and that neither I, nor the above firm, I heioe repioesent has : 

ao employed or retained for a commission, percentage brokerage, contingent fee, or other 
consideration, any fum or person (other than a bona fide employee working solely for me or the 
abovc Consultant) to solicit or secure this contract. 

bo agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this contract, 10 employ or retain the 
services of any firm or person in connection with carrying out the contract, or 

Co paid, or agreed to pay, to any firm, oioganizatioil or person (other than a bOlla tide employee 
working solely for me or the above Consultant) any fee, contribution, donation or consideration of 
any kind for, or in connection with, procuring or carrying out the contract. except. as here 
expressly stated (if any): 

[ acknowledge that this certificate is to be fUionished to the City of Coral Gables, and is subject to applicable Local, 
State and Fedeioal laws, both criminal and civil. 

~:~uruy14. 201CANtPJJt? ( 
Consultant (signature) 

Lis a Mo Robe rt. PE 

Name (typed or printed) 

65-0577658 

Federal Employer LDo 

RFQ 2013.11027 
SMP 
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SCHEDULE"B" 
CITY OF CORAL GABLES 

NON-COLLUSION AND CONTINGENT FEE AFFIDA VTT 

This affidavit is to be filled ill, executed and notarized by the Consultant. If the Response is made by a Corporation? 
then it should be executed by its Chief Officer. This docnment MUST be submitted with the Response. 

STATE OF 

COUNTY Of 

Florida 

Duval 

) 
)ss 
) 

Lisa M. Robert, PE , being first duly sworn, deposes and says that 
(Type or print name of per son who is signing beloll~ 

I. Helshe is the Officer ---------------------------------------------------------
(Owner, Partner, Officer, Rep1"esenrative' or Ageiil) 

of the Consultant that has subm itted the attached Response. 

2. He/she is fully informed with respect to the preparation and contents of the attached Response and of all 
pertinent circulllstances respecting slIch Response; 

3 . Said Response is made without any connection or common interest in the pmfits with any other persons 
making any Response to this solicitation. Said Response is on our pmt in all respects fair and \vithout collusion 
or fi·aud. No head of any department, any employee or any officer of the City of Coral Gables is directly or 
indirectly interested therein. If any relatives of Consultant's offi'cers or employees are employed by the City, 
indicate name and relationship below. 

Name:'-----____________________ _ Reliltiollsh ip: _______________________ _ 

Name: ________________________ _ Relationship: ___ _ _ 

1. No lobbyist or other consultant is to be paid on a contingent or percentage fee basis in connection with the 
award of this Contract. 

C ompan y N atli e: --'-~c:...:..::'-'-'-'-:.:..!...C::...:...c"-"--~-'-=---'-:..:...::..;~-=-----_c_f'---_f_ l ___f"=_.-__==_-------------

Consu Ital1t's Authorized Signature: \' __ "'"-_1- -/. 

Subscribed and SWOI11 to before me this JI7ni dayof.JANVAt-Y ,20~ 

8oNN/~~ 
ary Public (Print, 7)!pe or Stamp name of Notal)' Pllblic) 

Personally known--.L or Produced 1.0. __ _ 

Type and number of l.O. Produced : 

-L Did take an oath, or 

RFQ 2013.11.27 
SMP 

Did not take an oath 

<-"'~.V. ;~"'~ BONNIE FAiRCLOlll ... .. "W.. .. MY COMMISSION I FF 045200 
R.'l EXPIRES: August 26, 2017 

'~/fOF "d1'~" Donded Thru Budget Nollry S!lVim 
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SCHEDULE "C" 

CITY OF CORAL GABLES 

VENDOR DRUG-FREE STATEMENT 

Preference Jllay be given to vendors submitting a certification with their bid/proposal ce11iiying they have a drug­
free workplace in accordance with Section 287.087; florida Statutes. This requirement affects all public enlities of 
the State and becomes effective January I, 1991. The special condition is as follows: 

I . Publish a statement notifYing employees that the unlawful manufacture, distTibutiolJ, dispensing, possession, or 
use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken 
against employees [Oi' violations of such prohibition. 

2. Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business's policy of maintaining a 
drug-fi'ee workplace, any available drug counseling, rchabilitation, and cmployee assistance programs, and the 
penalties that may be imposed upon employees for-drug abuse violations. 

3. Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are undel' solicitation a 
copy orllle statement specified.in subsection (I). 

4. In the statement specified in subsection (J), notify the employees that, as a condition of working on the 
cOllllllodities or conh'adual services that are under solicitatioll, the employee will abide by tire terms of the 
statement and will notify the employer of allY cOllviction of, or plea of guilty Or nolo contendere to, any 
violation of chapter 893 or of any controlled substance law of the United States or any state, for a violation 
occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction. 

5. Impose a sallction Oil, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation 
program if SLich is available ill the employee's COlill11l111ity, by any employee who is so convicted. 

6. Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free wOl'kplace through implementation of this section. 
As the person authorized to sign the statement, I certifY that this form complies fully with the above 
requirements. 

I hereby certi fy that the company submitting this solicitation has established a Drug Free work place program in 
accordance with Sale Statute 287.087 

RFQ 2013.11.27 
SMP 

vb y v. V 
~~s 

Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc. 
COMPANY'S NAME 
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SCHEDULE"D" 
CITY OF CORAL GABLES 

CONSULTANT'S QUALIFICATION STATEMENT 

The undersigned cel1ifies under oath the truth and correctness of all statements and all answers to questions made 
hereinafter: 

Company Name: Reynolds , Smith and Hills , Inc. 

Address: 10748 Deerwood Park Blvd S 
Street 

Jacksonville 

City 

FL 
State 

32256 

Zip Code 

Telephone No: (904 ) 256-2500 F1jX No: ( 904) 256-2503 Email: lisa.robert@rsandh.com 

How Illany years has your organization been in business under its pi'esent 1ll1l11e? 24 Yenrs 

I fConsultant is operating under Fictitious Name; submit evidence of compliance with Florida Fictitious Name Statue: 

Under what [011ller names has your business operated? : Please see attached (AJ . 

At what address was that business l(lciltecJ?Our firm's Ilea dqumierr. <'llways has and continues to be in JDcl~sorwllle, FL. 

Are You Certified? Yes_~X7-__ 
Are You Licensed? Ycs._-----'-X--'-__ 

No. ___ _ 
No. ___ _ 

If Yes, ATTACH COPY ofCel1ification. 
If Yes, ATTACH COPY of License 

Has your company or its senior officers ever declared bankruptcy? 

Yes ____ No X If yes, explain: 

Please identify each incident within the last five (5) years where (a) a civil, criminal, administrative, other similar 
proceeding was filed or is pending, if such proceeding arises fi'om or is a dispute conce~ning the Consultant's rights, 
remedies or duties under a contract for the same or similar type services to be provided under this RFQ; 
Please see attached (B). 

Have you ever been debarred or suspended from doing business with any government entity? 

Yes __ Nol IfYes,explain _____________________ _ 

RFQ 2013.11.27 
SMP 
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SCHEDULE "D" (Continued) 
CITY OF CORAL GABLES 

CONSULTANT'S QUALIFICATION STATEMENT 

Lisa M. Robert, PE 
Print or type name of person signing 

Senior Vice President 
Title of per SOil signing 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 1'2711 day of JANUAt:I ,20--'!L 

~AL2:'" //.~ __ 

/~~bliC~ 
I3f/NN/fJ l%/!.tUZR-I 

(Print, Type or Stamp name o/Notmy Public) 

Personally knownLor Produced I.D. __ _ 

Type and Ilumber ofLD. Produced: 

~Did take an oath, ol' __ Did not take an oath 

~"\~~'~~'io BONNIE FAIRCLOTH 

~
• , . '/0 MY COMMISSION IFF 04520G 

* EXPIRES: Augusl26, 2011 
"'~lt o:i"(>T Iloodtd Tliru Budge1 Notary Smite! 

0F.f'" 

Please attach additional sheets if a more comprehensive explanation is desired. 

RFQ 2013.11.27 
SMP 

Page 21 of44 



SCHEDULE "D" ATTACHMENT 

(A) Prior to becoming Reynolds, Smith and Hills, Inc in 1989, RS&H operalecl under: RS&H / RS&H Hunter / Hunter 
Services, Inc. (1987 -1989); Reynolds, Smith and Hills Architects-Engineers-Planners, Inc. (1969 - 1987); and Reynolds, 
Smith and Hills, Architects and Engineers (1942 - 1969). 

(8) RS&H has no litigation under contracts of the same or similar type services to be provided under this RFQ 



SCHEDULE"G" 
CITY OF CORAL GABLES 

STATEMENT OF NO-RESPONSE 

NOTE: If you do not intcnd to propose on this RFQ, please return this form immediately. Failure to return this forlll 
may result in your name being removed from the list 0[' qualified Respondcnts for the City of Coral Gables. Please 
indicate Statement of Qualifieations namc and number on the outside oflhe envclopc. 

MAIL TO: CITY OF CORAL GABLES 
2800 S.W. 72nd AVENUE 
MIAMI, FL 33155 
ATrN: CHIEF PROCUREMENT OFFICER 

We, the undersigned have declined to respond for the following reason: 

___ Insufficient time to respond to the Request fE'om Statement ofQualitications. 

___ \Ve do not offer these serviceB or ancquivalenl. 

___ Our schedule would not permit us to perform. 

___ Unable to meet specifications. \ '\ 

\ \ \ \ 

___ Unable to meet Bond requirements. 

___ Specifications unclcnr (c.x Jafn bclow). 

b 
. . ~ 

___ Una Ic to meet Illsurance reqUi remen ts. 

___ Other (speciry below). .. , 
\. \. 

RGMARKS: 
\: 

'>. 

\ 

I , 

\ 

\ \ 
\ \ 

\\ 

\ 
\' \ \ 

\ \ , 

\ 
\ 

I' \ 

\ 
\ 
1 
i 

'\-----------------------------\ 
'\ 

COMPANY NNvIE: 

SIGNATURE: 

ADDRESS: 

TELEPHONE NUMBER: 

FAX NUMBER: 

EMAIL ADDRESS: 

RFQ 2013.11.27 
SMP 

\ 
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SCHEDULE"H" 
CITY OF CORAL GABLES 

CODE OF ETHICS AND CONFT .ICT OF INTEREST 

CONE OF SILENCE 

THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED BY PERSON RECEIVING THIS BOOKLET AND INCLUDED IN 
YOUR SUBMITTAL, AS REQUIRED BY CITY OF CORAL GABLES SECTIONS 2-1055 AND 2-1059. 

CODE OF ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
CONE OF SILENCE 

IS HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED 

::::::I:a01e 
-"L=is=a'-'-'MCl.!..-'-R=O=be=rI.>.L~..!...p=E+_--B---.--g1---'""'", J---TZ==----cy ____________ _ 

Boat'dlPosition/Depattment: --,S=e=n=io,,--r -'-'Vi=ce:::.-=-Pr=8=si=dc=n.:.o.t ____ ___________ _ 

Date: January 14, 2014 

RFQ 2013.11.27 
SMP 
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SCHEDULE "I" 
CITY OF CORAL GABLES 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) 

DISABlLlTY NONDISCRIMINATION STATEMENT 

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR 
OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS. 

This sworn statement is submitted _-----'C=-:i~tv Qf Coral Gables ______________ _ 
(print name of public entity) 

by Lisa M. Robert, PE - Senior Vice President 
(print inllivillual's name and title) 

for~nolcls , Smith and I-Hils, Inc. 
(pl"illt name of entity submitting sworn statement) 

,,,hose business address is: 10748 Deelwood Park Blvd S Jacksonville, FL 32256 

and (ifappJicflble) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) _6_5_-_0_5_77_6_5_8 ____ ___ _ 

elude Social Security Number bfthe individual signing this sworn statement: 

I, being duly first sworn state: 

That the above named finn, corporation or organization is in compliance with and agreed to continue to comply 
with, and aSsure that any sub-contractor, or third party contractor under this project complies with all applicable 
requirements of the laws listed below including, but not limited to, those provisions pertaining to employment, 
provision of programs and service, transportation, comJllunications, access to facilities, renovations, and new 
construction. 

The American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), Pub. L. 101-336, 104 Stat 327,42 U.S.C. 12101,12213 and 47 
U.S.c. Sections 225 and 661 including Title I, Employment; Title II, Public Services; Title Ill, Public 
Accommodations and Services Operated by Private Entities; Title IV, Telecommunications; and Title V, 
Miscellaneous Provisions. 

The Florida Americ<llls with Disabilities Accessibility Ill1plementation Act of 191}3, Sections 5553.501-553.513, 
Florida Statutes 

The Rehabilitation Act of J 973,229 U.S.c. Section 794 
The Federal Transit Act, as amended. 49 U.s.C. Section 1612 
The Fair Housing Act as amended, 42 U.S.C. Section 3601-3631 

RFQ 2013.11.27 
SMP 
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SCHEDULE "I" (CONTINUED) 

CITY OF CORAL GABLES 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) 

Lisa M. Robert, PE 
Print or type name of person signing 

Senior Vice President 
Title ofp.ersoll signing 

/'7nI day of JANWY , 20~ 

Notai'Y Public 

80NNR2 FiIltJRR/ 
(Prillt, Type O/' Stamp name ofNotCIIJI Public) 

Personally knownLor Produced l.D . __ _ 

~<>\~!.~~~ BONNIE FAIRCLOTH ,. .. w.. 1< MY COMMISSION IFF 045206 
"~,, EXPIRES: Augusl26, 2017 
.,,~o. " rfri OOllded Thru BOO!ltI Nolary Ser'Jlces 

Type and number ofLD. Produced: 

~Did take an oalh, or __ Did not take an oath 



SCHEDlJLE "J" 
CITY 0" CORAL GABLES 

SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 287.133 (3) (a), 
"LORIDA STATUTES, ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES 

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE 0" A NOTARY PUBLIC OR 
OHlER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS. 

1. This sworn statement is subm itted to __ C_ity-'-o_f_C_o_rB_I_G_8_b_l..:..e-'-s _______________ _ 
[prillt I/(I/lle of tire pl/blic e/lti~I'J 

by Lisa M. Robert, PE - Senior Vice President 
[prillt il1rlivirlllrtl's name ([I/{I title 

for Reynolds, Smith and Hills , Inc. 
fpdllt /lame of entity submittiJlg SIV(}I'II statement] 

Whose business address is: 10748 Deerwood Park Blvd S ..::.J .::.ac.::;cIc.::<s::.:o:.:.n.:..:v.::.il:,:leC.!.., ..:..F-=L.:..:3::.:2::.:2:..::5:..::6 _ _______ _ 

and (ifapplicable) its federal EmployerIdentification Number (FEIN) ,....:0:6""5...::-0""50.;,7...:.7..::6..::5.:::.8 ________ _ 

Jfthe entity has no FEIN, include the Social Sccurity Number of the individual signing this sworn statement: 

2. I understand that a "public entity crime" as definc in Paragraph 287 .133( I )(g), Florida Statutes, means fl 

violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the transaction of 
business with any public entity or wilh an agency or politicftl subdivision of any other state or of the United 
States, including, but not limited to, any Proposal Ol" contract for goods or sefvices to be provided to any public 
entity Of an agency or political subdivision of any other slate or of the United Stat'es and involving antitrust, 
fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation. 

3. I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined Ul Paragraph 287.133(1)(b), Florida Statutes, means 
a finding of guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime, with or withont an adjudication of guilt, in any 
federal or state trial court of record relating to charges brougbt by indictmenl or information ailer July 1, 1989, 
as a result of a jury verdict, non-jury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere. 

4. [understand that an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(a), Florida Statutes, means: 

1. A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or 
2. An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity and who 
has been conyicted ofa public entity crime. The tClln "affiliate" includes those officers, directors, executives, 
partncrs, shareholders, employees, members, and agcnts who me active in the management of an affiliate. The 
olVnership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in another person, or a pooling of 
eqUipment or income among persons when not for fair market value under an arI1l's length agreement, shall be 
a prima facie case that one pelson controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint 
venturc with a person who has becn convicted of a public entity crime in Florid" during the preceding 36 
Illonths shall be considered an affiliate. 

5. I undersland that a "person" as defUled in Paragraph 287.133(1)(e), "lorida Statutes, means <Illy l1atur~1 

RFQ 2013.11.27 
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person or entity organized ullder the laws o[any stale or oftlle United States with the legal power to entcr into 
a binding contract and which Proposals or applies to Proposal on contracts for the provision of goods or 
services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity. 
The term "person" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, 
and agents who arc active in mml8gcmcnt of an entity. 

6. Based on information and beliej~ the statement which I have mnrked below is true in relation to the entity 
submitting this sworn statement. [indicate which stntement applies.] 

LNeither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any of its officers, directors, executives, partners, 
shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, nor nny affiliate 
of the entity has been charged with nnd convicted ofa public entity crime subsequent to July I, 1989. 

__ The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one 01' more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, 
shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active ill the management of the entity, or an affiliate of 
the entity hns been charged with and convicted ofa public entity subsequent to July I, 1989. 

__ The entity submitting this sworn st<ltc111ent, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, 
shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the Il1Clnagement of the entity, or an affiliate of 
the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. However, 
there has been subsequent proceeding before a Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, DiVision of 
Administrative Hearings and the rinal Order entered by the Hearing Officer determined that it was not ill the 
public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn statement on the convicted vendor list. 
[attacll (/ copy of tile filial order] 

] UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR 
THE PUBLIC ENTITY IDENTIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 1 (ONE) ABOVE IS FOR THAT PUBLIC 
ENTITY ONLY AND, THAT THIS FORM IS VALlO THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR 
YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED. 1 ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM THE 
PUBLIC ENTITY PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD 
AMOUNT PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017, FLORfDA STATUTES FOR~EGOH. TWO OF ANY 
CHANGE IN THE INFOHMATION CONTAINED IN THIS FOR " c... 

[ it? RtUI' C) 



SUBMITTED TO: 

SCHEDULE "K" 
CITY OF CORAL GABLES 

Acknowledgement of Addenda 

Request for Qualification (RFQ) No 2013.00.00 

City of Coral Gables 
Office of the Chief Procurement Ofticer 
2800 SW 72 Avellue 
Miami, Florida 33155 

L The undersigned agrees, if this RFQ is accepted, to enter in a Contract with the CITY to perform and 
furnish all work as specified or indicated in the RFQ and Contract Documents within the Contract time 
indicated in the RFQ and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the solicitation and contract 
documents. 

2, The Addenda lssued may be downloaded on-line by visiting wWIV,coralgables.cOIll, "Open Bid Invitation". 

3. Acknowledgement is hereby made of the following Addenda, if any (identified by number) received since 
issuance of the Request for Qualification. 

Addendum No. Date December 18 ---- Addendum No. ____ Date _____ _ 

Addendulll No. 2 Date January 9 ---- Addendulll No. ____ Date _____ _ 

Addendum No. 3 Date January 10 .........::..-- Addendum No. ____ Date _____ _ 

Addendum No._ 4 ___ Date January 10 Addendum No. _ ___ Date.~ _ _ __ _ 

4. Company Legal name: Reynolds. Smith and Hills, Inc, 

Address: 10748 Deerwood Park Blvd S 

City/State/Zip: Jacksonville, FL 32256 

Telephone No.!Fax No.: 904 256-2500 
~. - ------------------

E-mail : Usa.Robert@rsandh.com 

Sign,"" yJ, . Nth e:L Titl, --'-Sc:..e __ nc..:io..:...r __ V..:...ic __ e__'_P'_'re_'s..:...id=-e:...;.n-=t ___ _ _ _ 
b.Z1>rint Name and Sign) , 

RFQ 2013.11.27 
SMP 

Page 31 of44 



RS&H 

July 9,2014 

City of Coral Gables 
Public Works Department 
ATTN: Ernesto R. Pino, RA 
Assistant Public Works Director 
2800 SW 72nd Avenue 
Miami, Florida 33155 

10748 Deerwood Park Aoulevald S 

Jacksonville, Florida 32256 

o 904-256-2500 

F 904-256-2501 

rsandh.rom 

RE: Coral Gables Sustainability Master Plan Scope of Work, Cost Estimate and Schedule 

Dear Mr. Pino and Mr. Pound, 

The RS&H Team consisting of RS&H, Inc.; Zyscovich, Inc. and Erin L. Deady, P.A. is pleased to 
submit the scope of work, cost estimate and schedule for the Coral Gables Sustainability Master 
Plan. 

The scope of work detailed below responds to all elements of the Scope of Services, Tasks and 
Action Steps identified during our May 2nd meeting. The scope of work is designed to deliver an 
integrated sustainability master plan to Coral Gables that identifies opportunities to incorporate 
and continually support sustainable business practices into Coral Gables government 
operations and to assess and develop a path forward for community-wide sustainability 
initiatives that will enhance key aspects of the community. 

The scope is divided into 8 tasks and associated subtasks. The cost estimate follows the 
proposed scope of work. As per your request the cost estimate includes labor hours to complete 
each task, as well as, the total cost to complete the scope of work. The project schedule is 
provided in Attachment 1. 

SCOPE OF WORK 

TASK 1.0 KICK OFF MEETING & ASSESSMENT PREPARATION 

The Consultant Team will conduct a meeting with the Interdepartmental Project Team 
comprised of the City's Environmental Specialist and Department Directors. The purpose of this 
meeting will be to provide an overview of the SMP project's mission, objectives, strategies and 
associated scope of work. Specifically, the kick-off meeting will accomplish the following: 

• Identify key sustainability issues to be addressed 
• Review available supporting data and information 
• Review of past, current and ongoing sustainability planning initiatives and projects 
• Establish protocols for communication, coordination and shared responsibilities, including a 

discussion to identify stakeholder groups, community and planning participants, as well as 

F.:;2'.;~, I.e 
Fl C~r! fks ,1..'\(':·Jl ~?.; !3ir.)j·'7 ~:;.s. L'~ :·:·~.·)~.:.O 

Exhibit 



RS&H rsondh.com 

Coral Gables Sustainability Master Plan 
Scope of Work, Cost Estimate and Schedule 
June 30,2014 
Page 2 of 13 

appropriate communication· tools and strategies to ensure an ongoing, transparent, and 
comprehensive public engagement process 

The City of Coral Gables shall provide points of contact for data collection (as described in Task 
2.2 below) as well as the individuals that can provide input for the qualitative and quantitative 
assessments described below. 

TASK 2.0 ASSESSMENT AND SOLUTIONS FOR GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS 

The sustainability assessment is intended to inventory the City's existing sustainability 
performance and characterize challenges and opportunities. The Task includes comprehensive 
data collection, analysis, assessment, and benchmarking. 

2.1. Organizational Mapping 

The Consultant shall meet with and interview key Coral Gables Staff over a two day period 
inclusive of Task 1.0. The objective of the meetings is to clarify roles and responsibilities of 
individuals relative to the focus areas identified in Table 2.1. Before the meetings, Coral 
Gables staff shall identify the departments and associated personnel that can support 
initiatives in each of the identified focus areas. An agenda shall be developed by the 
consultant along with focus area specific data requests (see Task 2.2) so that participants 
can be prepared to provide information in a timely manner. In addition, the consultant shall 
meet with representatives from the City's Public Works Department, and other relevant 
departments, to clarify points of contact and data sources for the Greenhouse Gas (GHG) 
inventory (see Task 3.1 below). The interview results shall be used to establish an 
organizational map of existing stakeholder roles and responsibilities. 

2.2. Data Requests 

The Consultant shall prepare a comprehensive request for the focus areas identified in 
table 2.1. Data shall be requested for at least three consecutive years ending with the most 
recent 12 month period available. The Consultant shall submit the data request to contacts 
identified by Coral Gables Staff prior to the Kick-Off Meeting. Thirty days shall be provided 
for the City to respond to the data request. We encourage the City to reinforce this deadline 
since it is one of the more challenging aspects of keeping a sustainability master planning 
project on schedule. 



RS&H rso"dh.cam 

Coral Gables Sustainability Master Plan 
Scope of Work, Cost Estimate and Schedule 
June 30, 2014 
Page 3 of 13 

Table 2.1 Focus Areas and Sustainable Elements 
FOCUS AREA SUSTAINABLE ELEMENTS 

Energy Efficiency Energy Use 
(Building and Fleet)* Fuel Use 

Renewable Energy 
Green Design 

Resource Conservation Water Use 
(Facilities) Alternative Water Use 

Green Purchasing 
Green Cleaning Products 
Low ImpactDesign 

Land Use and Natural Area Preservation 
Transportation* Open Spaces, Parks and Recreation 

Land Use Regulation 
Development and Redevelopment 
Transportation Patterns 

Waste Minimization" Waste Generation 
Waste DiverSion 

I Waste Reduction 
Waste Repurposi'ng, Recycling and Recovery 

Education and Outreach Audience 
Message 
Content 
Media Tools 

Climate Resiliency Community Rating System (FEMA) 
Historically Vulnerable Areas (Flooding & Shoreline Erosion) 
Storm Surge and Evacuation 
Storm Event and SLR Projections 
Infrastructure and Natural Resource Resiliency Status . Includes data collection for the Groen/JOuse Gas Inventory 

2.3. Data Review Memorandum 

Consultant shall generate a memorandum summarizing available data and areas where 
deficiencies or gaps exist and their potential impact on the project. The memorandum shall 
address: 

• Identification of existing sustainability policies, plans, strategies, processes and 
projects 

• Identification of available data to support development of goals, metrics and future 
monitoring process 

• Identification of "gaps" in data that 1) must be filled, 2) could be filled and 3) are not 
critical 

• Identification of methodologies for addressing data that is not available. 
• Identification of relevant regulations, rules and laws. 
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2.4. Qualitative Analysis 

The consultant shall review the City's existing sustainability strategies, policies and 
procedures related to sustainability (e.g. The Trolley Master Plan, Bicycle Master Plan, 
lighting survey, Development Regulations and Capital Improvement Processes, etc.). This 
review shall also include City ordinances, the Comprehensive Plan and other regulations. 

2.5. Quantitative Analysis 

The consultant shall quantitatively analyze sustainability information obtained in response 
to the information request developed as specified in 2.2 above. The data shall be cross­
tabulated, normalized and trended as necessary to produce metrics for assessing the 
sustainability performance of the City's government operations. The consultant shall 
establish a quantitative baseline for Coral Gables government managed facilities and 
infrastructure. This data shall be compiled in a relational database. 

2.6. Data Management Assessment 

The consultant shall document the processes, tools and analyses Coral Gables currently 
uses to generate and track its sustainability metrics. The consultant shall identify key 
metrics not currently collected by the City and barriers th'at prevent collection. This 
information shall be used to recommend a tailored data collection, tracking and reporting 
framework for the City. 

2.7. Benchmarking 

The consultant shall benchmark the baseline sustainability performance of municipal 
operations for those focus areas where public information is available from three 
municipalities. The municipalities to be addressed shall be identified in collaboration with 
the City's project manager and shall include municipalities that are using ICLEl's 
ClearPath software. 

2.8. Solutions Memorandum 

The Consultant shall prepare a solutions memorandum for the City at the completion of 
task 2.0. The solutions memorandum shall detail the baseline and benchmark results, 
suggested goals, individuals to be included in the collaborative workshop; potential 
projects, as well as suggestions for policies, internal education and outreach. 

TASK 3.0 GREENHOUSE GAS INVENTORY 

The Greenhouse Gas Inventory will supplement Task 2.0 by establishing quantitative baseline 
and forecast of the Coral Gables' performance - both within government operations and in the 
community as a whole - in terms of greenhouse gas emissions. Results will help inform 
collaboration towards sustainability planning. 
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3.1. Greenhouse Gas Inventory Kick-off Meeting 

As part of Task 2.1, Consultant shall meet with the City's Public Works departmenUGHG 
Inventory project team to gain a common understanding of the data requirements and 
schedule for the City's Local Government Operations (LGOP) and City-wide GHG 
Baseline Inventory and forecast. A draft agenda will be circulated so that participants can 
begin thinking about data that will be requested, including operational boundaries, scope 
of the inventory, points of contact, and data needs. The data request specified in 2.2 
above shall include internal government operations data needed for the GHG inventory. 

3.2. External Data Gathering 

Consultant shall work in conjunction with the City's project team to develop data requests 
for the City to issue to Miami-Dade County, utilities, and other data providers as needed 
(up to a total of 5 data requests). Where relevant, data derived from the Quantitative 
Baseline will be incorporated intG the Inventory. 

3.3. Close Data Gaps: 

Working with City's project team, consultant shall provide appropriate follow-up with 
external data providers to close any gaps. Consultant shall provide up to 3 follow-up calls / 
emails to each data provider over a period of 30-days. In the event data needed for the 
inventory cannot be obtained, consultant shall work with the City to develop an alternate 
methodology; however responsibility for obtaining data shall ultimately belong to the City. 
Based on past experience, the consultant anticipates challenges obtaining community­
wide electricity consumption data from Florida Power and Light (FPL). Consultant shall 
work with the Coral Gables project team to develop strategies for overcoming this 
anticipated barrier such as upfront outreach to the utility. In the absence of cooperation 
with FPL, county-wide data will need to be extrapolated to Coral Gables, however this 
approach may limit the usefulness of the community-wide GHG inventory as a baseline for 
energy-related emissions reductions. 

3.4. Synthesis, Analysis, and Documentation 

Consultant shall compile and analyze the data as it is received, using ICLEl's ClearPath 
software and following ICLEl's Local Government Operations Protocol (LGOP), Version 
1.1., and U.S. Community Protocol for Accounting and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions, Version 1.0; or the most recent versions available. Consultant assumes the 
GHG Inventory will be limited to the emission sources required by these ICLEI protocols; 
effort needed to quantify additional or optional emissions sources is not included in this 
scope of work. To facilitate future inventories, consultant shall document methodologies, 
data sources, and data provider contact information. Consultant assumes that the City will 
pay all licensing fees needed to authorize the consultant to use ICLEl's ClearPath 
software. Estimated ICLEI licensing fees are $1,500. 
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3.5. Target Setting 

The Consultant shall make recommendations on potential GHG reduction targets based 
on local, state, regional and Federal policies, trends, and regulations as well as potential 
opportunities for reduction that are identified as a result of the GHG inventory. 

3.6. Preliminary GHG Inventory Report 

Consultant shall provide the preliminary GHG Inventory and Forecast, including LGOP and 
City-wide inventories, for the baseline year and forecast year emissions estimates. In 
addition, the Consultant shall summarize the data in visually appealing infographic and 
also provide preliminary recommendations for GHG reduction targets and associated 
opportunities that emerge from the GHG inventory. Data gaps and key assumptions will 
be highlighted for comment. 

3.7. Final GHG Inventory Report 

The Consultant shall incorporate comments provided by the City on the preliminary GHG 
inventory report. The final report shall include the GHG inventory, forecast and summary 
with visually appealing graphics. 

TASK 4 COLLABORATIVE WORKSHOP & COORDINATION WITH PROJECT TEAM 

The Consultant's government operations sustainability planning process is designed to harness 
and build the capacity of Coral Gable's management and staff. Through workshops and 
coordination with key staff, goals and strategies will be developed for the City's areas of focus. 

4.1. Presentation of Results and Preparation for the Collaborative Workshop 

The ConSUltant shall brief the Interdepartmental Project Team on the Solutions 
Memorandum and the results of the Greenhouse Gas Inventory. 

4.2. Collaborative Workshop 

Consultant shall organize and facilitate a collaborative workshop based on the results of the 
Solutions Memorandum. The workshop will take place during two consecutive half day 
sessions. Attendees will include the Consultant and the City of Coral Gables 
Interdepartmental Project Team and their designates as identified and agreed to in the final 
Solutions Memo. Objectives of the workshop shall include reviewing and calibrating the 
results of the Solutions Memo and the GHG Inventory; identify the City's sustainability 
mission, vision via a series of participatory self-assessment techniques (e.g. Strengths, 
Weaknesses, Opportunities, Threats analysis, etc.); reaffirm/reorganize areas of focus and 
establish long-term, ten year, five year, and near-term goals for each focus area using 
backcasting techniques; and preliminarily identify strategies for reaching goals. 
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The workshop shall utilize facilitation techniques to elicit full participation from the Coral 
Gables Interdepartmental Project Team and incorporate their experience and expertise into 
the Sustainability Management Plan to the greatest extent possible. During the workshop, 
the Consultant shall provide the Team with hands on experience with the processes and 
tools used to develop a project-driven sustainability plan so that the City's capacity for 
managing a system of continual sustainability improvement is developed. 

4.3. Coordination with Interdepartmental Project Team 

Members of the Interdepartmental Project Team shall be tasked with developing a suite of 
strategies for attaining goals within each focus area. Consultant shall support this effort. 
Support shall include organization of regular, focus-area specific teleconferences with 
Interdepartmental Project Team members and two onsite meetings with the 
Interdepartmental Project Team. The meetings shall occur at the mid-point of the 
Interdepartmental team project development and at the end of the process. Consultant 
shall provide resources, tools and technical support to the Interdepartmental Project 
Teams. 

TASK 5.0 DEVELOPMENT OF GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS PROJECT DRIVEN SMP 
Following coordination with the key functional teams, the consultant shall incorporate the 
resulting prioritized projects and initiatives along with previous deliverables into a draft 
Government Operations Sustainability Master Plan (GSMP). This document shall integrate the 
solutions memorandum and GHG Inventory previously developed. The final GSMP shall include 
additional documents addressed in later sections of this scope (Tasks 6, 7, and 8). 

The project-driven GSMP shall prioritize those projects and initiatives with the potential to 
deliver substantial returns with low initial investment. This approach is designed to create an 
enduring funding mechanism to support further greening of City operations by capturing eco­
efficiencies related to energy, fuel, water, and waste. Financial returns from these high-priority 
projects will allow the City to foster public involvement, develop resiliency strategies and 
promote the broader community-wide initiatives to be incorporated into the 10-year 
Sustainability Master Plan. 

5.1. Executive Summary 

This section of the GSMP shall provide a high level overview of the City's operations and 
facilities sustainability baseline, GHG inventory results, benchmarking findings, overall 
sustainability vision and goals, and key indicators and targets. 

5.2. GHG Inventory 

The GSMP shall incorporate the Final LGOP and Community-wide GHG inventories and 
forecasts (Task 3.7, above). This section shall provide an essential part of the City's 
quantitative sustainability baseline, since many of the City's sustainability programs will 
address GHG emissions. 
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5.3. Solutions Memorandum 

The GSMP shall incorporate the Solutions Memorandum discussed in Task 2.8, above. 
The Solutions Memorandum will include the baseline and benchmarking results from the 
City's quantitative analysis. 

5.4. Project-driven Sustainability Master Plan 

The Project-driven GSMP shall build on the collaborative workshops and incorporate 
projects and initiatives identified by the key functional teams. For each focus area 
addressed in Table 2.1, the GSMP will provide the baseline, identify metrics, and 
sustainability .targets at 1, 5, and 10 year increments. Within the focus areas, projects and 
initiatives identified by the key functional teams will address the City's significant aspects 
with regard to sustainability, emissions reductions, and climate resiliency. The GSMP will 
prioritize projects that meet the targets and goals identified for their focus area from a triple­
bottom line perspective addressing financial returns, environmental benefits (including 
GHG emissions reductions), and social benefits. The consultant shall develop costs 
estimates and associated returns according to the method outlined in Task 7.0. The 
benefits of these projects compared to business-as-usual projections will be highlighted 
and preliminary timelines and budgets will be provided for prioritized projects. Emissions 
reductions benefits of the priority projects towards meeting the City's GHG reduction goals 
shall also be estimated. 

5.5. Additional Documents 

The following additional documents, discussed below, will augment the GSMP and be 
included in the final sustainability master plan: Public Involvement Plan and STAR Rating 
Assessment (Task 6), Implementation Strategy and Project Funding Analysis (Task 7), 
Marketing and Communications Plan (Task 8). 

TASK 6.0 PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PLAN & COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY VISION 

Public involvement is key to the integrity and authority of a community sustainability effort. The 
Consultant shall implement the Public Involvement Plan described below with support from 
representatives of the City of Coral Gables Interdepartmental Team and the Green Task Force 
(i.e. the steering committee) where indicated. The plan establishes a roadmap for a 
comprehensive public process that generates a community sustainability vision statement, 
sustainability focus areas, and goals for each of the focus areas and strategies to achieve those 
goals. 
The process is participatory, including opportunities for feedback, input and comments from key 
stakeholders in the community, as well as essential public and private institutions. Key 
stakeholders shall be organized into Technical Working Groups (TWGs) to address the 
community-wide sustainability focus areas. 
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Task 6.1 Community Assessment 

The objective of the Community Assessment shall be to identify community issues, 
priorities and needs, gather information, develop preliminary goals and initiatives and 
establish an institutional framework for implementation and continuous improvement. 

The consultant shall identify other community engagement strategies as part of Task 8 
Marketing and Communication Plan. Engagement strategies that may be included are as 
follows: holding charrettes, creating block leader groups, holding community forums, 
encouraging the formation of neighborhood ecoteams etc. 

Based on the information request specified in 2.2 above, supplemented with additional data 
requests as necessary, the Consultant shall complete a sustainability assessment of the 
Coral Gables Community utilizing the STAR Community Index Self-Assessment Checklist 
and Tool. The Preliminary Assessment will result in preliminary identification of 
sustainability focus areas around which the TWGs shall be organized. It will also identify a 
draft community-scale sustain ability vision and preliminary objectives for Coral Gables. 

As part of this community assessment Coral Gables Interdepartmental team and/or the 
Green Task Force shall at the request of the Consultant identify stakeholders for 
participation in the TWGs. For example, stakeholders could be identified from the robust 
higher education community in and around Coral Gables (e.g. University of Miami, Florida 
International University, and Miami Dade College). The Consultant shall review these 
stakeholders with the City's interdepartmental team and prepare a roles and responsibilities 
matrix for the sustainability focus areas. The roles and responsibility matrix shall be used 
to facilitate the recruiting of volunteers for the community-wide sustainability plan initiative. 
The Consultant shall also review the criteria and prioritization process used to identify the 
sustainability focus areas. 

The Preliminary Assessment will be summarized in a draft Community Sustainability 
Assessment memorandum. The Consultant assumes that the City will pay all licensing fees 
needed to authorize the consultant to use STAR Community Index documents and tools. 
Estimated Star Community Index fees are $500. 

In preparation for the Community Sustainability Visioning Process Kick-Off meeting the 
consultant shall facilitate development of a draft sustainability vision statement for the 
community. The consultant shall also preliminarily identify sustainability focus areas for the 
community and summarize the criteria and prioritization process used to develop them. 

Task 6.2 Community Sustainability Visioning Process Kick-Off 

The consultant shall brief the community sustainability steering committee consisting of 
representatives from the City's Interdepartmental Project Team and the City's Green Task 
Force to increase awareness of the City's sustainability opportunities and to begin to create 
a sustainable vision for the Community's Sustain ability Plan. This meeting shall occur in 
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conjunction with the presentation to the Coral Gables City Commission on the Coral Gables 
Government Operations SMP. 

The presentation shall summarize the Coral Gables government's project driven SMP, the 
results of the Community Assessment (i.e. STAR Community Index Self-Assessment 
Checklist and Tool), the draft community sustainability focus areas, as well as, the criteria 
and process used to select these focus areas. 

In preparation for the meeting the consultant shall facilitate development of a draft 
sustainability vision statement for the community with representatives of the City's 
interdepartmental team. The consultant shall also preliminarily identify sustainability focus 
areas for the community and summarize the criteria and prioritization process used to 
develop it. 

The consultant shall facilitate a sustainability visioning exercise with the steering committee 
and obtain input for the development of the draft Community Sustainability vision statement 
and the sustainability focus areas. The consultant shall also review the criteria and 
prioritization process used to select the sustainability focus areas. The Consultant shall 
also develop a roles and responsibilities matrix for community-wide stakeholders to be 
recruited for development of the community-wide sustainability plan. 

Task 6.3 Community Sustainability Workshop 

In preparation for the workshop the Steering Committee shall recruit community 
stakeholders based upon the roles and responsibilities matrix that the consultant shall 
develop in collaboration with representatives from the City's Interdepartmental Team. 
During the workshop attendees shall be briefed on the Coral Gables government project­
driven SMP, the results of the Community Assessment (i.e. STAR assessment), as well as 
the community sustainability focus areas and the criteria and prioritization process used to 
identify the focus areas. In addition the attendees shall be briefed on the results of the 
Green Task Forces' draft visioning process. 

The objective of Community Sustainability Workshop 1 shall be to develop a draft 
community sustainability vision statement with the stakeholders through a facilitation 
process that shall be led by the consultant. Once the draft vision is established the 
consultant shall introduce the participants to the criteria and prioritization process 
developed by the steering committee to identify the sustainability focus areas. Feedback 
from this process shall be used to inform adjustments to the sustainability focus areas in 
the future. 

Participants shall then be organized into technical working groups (TWGs). The TWGs 
shall address their assigned sustainability focus areas. The consultant shall, with the help 
of select steering committee members facilitate breakout meetings with each of the TWG's 
to develop a mission statement for their technical working group and a strengths, 
weaknesses, opportunities and threats (SWOT) analysis for the community as a whole 
relative to their assigned sustainability focus areas. 
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During the second portion of the workshop the TWGs shall revisit their mission statement 
and SWOT analysis. Participants shall be guided by the consultant through a process that 
generates strategies that: 

• Use strengths to take advantage of opportunities and avoid threats. 
• Take advantage of opportunities to overcome weaknesses and 
• Minimize weaknesses and avoid threats. 

The TWGs shall then select the top three strategies to address their assigned sustainability 
strategies. The workshop shall conclude with an overview of each TWG's strategies and 
rationale for selecting them. 

Task 6.4 Community Sustainability Document 

The Consultant shall utilize the results of the Community Assessment and workshops to 
produce a Community Sustainability Document. The document shall publish the 
community's vision for sustainability and identify Coral Gables' focus areas; and the 
mission for each of these focus areas. Recommendations for bringing the community 
involvement process to a successful conclusion will be provided. The Consultant shall also 
provide recommendations for funding sources and mechanisms that will allow the 
community sustainability planning process to progress. These elements shall be supported 
by the STAR assessment, community GHG inventory and documentation of the visioning 
process. As guided by Task 8, the Community's Sustainability Document will be 
communicated to citizens and mechanisms for soliciting and acting on feedback shall be 
established. The consultant shall present the community sustainability document to the 
steering committee and the city commission. 

TASK 7.0 IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY & PREPARATION OF FUNDING ANALYSIS 

Task 7.1 Project Cost Estimates and Budget Development 

The Consultant shall work with the City's interdepartmental team to develop notional cost 
estimates (i.e. high, medium and low) and associated returns for suggested government 
operations projects and initiatives. The top 10 projects that are rated high from a cost 
benefit analyses perspective that also meet the interdepartmental team's selection criteria 
will be estimated at an American Society of Professional Estimators Class 3 level (i.e. 
Design Development Level). An annual sustainability operating budget shall be developed 
based on these ten (10) project estimates and the amount required to continue to operate 
Coral Gable's governmental sustainability program infrastructure and also identify the 
funding needs for the Community-wide Coral Gables Sustainability Plan. This annual 
sustainability and project budget shall be used to identify approximate annual funds 
required by the Coral Gables Sustainability Program. The consultant shall also develop 
project implementation plan for the 10 projects described above identifying the resources 
required, roles and responsibilities as well as the project schedule. The project cost 
estimates and associated implementation plans shall be provided in a format that can be 
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adopted by the City of Coral Gables for other sustainability projects identified by the city or 
the community. 

Task 7.2 Internal and External Funding Mechanisms 

An enduring funding mechanism is a critical element of the continued success and 
evolution of the City's sustainability program. The funding approach will strive to develop a 
revolving funding mechanism based on the cost avoidance or negative costs generated 
through operational efficiencies, as well as, those efficiencies that generate revenues. The 
consultant shall also identify viable grants ancj other funding programs available through 
county, state, federal and private funding sources including non-profits. The consultant 
shall develop an Access database of the external funding opportunities linked to the focus 
areas within the GSMP and the Community based SMP. The database shall include 
contact information for each opportunity where appropriate. 

To ensure that the SMP can be integrated into the City's existing short- and long-term 
policy structure, the Consultant shall recommend for revisions to the Comprehensive Plan 
and Code of Ordinances. 

TASK 8.0 MARKETING & COMMUNICATIONS PLAN 

Task 8.1 Systematic Marketing and Communication Plan 

The consultant shall develop a systematic marketing and communications plan with the 
objective of increasing transparency and awareness within Coral Gables Government 
Operations and the city as a whole. The communications plan shall be designed to 
increase transparency and awareness within Coral Gables government operations and the 
City as a whole. The key messages and target audiences shall be identified as part of the 
development of the GSMP and the community-wide SMP. In addition, the project funding 
analysis in Task 7 shall also inform the key messages and target audiences. 

Media formats to be identified within the concise plan shall include webpages, press 
releases, articles and social media. The consultant sl1all prepare a press release and 
prepare an abstract and associated presentation if accepted for presentation at a regional 
or national conference jointly agreed to by the consultant and the city. The consultant shall 
undertake the presentations as a courtesy to the city after project completion. The 
consultant shall also prepare one article for submittal to Public Works Magazine, American 
City and American County or another publication of the City's choice for potential 
publication. 

COST ESTIMATE AND SCHEDULE 

The scope of work detailed above shall be completed for a lump sum fee of $198,250. In 
addition, licensing fees as described in Task 3.4 and 6.1 are estimated to total $2,000, resulting 
in a total project budget of $200,250. The project shall be implemented in accordance with the 
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schedule provided in Attachment 1. The hours required to complete each of the tasks are as 
follows: 

Task 
Number 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

Sincerely, 

Description 

Kick Off Meeting & Assessment Preparation 
Assessment & Solutions Development: for Gov't Operations 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory 
Collaborative Workshop & Coordination with Project Team 
Development of Government Operations Project Driven SMP 
Public Involvement Plan & Community Sustainability Vision 
Implementation Strategy & Preparation of Project Funding Analysis 
Marketing & Communications Plan 

Total Hours 

J.::~~~ 
Mike M£Carthy, MBA, PG 

~L-t*~ 
Kim Holland, PE 
Vice President Sustainability Group Leader 

Attachments 

Labor 
Hours 

30 
485 
203 
239 
151 
524 
236 
45 

1,912 
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RS&H 

August 19, 2014 

City of Coral Gables 

AnN: Mike Pounds, Chief Procurement Officer 

2800 SW 72nd Street 

Coral Gables, FL 33155 

10748 Deerwood Park Bculcvard S 

Jacksonville, Horidil 3/.256 

RE: SustainabiJity Master Plan Professional Services Agreement 

Dear Mr. Pounds, 

o 904-256-2500 

F 904-256-2501 

rsQndh.com 

Per your request, I am providing a supplement to our Coral Gables Master Plan Scope of work, Cost 

Estimate and Schedule referred to as Exhibit "B" of the above referenced Professional Services 

Agreement. This supplement assigns a fee to each described task. It is our understanding that this 

information will be utilized to support monthly invoicing based on percent completion of each 

described task as described in section 3.1 of the Professional Services Agreement. 

6 Public Involvement Plan & Community Sustainability Vision $53,027 

'1 1m lementation St & Preparation of Proje_ct Funding un;o " /<,,o;; $20,6.61 

8 Marketing & Communications Plan $7,435 

Total Fee $200,250 

Regards, 

t:l::L -{~ 
Ben Moore, ArcP, LEED AP O+M 

------. 
Energy & Sustainability Planner 
RS&H 
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